
 

AGENDA FOR 
 

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 

 
Contact: Michael Cunliffe 
Direct Line: 0161 253 5399 

E-mail: m.cunliffe@bury.gov.uk 
Website:  www.bury.gov.uk 

 
 
To: All Members of Planning Control Committee 

 
Councillors: S Thorpe (Chair), C Boles, D Duncalfe, 

U Farooq, J Harris, M Hayes, B Ibrahim, D Quinn, 
G Staples-Jones, D Vernon and M Walsh 

 

 
Dear Member/Colleague 

 
Planning Control Committee 

 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control Committee 
which will be held as follows:- 
 

Date: Tuesday, 29 August 2023 

Place:  Council Chamber, Bury Town Hall 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Briefing 

Facilities: 

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 

briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the related 

report should be contacted. 

Notes: https://councilstream.com/burycouncil/3203 

 

Public Document Pack

https://councilstream.com/burycouncil/3203


AGENDA 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider whether they 
have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if so, to formally declare 
that interest. 
 

3   MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 25TH JULY 2023  (Pages 3 - 

6) 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday the 25th July 2023 are attached. 

 

4   PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 7 - 180) 

 
Reports attached. 

 

5   DELEGATED DECISIONS  (Pages 181 - 192) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all delegated 
planning decisions since the last meeting of the planning control committee is 
attached. 

 

6   PLANNING APPEALS  (Pages 193 - 210) 

 
A report from the Head of Development Management on all planning appeal 
decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee is 
attached. 

 

7   CONFIRMATION OF TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (361)  (Pages 211 - 

220) 
 
A report from the Head of Development Management on the issues relating upon the 
current temporary tree preservation order, Tree Preservation Order (Number 361) at 
land adjacent to 78 Countess Lane, Radcliffe, M26 3NH is attached. 

 

8   URGENT BUSINESS   

 
Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair agrees may 
be considered as a matter of urgency. 

 



 

 

1 

 

 Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
 Date of Meeting: 25 July 2023 

 
 Present: Councillor S Thorpe (in the Chair) 

Councillors C Boles, D Duncalfe, J Harris, M Hayes, B Ibrahim, 
D Quinn, G Staples-Jones, D Vernon and M Walsh 
 

   
 

 Public Attendance: 
 

4 members of the public were present at the meeting. 

 Apologies for Absence: 

 
Councillor U Farooq 

 

 
PCC.1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were submitted by Councillor U Farooq. 
 

PCC.2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

Councillor B Ibrahim declared an interest in planning application 69459, Land adjacent 
to 35 Hilton Street, Bury, BL9 6LT. He knew the applicant along with his family as they 
lived in the same area. He had not commented on the application and would remain in 

the meeting during deliberation of this application. 
 

PCC.3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON THE 27TH JUNE 2023  

 
Delegated decision: 

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on the 27th June 2023 be approved as a correct 

record and signed by the Chair. 
 

PCC.4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted in relation to 

applications for planning permission.  
 
There was supplementary information to add in respect of application numbers 69388, 

68578, 69699 and 69459. 
 

The Committee heard representations from objectors in respect of applications 
submitted. This was limited to three minutes for the speaker. 
 
Delegated decisions: 

 
1. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 
report and any supplementary information submitted and subject to the 

conditions included: - 
 

Saw Mills, off Spring Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9JQ 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Planning Control Committee, 25 July 2023  

 
 

 

2 

Demolition of existing sawmill and associated outbuilding and construction of 5 no. 
dwellings 
 
2. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 

report and any supplementary information submitted with an additional condition 
for the installation of a EV charging point and subject to the conditions included:- 

 
240 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6NH 

Change of use from dwelling (Class C3) to 9 no. bedroom HMO (single occupancy, 

Class Sui Generis) 
 
3. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 
report and any supplementary information submitted and subject to the 

conditions included: - 
 

13-21 Blackburn Street, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1NN 

Demolition of 13-21 Blackburn Street/TSB Bank and erection of three-storey civic hub 
building containing swimming pools, fitness suites and studios, indoor climbing facility, 
offices, cafeteria and library; Link block between Radcliffe Market and Market 

Chambers buildings, plus refurbishment of Market Chambers and Market Hall 
basement, for use as a multi-use event space, with associated external alterations and 

works and hard and soft landscaping 
 
4. That the Committee Approve with Conditions the following application in 

accordance with the reasons put forward by the Development Manager in the 
report and any supplementary information submitted and subject to the 

conditions included: - 
 
Land adjacent to 35 Hilton Street, Bury, BL9 6LT 

Erection of 2 no. terraced dwellings 
 

PCC.5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent 

planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers since the last 
meeting of the Planning Control Committee. 

 
Delegated decision: 

 

That the report and appendices be noted.  
 

PCC.6  PLANNING APPEALS  

 
A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted listing all recent 

planning and enforcement appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning 
Control Committee.  

 
Delegated decision: 

 

Page 4



 Planning Control Committee, 25 July 2023 
 
 

 
3 

That the report and appendices be noted.  
 

PCC.7  URGENT BUSINESS  

 
No urgent business was reported. 

 
 

 
 
 
COUNCILLOR S THORPE 
Chair  

 
(Note:  The meeting started at 7.00pm and ended at 8.05pm) 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Title Planning Applications

To: Planning Control Committee

On: 29 August 2023

By: Development Manager

Status: For Publication

Executive Summary

The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved.

My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports.

This report has the following implications

Township Forum/ Ward: Identified in each case.

Policy: Identified in each case.

Resources: Not generally applicable.

Equality Act 2010: All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for:
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation;
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and person who do not share it;
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.  

Human Rights: All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human
Rights Act 1998.

Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments.

Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could
include a person's home, and other land and business assets.

In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council
under the Town & Country Planning Acts.

The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes (without prejudice to any other obligation imposed on
it) a duty upon the Council to exercise its functions and have due regard to the likely effect of the
exercise of its functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent crime and
disorder in its area. In so doing and on making planning decisions under the Town and Country
Planning Acts, the Planning Control Committee shall have due regard to the provisions of the
Crime and Disorder Act 1998 and its implications in the exercise of its functions.

Development Manager

Background Documents

1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith.
2. Certificates relating to the ownership.
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties.
4. Responses from Consultees.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE.

Page 8



01  Township Forum - Ward:  North Manor App No.  68055

 Location: Land at Springside Road, Bury
 Proposal: Residential development comprising of 41 no. dwellings with associated

access, landscaping and ancillary works
 Recommendation: Minded to Approve  Site Visit: Y

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
02  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East - Redvales App No.  69735

 Location: Rostrevor Hotel, 146-148 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 0TL
 Proposal: Change of use from hotel (C1) to 2 no. 9 bedroom (single occupancy)

HMOs (Sui Generis)
 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
03  Township Forum - Ward:  Radcliffe - West App No.  69233

 Location: Site of the former Riverside High School, School Street, Radcliffe, M26
3BW

 Proposal: Residential development to erect 90 dwellings with associated parking and
landscaping

 Recommendation: Minded to Approve  Site Visit: Y

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
04  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses App No.  69535

 Location: Land at Billberry Close & Albert Road, Whitefield, M45 8BL
 Proposal: Erection of 7 no. bungalows with associated works
 Recommendation: Minded to Approve  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
05  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East App No.  69580

 Location: Land & buildings at Murray Road/2-10 Princess Parade/47-51 Market
Street & Bury Market, Bury, BL9 0BJ

 Proposal: 1. Demolition of buildings and erection of flexible events hall with
associated servicing, parking and landscaping:
2. New canopy structure to cover existing outdoor market;
3. Temporary permission sought for area of Bury Market car park to be
utilised for site cabins for the duration of the build

 Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site Visit: N

        ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
Ward: North Manor Item   01 

 
Applicant:  Morris Homes (North) Ltd 
 
Location: Land at Springside Road, Bury 

 
Proposal: Residential development comprising of 41 no. dwellings with associated access, 

landscaping and ancillary works 
 
Application Ref:   68055/Full Target Date:  31/05/2022 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
It is recommended that this application is Minded to Approve subject to the signing 
and completion of a Section 106 agreement for recreation provision, affordable 
housing and off-site highway design works and biodiversity mitigation, thereto in 
accordance with policies H2/1, HT6/1, RT2/2 of the adopted Unitary Development 
Plan, SPD1 and SPD5 and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  If 
the agreement is not signed within a reasonable timeframe, then delegated authority 
is sought by the Development Manager to determine the application. 
 
The Development Manager has requested a site visit. 
 
Description 
The application site is 1.44 hectares and is located between Burnley Road/School Lane and 
Springside Road in Walmersley. The site contains scrubland and is grassed with trees 
pertaining largely to the boundaries. The site contains a disused tennis court. There are no 
public rights of way pertaining to the site. There appears to be a gated vehicular access into 
the site from Walmersley Road that is available for patrons of the neighbouring church. 
 
The site is allocated as protected recreation land in the Bury Unitary Development Plan. The 
application site is adjacent to, but not within the Walmersley Conservation Area. 
 
The community hall, and the graveyard to Christ Church, Walmersley are located to the 
northeast of the site and are accessed from School Lane/Burnley Road. There are 
residential properties to all other boundaries.  
 
The proposed development is for the erection of 41 dwellings on land between Springside 
Road and Burnley Road/School Lane and arranged around short cul-de-sacs and with small 
areas of landscaping to the frontage to Springside Road and Burnley Road. The proposed 
dwellings would be two storeys in height and would be constructed from red brick with a tile 
roof. They would include a range of detached, semi-detached and mews (terraced) 
properties. 36 dwellings would be accessed from Springside Road and 5 dwellings from 
Burnley Road/School Lane, from where an emergency access would be taken, which would 
also act as a pedestrian route for the entire development and beyond. 
 
Since the original submission the proposal has been amended to alter the layout (including 
the intended affordable dwellings), alter the mix of house types and reduce the number of 
proposed dwellings from 43 down to 41. The proposed structural landscaping scheme has 
also been amended as a result of comments received from the Greater Manchester Ecology 
Unit. 
 
 
Relevant Planning History 
No relevant history at the site 
 
Surrounding area 

Page 11



67116 - Application for permission in principle for 5 no. dwellings at land adjacent to 62 
Springside Road, Bury. Refused - 20 August 2021. 
 
68815 - Outline application for 12 no. dwellings including means of access (all other matters 
reserved for appearance, layout, scale and landscaping) at land adjacent to 62 Springside 
Road, Bury. Received - 23 August 2022.  
At the Planning Control Committee meeting in May, the Planning committee resolved to 
approve the scheme, subject to the completion of the Section 106 agreement. 
 
Publicity 
41 neighbouring properties were notified by directly on 2 March 2022 and a press notice 
was published in the Bury Times on 10 March 2022. Site notices were posted on 9 March 
2022. 
 
2 letters of support have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• The proposal has nice looking houses that are fitting with the area. 

• Thought has gone into the egress and ingress to the site. 

• Fully support the proposal. 

• Such is the housing crisis in Bury, we should be granting planning permission. 

• More applications like this please 
 
56 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• Springside Road is crumbling due to the natural spring under the road. 

• At peak times, the road is blocked with cars on the pavement, double parking and farm 
vehicles use the road all year round.  

• The church field is waterlogged and removing mature trees will have an impact.  

• 43 houses is excessive as the land availability assessment was 20. 

• The build on the Tetrosyl site will swamp the local infrastructure.  

• Far too many houses. 

• Why is all traffic being routed up Springside Road and none to School Lane or Atkinson 
Street. 

• Field is subject to flooding. 

• Loss of leisure area. 

• The road is under a lot of pressure, especially during the school run, where you will find 
all cars double parked, parking across driveways and dangerous parking.  

• 200+ houses are being built on the Tetrosyl site. We do not need any more. 

• The road adjacent to the church should be used for access. 

• Adding 43 homes will be nothing short of lunacy. 

• None of the photos in the Transport Statement were taken during school pick up and 
drop off times. At these times, the road is a genuine danger to children.  

• Where will children, who live in the new houses be schooled? All the local schools are at 
capacity. 

• Removal of trees and shrubs would compromise the privacy of those who live around 
the site. 

• Question whether the sewerage and drainage systems can cope with the proposal. 

• This will lead to the removal of more green belt land.  

• Impact upon bats and wildlife on site. 

• Springside Road is busy and safety is a serious concern, particularly as the road is a 
drop off point for the primary school. 

• Impact from vehicle pollution on health 

• Lack of future proofing in plans as GM has committed to reaching net zero by 2038. 

• The development does not meet the needs of the people of Walmersley. 

• Housing density is excessive and there are no bungalows for older people. 

• No provision for children to play outside. 

• Grouping Walmersley with Ramsbottom and Tottington for an open space assessment 
is inappropriate. 

• The access road and 5 houses with drives onto Springside Road will make problems 

Page 12



worse. 

• Insufficient space for vehicle parking. 

• The rear first floor windows of houses will overlook the rear windows and gardens of the 
houses on Barnside Close. 

• As a governor of Springside Primary School, I have concerns for the health of the 
children. 

• There is no evidence that solar panels, heat pumps or soakaways would be used. 

• Trees will be destroyed. 

• No account has been taken of the development at Waldmers Wood. 

• The bat survey is invalid. 

• The loss of recreation land is not consistent with the Bury UDP. 

• Land has historically been used by residents until it was fenced off recently. 

• Adverse impact upon drainage. 

• The proposals do not anticipate a switch away from gas. Energy efficient building should 
include solar panels, ground/air heat source pumps, soakaways and ev charging points 
as standard. 

• There is no mention of preserving the wall, which is 100 years old and forms the 
western boundary of the site.  

• The bat surveys are flawed as I have seen bats foraging on the site. 

• Loss of recreation space. 

• Harm to the conservation area 

• Impact on drainage and run off. 

• It is vital that Bury Council highways department carry out their own traffic count on any 
mid-week day, which will prove beyond doubt how congested Springside Road is. 

• How many of the 43 houses will be social housing? 

• Springside Road is the only access for emergency services to use for the whole estate. 

• Would access by heavy machinery be restricted to outside of peak hours? 

• Concerned about the pathway onto School Lane, which will invite anti-social behaviour. 

• The developer has a poor rating. 

• Brownfield sites should be developed first before looking at greenfield sites like this. 

• Residents needs should outweigh the needs of outsiders and it is the Council's duty to 
represent us. 

• The land would be better used as a park and open space for children. 

• A thorough ecological survey needs to be undertaken in the summer months. 

• What provision is being made to compensate for the loss of the recreation land? 

• The proposed streetscene plans do not include the existing dwellings on either side and 
should be updated. There are no plans available of the proposed garages. 

• A larger number of properties should use School Lane and the emergency access could 
be combined with the access. If this is not possible, then, it is requested that large 
construction vehicles should only access the site between 9.30 and 2.30. 

• Garages do not count towards the parking standards and it is not clear whether the 
garages would be large enough to park in. 

 
The neighbouring properties and objectors were notified of revised plans on 23 November 
2022. 
 
29 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• Previous objections are still valid. 

• Increased traffic and the danger to pedestrians from blocked pavements is real. 

• Development will take place on the side and rear of my property. 

• The footpath from the Vicarage to the church including an easement from the garden is 
not shown on the plans.  

• An application is being considered to build 13 houses on Springside Road. 

• Where are all the contractors vehicles going to park? 

• The local schools are at capacity. 

• The affordable housing has not been pepper potted among the site. 

• Plot 16 is too close to the boundary wall and would not allow space for repairs 
Page 13



• Replacing the private gardens with the open public space in front of plots 12 - 16, 
creates a security risk to properties on Barnside Close. 

• Plans do not contain bungalows or provide space for children to play. 

• It would be sensible to defer permission for this development until the impact of the 
Tetrosyl development has been assessed. 

• Local amenities and infrastructure are already overstretched. 

• Potential for flooding. 

• Ask that planners take note of the change to the Levelling Up and Regeneration Bill, 
where the target for building homes is advisory and not mandatory. 

• Location of plots would make repairs to boundary wall difficult. 

• More consideration should be given to properties which edge the field. 

• The plan delivers a net ecological loss. 

• There has been no follow up to the winter bat survey and bats are active during the 
summer months. 

• The plans would lead to poor air quality for the children at the nearby school. 

• The Bray and Poynton house types do not comply with the nationally described space 
standards. 

• Request that someone comes to visit between 8 and 9am or 3 and 5pm. 

• oes the church have the authority to sell this land? 

• Obvious solution would be to have the site access coming out onto Burnley Road, which 
is a quiet road and has good visibility in both directions. 

 
The neighbouring properties and objectors were notified of amendments to the proposal by 
means of a letter on 19 April 2023. 
 
21 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• Object. The site is a green site full of wildlife.  

• This land should be used for the local residents. 

• There is a large development on the Tetrosyl site and another at Seedfield. 

• The road is struggling to maintain the traffic as it is. 

• The junction at Walmersley Road is not adequate for this development 

• Houses overlook the properties on Springside Road, which are lower. 

• Car lights will shine directly into properties adjacent to the entrance. 

• There is no requirement for housing and should be developing brownfield sites. 

• Nothing has been done to ease the traffic congestion on Springside Road.  

• The gable end of plot 26 is only 14.2 metres from the rear of my house. 

• The gable end of plot 27 is 1.5 metres to the side of the house and does not follow the 
building line of the existing dwellings.  

• Loss of light and privacy. 

• The latest plans do not address my concerns. 

• The reduction of 3 dwellings does not answer the issues raised. 

• Traffic on Walmersley Road is leading to a number of fatal/near fatal accidents. 

• No bungalows or open space for children to play.  

• Positions of plots 12 - 16 will affect Barnside Close by invading privacy and cast a 
shadow over the garden. 

• Open space in front of plots 12 - 16 would create a security risk. 

• There are a number of technical changes, but none address the concerns of the 
residents. 

• The highways technical note was commissioned by Morris Homes and must be viewed 
with suspicion. 

• The density of the housing is excessive. 

• Concerns raised by the principal engineer have not been addressed, which includes 
parking/access on Springside Road. 

• The bray and chelford house types are still not compliant with the national space 
standards.  

• Concerned about the re-siting of the culvert. How will this be achieved safely and will it 
affect my property. 

Page 14



• There is no need to grant permission, when there are numerous brownfield sites that 
need developing first. 

• Plots 10 - 16 would take the light away from Nos 10 -14 Barnside Close. 

• Parking for these houses would be located at the end of my garden. I have a serious 
lung condition and am concerned that the extra exhaust fumes would cause me 
breathing problems when I am in my garden. 

 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objection, subject to conditions relating to off-site highway works 
(including a review of current waiting restrictions and introduction of traffic calming 
measures) and street lighting, adherence to adoption standards (if necessary), agreement 
of a Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP), provision of vehicular turning facilities 
and driveways and surfacing of car parking areas. 
 
Lead Local Flood Authority - No objection, subject to conditions relating to surface water 
drainage scheme and culvert diversion works. 
 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land. 
 
Environmental Health - Air Quality - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition 
relating to electric vehicle charging points.  
 
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No response. 
 
Conservation Officer - No objection.  
The site lies adjacent to the south and west boundaries of Walmersley Conservation Area, 
which covers Christ Church and its churchyard which are considered to be a 
Non-Designated Heritage Assets (NDHA), the former school and school master's house, 
together with the adjacent Spur Petroleum site which contains the former Walmersley 
Brewery buildings, also considered to be an NDHA. 
 
The application site together with the church and its grounds and the site of the former 
Walmersley Brewery are surrounded by 20th century housing development, with 21st 
century housing development within the former brewery site, carried out post conservation 
area designation. 
 
Southern Section of the Conservation Area - The proposal would have no direct or indirect 
impact on what remains of the former Walmersley Brewery building or its setting or the 
setting of this section of the conservation area. 
 
Northern Section of the Conservation Area - The church possesses moderate to low 
heritage significance in so far as with regard to its architectural aesthetic and historical 
values. It's heritage significance would not be directly or indirectly affected by the proposal. 
 
The grave yard to the south and east of the church fronting Walmersley Road provides a 
key element of its setting contributing to its significance and the character and appearance 
of this part of the conservation area. The proposal would not impact on this part of the 
setting of the church or the character or appearance of that part of the conservation area. 
The western part does not have the same level of contribution and is backdropped by C20th 
housing. 
 
The proposed development would bring that baseline condition of housing closer to the 
conservation area boundary, but there would be a visual separation maintained between the 
western boundary of the conservation area and the application site by virtue of the proposed 
emergency access running north to south from School Lane which would not diminish the 
setting of the church. The proposed design and materials for the development would be 
acceptable as they would present a similar baseline condition as the existing residential 

Page 15



development. 
 
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to bats, 
nesting birds, hedgehogs and invasive species. A contribution should be secured for the 
off-site mitigation for the loss of 2.79 biodiversity units. 
 
GM Fire Service - Require a secondary emergency access.  
 
Greater Manchester Police (Design for security) - No objections. 
 
The Coal Authority - No objections. 
 
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage 
 
Environment Agency - No comments received. 
 
Sport England - The proposal does not fall within their statutory remit. If the proposal 
involves the loss of any sports facility, then full consideration should be given to whether the 
proposal meets Para. 99 of the National Planning Policy Framework, is in accordance with 
local policies to protect social infrastructure and any approved Playing Pitch Strategy or 
Built Sports Facility Strategy that the local authority has in place. 
 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to the new priority junction into the site from Springside Road, a review of 
waiting restrictions (Traffic Regulation Orders (TRO's)), a Construction Management Plan. 
TfGM also recommend that the development contribute towards the provision of pedestrian 
crossing facilities across Walmersley Road and/or Walmersley Old Road to improve 
accessibility of the site for future residents by sustainable modes. 
 
The predicted number of trips does not trigger TfGM's requirement for any further highway 
impact assessment work.  
 
Nearest bus stops to the site, which provide a range of services at regular intervals, are 
around a 3 minute walk from the site. 
 
TfGM would refer to the Local Authority to determine whether the quantum of development 
triggers the requirement for a Residential Travel Plan. If not, then TfGM would recommend 
that a Travel Pack is produced for residents. 
 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Applicant has agreed with pre-start conditions 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H4/1 Affordable Housing 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN1/5 Crime Prevention 
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas 
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 

Page 16



EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT2/6 Replacement Car Parking 
HT4 New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD5 DC Policy Guidance Note 5: Affordable Housing 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Recreation 
UDP Policy RT1/1 relates to protected recreation in the urban area. In basic terms, the 
policy states that development will not be allowed on recreation space unless it meets 
specific criteria. 
 
Whilst similar, the approach in RT1/1 has now been superseded by Paragraph 99 of the 
NPPF which states that "existing open space, sports and recreational buildings and land, 
including playing fields, should not be built on unless: 

• An assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space, 
buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or 

• The loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or 
better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location; or 

• The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits of 
which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use". 

 
The whole site is allocated as protected recreation provision, as identified within the Bury 
Greenspace Audit and Strategy 2015, falling within the Ramsbottom, Tottington and North 
Manor Analysis Area.  The site for the proposed development consists of open space and a 
former tennis courts and as such, the proposal can only be supported if it complies with the 
exception criteria listed above. 
 
The submission includes an Open Space Assessment, which notes that the site is identified 
as 'Christ Church Open Space' in the Bury Greenspace Audit and Strategy 2015. However, 
the Assessment considers that it does not meet the sub-typology definition of 'Informal 
Recreation' as identified in the Bury Greenspace Audit and Strategy 2015 (defined as 
grassed sites usually within residential areas that offer opportunities for informal play), as it 
relates to private land which is not publicly accessible (without trespassing) and there are no 
public rights of way pertaining. Additionally, the loss of 1.44 hectares of open space would 
have a negligible impact on the level of open space in the sub-area of Ramsbottom, 
Tottington and North Manor, as a surplus of 2.17 of the amenity greenspace typology would 
remain post development. Furthermore, the open space is assessed as being poor quality 
(amenity greenspace) as it does not contain seating, bins or provision for the disabled and 

Page 17



is not maintained and it is not publicly accessible. 
 
The site contains a dilapidated tennis court that is not in use. The Bury Playing Pitch and 
Outdoor Sport Strategy (2019) builds upon the Bury Greenspace Audit and Strategy 2015 
and does not identify the site as containing tennis courts (and so does not provide any 
contribution towards tennis court provision in the Borough) and outlines that there is a 
sufficient supply of tennis courts within the geographical analysis area of Ramsbottom, 
Tottington and North Manor to meet current and future demands. Therefore, the 
redevelopment of the site would have no impact on the quantity and quality of tennis court 
provision. 
 
Given the above, the Open Space Assessment undertaken demonstrates clearly that the 
identified open space is surplus to requirements and that its redevelopment would not lead 
to a quantitative or qualitative deficiency in the host geographical analysis area. 
 
Principle - Residential 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) should be treated as a material planning 
consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply 
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. The Framework 
maintains the emphasis on identifying a rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply 
position, which is made up of sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that 
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a 
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of 
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as 
many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g. 
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring 
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing 
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential developments.   
 
The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is 
an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against 
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially 
below (less than 75%) of the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be 
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the 
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and 
therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential development. 
 
Therefore, in relation to the proposed dwelling, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning 
Policy Framework states that where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the 
policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, planning 
permission should be granted unless: 
i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular 
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole. 
 
In this case the 'titled balance' applies and planning permission should be granted unless 
the above points Para 11(d) i or ii apply. 
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The site is located within the urban area and there are residential dwellings surrounding the 

Page 18



site. As such, the proposed development would not conflict with the surrounding land uses. 
Appropriate infrastructure would be available. As such, the proposed development would be 
acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
Impact upon conservation area and NDHA 
The national legislative framework for development affecting listed buildings and 
conservation areas is provided by the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990. This sets out the duty on local planning authorities with regard to listed buildings 
and any buildings or land within a conservation area, when determining applications for 
planning permission. It is essential that these legal duties are considered, alongside the 
contents of the NPPF and other planning policies and guidance. 
 
The Town and Country Planning (Listed Building and Conservation Area) Act 1990 imposes 
a duty under Section 72 on Local Planning Authorities to pay 'special attention to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area' (section 
72(1)). 
 
Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states that heritage assets are an irreplaceable resource, and 
they should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be 
enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and future generations. 
 
Paragraph 194 of the NPPF states that when determining applications, local planning 
authorities should require an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets 
affected, including any contribution made by their setting. The level of detail should be 
proportionate to the assets importance and no more than sufficient to understand the 
potential impact of the proposal on their significance. 
 
Paragraph 197 states that in determining applications, local planning authorities should take 
account of: 

• the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and 
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 

• the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable 
communities including their economic vitality; and 

• the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness. 

 
The proposed development would be adjacent to, but not within the Walmersley 
Conservation Area. As such, the proposed development would need to have regard to the 
character and setting of the Conservation Area (CA).  
 
Objections to the proposal raise concerns about the impact of the proposal on the character 
and setting of the conservation area. This includes a comprehensive representation from an 
independent heritage consultant. This considers that the proposal would cause harm to the 
special character and appearance of the Walmersley Conservation Area through 
development within its setting, removal of mature vegetation and further encroachment of 
modern residential development. The objection also states that there would be potential 
impacts on non-designated heritage assets (NDHA).  
 
The Council's Conservation Officer's response is noted above, which notes the juxtaposition 
of the application site to the Walmersley Conservation Area and the NDHA and the 
surrounding 20th and 21st century housing development, part of which was carried out post 
conservation area designation. 
 
The Conservation Officer assesses that the proposal would have no direct or indirect impact 
on what remains of the former Walmersley Brewery building or its setting or the setting of 
this (southern) section of the conservation area. In relation to the northern section of the 
conservation area, the Conservation Officer considers that the church possesses moderate 
to low heritage significance in relation to its architectural aesthetic and historical value and 

Page 19



that this would not be directly or indirectly affected.  
 
It is the grave yard to the south and east of the church fronting Walmersley Road that 
provides a key element of its setting, contributing to its significance and the character and 
appearance of this part of the conservation area. The Conservation Officer assesses that 
the proposal would not impact on this part of the setting of the church or the character or 
appearance of that part of the conservation area. The western part does not have the same 
level of contribution and is backdropped by C20th housing. 
 
Whilst the proposed development would bring that baseline condition of suburban housing 
closer to the conservation area boundary, there would be a visual separation maintained 
between the western boundary of the conservation area and the application site by virtue of 
the proposed emergency access running north to south from School Lane which would not 
diminish the setting of the church. This would be separated by an extension to the existing 
natural stone wall. The proposed design and materials for the development would be 
acceptable as they would present a similar baseline condition as the existing residential 
development. 
 
Given the above, it is not considered that the proposal would have unacceptable impacts on 
the setting or appearance of the Walmersley Conservation Area or NDHA. 
 
Design and layout 
The proposed development would provide a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced 
dwellings, which would be two storeys in height. The proposed dwellings would be 
constructed from red brick with a grey tile roof, which would match the surrounding 
dwellings and those dwellings within the conservation area. The use of headers, stone cills, 
bay windows, pike details, canopies, porches and chimneys would add visual interest to the 
elevations. As such, the proposed dwellings would not be a prominent feature in the locality. 
The proposed density, at 30 dwellings per hectare, would reflect the general density of the 
surrounding suburban streets. 
 
All of the proposed dwellings would have a side or rear garden, which would provide a 
suitable level of private amenity space. There would be space within the side/rear gardens 
for bin storage, which includes 4 bins. The proposed boundary treatments would include 1.8 
metre high timber boarded and low knee rail fencing between gardens, with 1.8 metre high 
brick walls with pillars and timber panels at prominent corner locations. The proposed 
boundary treatments would match the existing fencing and walls in the locality.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene 
and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity 
SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between residential properties and as such, 
would be relevant in this case. The aspect standards states that there should be a minimum 
of 20 metres between directly facing habitable windows and 13 metres between a habitable 
room window and a two storey blank wall. 
 
The separation distances between the proposed dwellings would comply with the aspect 
standards in SPD6. 
 
There would be 15.3 metres between the rear of No. 2 Brierfield Drive and the blank gable 
of plot 1, which would be in excess of the 13 metre aspect standard.  
 
There would be between 23.9 metres and 36.2 metres between the proposed dwellings and 
the existing properties (Nos 4 - 12 Brierfield Drive and 2 - 8 Barnside Close), which would 
be in excess of the 20 metre aspect standard. 
 
There would be between 16.3 and 17.5 metres between the rear of Nos 10 and 12 Barnside 

Page 20



Close and the blank gable of plot 16, which would be in excess of the 13 metre aspect 
standard.  
 
There would be between 10.6 metres and 15.4 metres between the rear of plots 18 - 24 and 
the boundary of the site, which would be in excess of the 7 metre aspect standard. 
 
There would be 14.7 metres between the rear of Nos 12 and 14 Old Brewers Court and teh 
blank gable of plot 24, which would be in excess of the 13 metre aspect standard. 
 
There would be over 22 metres between the rear of Nos 6 & 7 Old Brewers Court and the 
rear of plot 26, which would be in excess of the 20 metre aspect standard. 
 
There would be 15 metres between the rear of No. 1 Vicarage Close and the blank gable of 
plot 26, which would be in excess of the 13 metre aspect standard.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
amenity of the neighbouring properties. 
 
The 'Technical housing standards – nationally described space standard (2015)' concerns 
internal space within new dwellings and is suitable for application across all tenures. It sets 
out requirements for the Gross Internal (floor) Area of new dwellings at a defined level of 
occupancy as well as floor areas and dimensions for key parts of the home, notably 
bedrooms, storage and floor to ceiling height. The requirements of this standard for 
bedrooms, storage and internal areas are relevant only in determining compliance with this 
standard in new dwellings and have no other statutory meaning or use. 
 
The standard has not been adopted as a local plan policy (given that Bury UDP dates from 
1997), but it represents a useful guide as to what may constitute an acceptable standard of 
development. Of the 14 different house types proposed across the development, 3 of the 
housetypes would fall short of the standard (10 dwellings in total), representing 25% of the 
total. They would be between 9 - 14% smaller than the relevant prescribed overall floor 
space standard. 75% of the dwellings would exceed the standard by between 3 and 31%. 
 
Given the above, it would not be sustainable to raise an objection owing to the lack of a 
local plan policy and the relatively modest shortfall. 
 
Ecology, trees and landscaping 
The representations concerning potential impacts on ecological interests are noted above. 
 
An ecological survey was submitted with the application and the main issues relate to bats, 
nesting birds, hedgehogs, invasive species and biodiversity enhancement measures. 
 
The Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) have raised no objections to the proposal, 
subject to conditions relating to the felling of trees and bats, the protection of nesting birds 
and hedgehog, control/eradication of invasive species 
 
Bats - There are no buildings on the site. The trees have been surveyed from the ground for 
features relating to bats and aerial surveys were conducted for any features that could not 
be assessed from the ground. No evidence of bats roosting in the trees were detected. 
However, several trees could not be totally ruled out and as such, these have been classed 
as having low bat roosting potential. 
 
The site is likely to provide bat foraging habitat, which has been verified by a number of 
local residents in their comments on the application. The loss of bat foraging habitat is 
unlikely to be significant, given the extent of foraging habitat available to the local bat 
population and given the proximity to a tributary of the River Irwell, such as Pigs Lee Brook 
and the River Irwell itself. No further information or measures are required in relation to the 
loss of bat foraging habitat.   
 

Page 21



Other Protected Species - No evidence of any other protected species was found or suitable 
habitat identified. There is no reason to doubt this assessment as there are no ponds or 
watercourses on or near the site.  
 
Nesting Birds - The proposed development would result in the loss of trees and scrub, 
which are potential bird nesting habitat. However, the proposed losses would be mitigated.  
 
Hedgehog - Hedgehog, a UK Biodiversity Priority Species is reported as being present on 
site. There are no reasons to doubt the reports as the site does provide suitable habitat for 
nesting and hibernating.  
 
Invasive Species - A number of invasive species listed under Schedule 9, Part 2 of the 
Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as amended), were found on the site. It is an offence to 
introduce or cause to grow wild any plant listed under this schedule.   
 
Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment - Section 174 of the NPPF 2021 
states that the planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment. The site currently is a mosaic of low and moderate ecological value 
habitats, most likely in poor condition given the presence of invasive species. 
 
The proposed development would replace this with low value ecological value habitats and 
hardstanding. The ecological report notes that only partial compensation would be possible 
on site and off-site compensation would be required. The latest iteration of the supporting 
Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment (following amendment to the proposed layout and 
structural planting) calculates the baseline value of the site as 6.68 biodiversity units (BU) 
and that this would decrease to 3.99 BU post development, resulting in a loss of 2.80 BU. 
This translates into a contribution of £42,000 (i.e.£15,000 x 2.80), which would be allocated 
to a site known as Walker's Field, Chesham. 
 
Therefore, subject to conditions and a contribution for off-site biodiversity mitigation, the 
proposed development would not cause harm to a protected species and would be in 
accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the 
NPPF. 
 
Trees and landscaping - An Arboricultural report has been submitted in support of the 
application, which confirms that 2 trees and 6 groups of trees would be felled as a result of 
the proposed development. The 2 individual trees and 4 of the groups, are assessed as 
category C (poor quality), whereas the other 2 groups (oner to only be partially removed) 
are assessed as category A and B (good quality).  
 
The proposal is supported by a comprehensive structural planting plan and Arboricultural 
Impact Assessment. This includes, as mitigation for the loss of trees, the provision for the 
planting of a mixture of native as well as ornamental trees, shrubs and hedges and tree 
protection measures. 
 
Given the general poor quality of the existing tree cover at the site and further to the 
amendments made to the proposed landscaping scheme to introduce more native species, 
the GMEU are satisfied that the proposed replacement landscaping (in tandem with the 
off-site mitigation noted above) would be satisfactory. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development, subject to conditional control, would not harm the 
character of the area and would be in accordance with Policy EN8/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
Highways and accessibility 
As per the description, 36 dwellings would be accessed from Springside Road and 5 
dwellings would be accessed from Burnley Road/School Lane. There would be acceptable 
level of visibility at both junctions with Springside Road and Burnley Road/School Lane and 
turning facilities would be provided within the site.  

Page 22



 
The junction with Springside Road and Walmersley Road is a signalised junction with 
pedestrian crossing facilities that would be partially upgraded in association with the 
residential scheme at Bevis Green to the east under planning permission 63533..  
 
Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM) have recommended that the proposed 
development contribute to the upgrading of pedestrian facilities at the signalised junction 
between Springside Road/Walmersley Road/Walmersley Old Road. In response, the 
applicant has commissioned and submitted Highway Technical Notes, which explored the 
alternative pedestrian options for accessing public transport (bus stops) along Walmersley 
Road, the potential for an uncontrolled crossing or a signal controlled crossing on the 
southern section of the junction. 
 
The Technical Notes highlighted that the proposed development was approximately 
equidistant from bus stops south and north of the site, with both routes within 400m via 
pedestrian crossing points. The assessment also found that an uncontrolled crossing would 
not be deliverable on technical and safety grounds and that a potential signal-controlled 
crossing would require significant changes to the junction layout and signal timings at a cost 
that would be unlikely to be proportionate to the proposed scale of development or justified, 
given the alternative options for pedestrians available. Additionally, the full extent and cost 
of the suggested improvement works is currently unknown and without undertaking the 
preliminary design and capacity modelling, the proposals may not be feasible. The applicant 
also notes that the suggested improvement works are not required to make the site 
sustainable in transport terms, as it has previously been demonstrated that the site location 
provides for all types of active travel (to the satisfaction of TfGM). Finally, the Technical 
Note highlights that the Council does not have a UDP policy that would allow the applicant 
to make a financial contribution towards junction improvements without a scheme to be fully 
designed and costed. 
 
However, given that a scheme needs to be fully designed and costed, the developer is 
willing to fund the design of a pedestrian improvement scheme at the junction as a Section 
106 contribution, which could then potentially be used to seek contributions for 
implementation from future developments.  
 
Given the circumstances set out in the supporting Technical Notes, it is considered that the 
suggested contribution by TfGM is not proportionate or justified by the nature or scale of the 
proposed development. If a scheme for the junction is fully designed however, this could 
assist with the provision of any justified contributions that may be required in the future. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, neither the Highway Officer or TfGM object to the proposal 
subject to the suggested conditions set out above, which would include interventions that 
could potentially improve the present problems highlighted in the representations (e.g. 
review of current waiting restrictions and traffic calming measures) and would ensure that 
the development is not implemented to the detriment of the safe operation of the highway 
network (e.g. agreement of a Construction Traffic Management Plan). 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would 
be in accordance with Policies EN1/3, H2/1, H2/2 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
Parking 
SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards for a residential development are as 
follows: 

• 1.5 spaces per 2 bed dwelling 

• 2 spaces per 3 bed dwelling 

• 3 spaces per 4 bed dwelling and above. 
 
This would equate to 99 spaces. 
 

Page 23



The proposed development would provide 82 spaces and there would be 17 integral 
garages. There would be a further 13 properties with access to a detached garage. The 
proposed garages would be large enough to be able to park a vehicle inside and as such, 
the proposed development would provide 112 spaces. 
 
It is acknowledged that this is above the maximum of 99, but given the various comments 
on the difficulty of parking near the site during school start and finish times, it is considered 
that the level of parking provision would be acceptable in this instance. Therefore, the 
proposed development would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and SPD11.  
 
Other matters 
 
Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service (GMFRS) 
The applicant has confirmed that the proposed emergency access from School Lane would 
be in accordance with the technical requirements set out in the consultation response from 
the GMFRS (e.g. droppable bollards at either end/3.7m width). 
 
Ground conditions 
The Environmental Protection Officer and the Coal Authority do not object to the proposal, 
subject to the above noted conditions. 
 
Air quality 
The Environmental Protection Officer has no objection to the proposal, subject to the 
inclusion of a condition relating to the installation of electric vehicle charging points.  
 
Drainage 
Neither the Lead Local Flood Authority or United Utilities object to the proposal, subject to 
conditions relating to surface water drainage scheme, culvert diversion works and foul 
drainage. 
 
Waste Management 
Each proposed dwelling would be adequately provided for the storage of waste and 
recycling facilities with collection point pertaining to unadopted streets. 
 
Planning obligations 
Recreation - A contribution of £116,011.46 would be required towards recreation in 
accordance with Policy RT2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD1. 
 
Affordable Housing - The proposed development would provide 10 affordable units, which 
would equate to 25% of the total number of units in accordance with Policy H4/1 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan and SPG5.  
 
Of the 10 affordable units, 3 (25%) would be provided as First Homes at a 30% discount.  
 
Of the other 7 affordable units, 1 would be available for home ownership as per NPPF 
requirements.  
 
The affordable units are located in different areas of what is a relatively modest site and as 
such, would comply with the policy requirement for pepper potting throughout.   
 
Off-site biodiversity mitigation - As noted above, the proposal generates a requirement to 
replace 2.80 biodiversity units, translating into a contribution of £42,000, which would be 
allocated to a site known as Walker's Field, Chesham, in accordance with paragraph 174 of 
the NPPF. 
 
Observation on representations received 
Many of the points raised in the representations, where material, have been addressed in 
the above analysis and/or recommended conditions. 

Page 24



 
CONCLUSION 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that if regard is to 
be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the 
Planning Acts, the determination must be in accordance with the plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
The Open Space Assessment undertaken demonstrates clearly that the identified open 
space is surplus to requirements and that its redevelopment would not lead to a quantitative 
or qualitatative deficiency in the host geographical analysis area. Furthermore, the 'titled 
balance' applies and the NPPF therefore requires that planning permission should be 
granted any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole. 
 
The principle of the development is therefore acceptable. The proposal would deliver much 
needed residential development on a site within the urban area that is considered to be in a 
sustainable location. It would provide a mix of good quality market and affordable dwellings 
in a layout that would create varied and attractive streets, framed in a wider context of 
robust and extensive landscaping and open space. 
 
The above assessment indicates that the proposed development would maintain the setting 
of the Walmersley Conservation Area and nearby Non-Designated-Heritage-Asset and 
would not unacceptably undermine residential amenity, highway safety or ecological 
interests. Furthermore, it would provide contributions for biodiversity gains and off-site 
highway design works. 
 
Other constraints including drainage and flooding, contamination, coal mining risk and air 
quality impacts have been adequately addressed. 
 
On this basis, the scheme, along with the legal agreement to secure the above noted 
contributions, the development would comply with the Unitary Development Plan and the 
NPPF when considered as a whole.  
 
As such, the proposal would comply with the above policies of the Local Plan and the 
NPPF. Therefore, in accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act, the proposal merits approval. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. Subject to the requirements of the conditions below, the development hereby 

Page 25



permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved drawings 
and documents: 
Drawings: 
Location Plan (Dwg No. N1232/P/LP0) 
The Warwick - Proposed Ground & First Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/4H/1424/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Poynton - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/2H/687/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Norfolk - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/4H/1502/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Knutsford - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/3H/1056/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Disley (Formerly the Disbury Special) - Proposed FLoor Plans & Elevations 
(Dwg No. NRS/3H/934/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Davenham - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/3H/957/D2/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Dalton Semi - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/3H/938/SEMI/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Cranleigh - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/4H/1358/L2013Q/PE01  REV.A) 
The Chelford (Formerly The Chatsworth SA AFF) - Proposed Floor Plans & 
Elevations (Dwg No. NRS/AFF/3H/808/L2013Q/P01) 
The Bray - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/2H/784/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Bray (Plot 16) - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/2H/784/L2013Q/PLOT16) 
The Brancaster (Formerly the Brereton) - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations 
(NRS/4H/1169/L2013Q/PE01 B) 
The Adlington - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/4H/1119/A2P/L2013Q/PE01) 
The Abingdon - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/4H/1469/L2013Q/PE01) 
Proposed Single Detached Garage Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 13/006  REV.A) 
Proposed Detached Double Garage Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 13/010) 
 
The Henley - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/4H/1462/L2013Q/PE01  REV.A) 
The Davenham (Formerly the Dunham) - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg 
No. NRS/3H/957/HIP/L2013Q/PE01 REV.B) 
The Capesthorpe  - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/3H/947/L2013Q/PW01 REV.A) 
The Bray - Proposed Floor Plans & Elevations (Dwg No. 
NRS/2H/784/L2013Q/PE01) 
Proposed Street Scene (Dwg No. N1232/P/SS01  REV.C) 
Refuse (Bin Storage) Plan (Dwg No. N1232/P/RP01 H) 
Proposed Lighting & Installation Design Layout (Dwg No. 23370/D/01 REV.B) 
Proposed Planning Layout (Dwg No. N1232/P/PL01L) 
Proposed Materials Dispersion Plan (Dwg No. N1232/P/MP/01H) 
Proposed Landscape Structure Plan (Dwg No. M3492/PA/01/V10) 
Proposed Dwelling Separation Plan (Dwg No. N1232/DS01 REV.F) 
Proposed Car & Cycling Parking Provisions (Dwg No. N1232/P/CP01 REV.D) 
Proposed Car & Cycle Parking Provisions (Dwg No. N1232/P/CP01 REV.F) 
Proposed Affordable Housing Plan (Dwg No. N1232/P/AH01  REV.G) 
 
Documents: 
Bat Tree Assessment UES ref.UES03089/05 
Arboricultural Impact Assessment (Ref. P.1059.18 Rev. C) 
Invasive Species Method Statement (Ref. UES03089/06) 
Flood Risk Assessment (Rev. C) 

Page 26



 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

4. Following the provisions of condition 3 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out 
within timescales agreed with the Local Planning Authority; and a Site Verification 
Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each stage of the 
remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the 
first dwellinghouse. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

5. No development comprising the erection of any external walls shall take place until 
details of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the development, including the roof and the extension to the stone wall between 
points A and B on the approved Planning Layout (Dwg No. N1232/P/PL01 L), have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The 
materials to be used throughout the development shall be consistent in terms of 
colour, size and texture with the approved details. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

6. Each dwelling hereby approved shall be provided with 1 electric vehicle (EV) 
charge point (minimum 7kW*) prior to its occupation.  
*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW 
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2019 to 
be used.  
Reason. To encourage the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the 
development is sustainable. To safeguard residential amenity, public health and 
quality of life, pursuant to Section 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

7. The felling of trees called G2A, G6A, G6B, and G7 shall be carried out in 
accordance with the Bat Tree Assessment UES ref.UES03089/05 section 4.2.1 as 
already submitted with the planning application. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 

Page 27



11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

8. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in 
any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist 
has been carried out immediately prior to clearance. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 - 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

9. Prior to any vegetation clearance or earthworks, a reasonable avoidance 
measures method statement for hedgehogs shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved details shall be implemented 
prior to any vegetation clearance and remain in place for the construction phase of 
the development. 
Reason. Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Priority Species 
pursuant to Policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

10. No development shall commence until full details of a scheme for the eradication 
and/or control of Himalayan Balsam, Rhododendron, Cotoneaster spp and 
Variegated Yellow Archangel is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The approved management plan shall include a timetable for 
implementation. Should a delay of more than one year occur between the date of 
approval of the management scheme and either the date of implementation of the 
management scheme or the date of development commencing, a further site 
survey must be undertaken and submitted to the Local Planning Authority.  
Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of invasive 
species in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 - Landscape and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

11. All trees to be retained on site shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837:2012 
"Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction". The development shall 
not commence unless and until the measures required by the British Standard are 
implemented and all measures required shall remain in situ until the development 
has been completed. 
Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant 
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree 
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

12. The hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved Landscape Structure Plan (Dwg No. M3492-PA-01-V10), which shall be 
supplemented with a Portuguese Laurel to the rear boundary of plots 18 to 24. All 
planting, seeding and/or turfing shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding 
seasons following the occupation of the building(s) relating to that phase or the 
completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees, shrubs, 
hedges or plants which within a period of five years from the completion of 
development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or diseased shall 
be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species, 
unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity  and to ensure the protection of wildlife and supporting habitat and 
to secure opportunities for enhancing the site's nature conservation value, 
pursuant to policies EN6/4, EN8/2 and EN10/2 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 
Page 28



13. Development shall not commence until details of surface water drainage proposals 
have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall be in accordance with the principles set out in the submitted Flood 
Risk assessment document and must be based on the hierarchy of drainage 
options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and be designed in 
accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage 
Systems (March 2015). This must include assessment of potential SuDS options 
for surface water drainage with appropriate calculations and test results to support 
the chosen solution. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements should also 
be provided prior to occupation of the proposed development, the drainage 
schemes shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and retained 
thereafter for the lifetime of the development. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, no surface water will be permitted to drain directly or 
indirectly into the public sewer. 
Reason. To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue 
increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding, pursuant to 
policies EN5/1, EN7/3 and EN7/5 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and 
Section 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

14. Development shall not commence until details of proposed culvert diversion works 
have been submitted to and approved by the Local Local Flood Authority. Details 
shall include surveys of the existing culvert downstream of the development and 
method statements for proposed construction works 
Reason. To ensure the adequacy of the proposed discharge to the culverted 
watercourse to prevent an undue increase in surface water run-off and to reduce 
the risk of flooding, pursuant to Policy EN5/1 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan and Section 14 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

15. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no development shall 
commence unless and until full details of the following have been submitted to a 
scope and specification to be agreed on a topographical based survey of the site 
and adjacent adopted highways to the Local Planning Authority: 
1. Formation of the main site access onto Springside Road, incorporating the 

provision of adequate arrangements at the interface with the adopted highway, 
reconstruction of the northerly footway on Springside Road and alterations to 
the site boundary to form the accesses to Plots 1 & 2 and provide a 2.0m wide 
footway along the development frontage and provision of visibility splays 
appropriate for a design speed of 20mph, demarcation of the limits of the 
adopted highway, tactile paved crossing point, give-way markings and 
alterations to existing road markings (subject to the requirements of the 
scheme of 20mph traffic calming measures) and all associated highway and 
highway drainage remedial works; 

2. Formation of the access to Plots 12 - 16 and secondary emergency access 
onto School Lane/Burnley Road, incorporating the realignment of the southerly 
kerbline and footway, provision of adequate arrangements at the interface with 
the adopted highway and alterations to the site boundary to provide a 2.0m 
wide footway along the development frontage and provision of visibility splays 
appropriate for a design speed of 20mph, demarcation of the limits of the 
adopted highway, scheme of bollards clear of the southerly School 
Lane/Burnley Road footway, and all associated highway and highway drainage 
remedial works; 

3. In the event that the site access/estate roads are not to be considered for 
adoption by the Council, measures to prevent the discharge of surface water 
onto the adopted highway; 

4. In the event that any retaining structures are required that abut/are sited in 
close proximity to the adopted highway, an ‘Approval In Principle’ for the 
proposed structures, incorporating full structural, construction and drainage 

Page 29



details, calculations, pedestrian protection measures and a detailed 
construction method statement; 

5. Provision of a street lighting assessment to a scope and specification to be 
agreed for Springside Road between Walmersley Road and Brierfield Drive, 
School Lane between Walmersley Road and Burnley Road and the proposed 
residential estate roads, and, where identified, a scheme of improvements on 
the existing adopted highway; 

6. Review of need for the introduction of waiting restrictions to scope to be 
agreed on Springside Road between Walmersley Road and Brierfield Drive 
and School Lane in the vicinity of the access to Plots 12 - 16 and secondary 
emergency access, including all necessary road markings and signage; 

7. A scheme of 20mph traffic calming measures on Springside Road between 
Walmersley Road and its cul-de-sac end and the proposed estate roads, to a 
scope and specification to be agreed, incorporating, but not limited to, the 
formation of a speed tables as shown at the junction within the development, 
measures on the existing adopted highway to be agreed and all associated 
road markings and signage.  

 
The details subsequently approved shall be implemented in full to a programme 
agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway 
safety, ensure good highway design, in the interests of fire safety, ensure the 
intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent highways and maintain the 
integrity of the adopted highway, all in the interests of highway safety, pursuant to 
policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

16. In the event that it is intended for the proposed residential estate roads to be 
considered for adoption by the Council, notwithstanding the details indicated on 
the approved plans, no development shall commence unless and until full details 
of the following have been submitted on a topographical based survey of the site 
and adjacent adopted highways to the Local Planning Authority: 
1. Formation of the proposed estate roads (including any necessary land filling 

operations and method of compaction), incorporating minimum 5.5m 
carriageway and 2.0m footway widths, and secondary emergency access to a 
detail/incorporating rubbing strips/limits of adoption, to be agreed; 

2. Provision of long sections and cross sections at positions to be agreed through 
the proposed estate roads and turning heads to ensure that adoptable 
gradients will not exceed 1 in 14 for the purposes of adoption and incorporating 
a maximum 1 in 20 plateau at each junction within the development and at the 
interface with the adopted highway; 

3. Demarcation of the limits of adoption at all relevant locations; 
4. Provision of visibility splays and forward visibility envelopes appropriate for a 

design speed of 20mph at all internal junctions and bends in accordance with 
the standards in Manual for Streets with no obstructions above the height of 
0.6m within them; 

5. Swept path analysis of the proposed estate roads to ensure that an 11.85m 
(minimum) long refuse collection vehicle can pass a private car at all points, 
the bend and manoeuvre at all turning heads; 

6. Facilities for the storage of bins on collection day at the interfaces of all shared 
accesses, located clear of the future adopted highway and appropriate visibility 
splays at junctions and the back edge of the footway; 

7. Provision of a scheme of bollards and measures/boundary treatment at the 
interface of the secondary emergency access with the future adopted highway, 
incorporating foundations for the proposed 1.1m high boundary stone wall that 
do not encroach under the future adopted highway; 

8. Proposed planting/surfacing details and management/maintenance 
arrangements for all landscaped/car parking areas abutting the proposed 
adopted highway; 

9. Proposed porous/permeable shared driveway/hardstanding materials and/or 

Page 30



measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the adopted highway. 
 
The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme 
and to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority, with the secondary 
emergency access made available for use prior to occupation of any dwelling. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway 
safety, ensure good highway design, in the interests of fire safety, ensure the 
intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent highways and maintain the 
integrity of the adopted highway, all in the interests of highway safety, pursuant to 
policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

17. No development shall commence unless and until a ‘Construction Traffic 
Management Plan’ (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
1. Photographic dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways leading to 

and abutting the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required 
following construction of the development and as a result of statutory 
undertakers connections to the site; 

2. Access route for all construction vehicles to the site from the Key Route 
Network; 

3. Access point/arrangements for construction traffic, incorporating all temporary 
works required to facilitate access for construction vehicles; 

4. If proposed, details of site hoarding/gate positions, taking into consideration 
the need to maintain adequate levels of visibility onto the adopted highway; 

5. The provision, where necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection 
measures on the highway; 

6. A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in the 
vicinity of the site and its access; 

7. Confirmation of hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 
8. Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 

of the site and/or measures to control/manage delivery vehicle manoeuvres; 
9. Parking on site or on land within the applicant’s control of operatives' and 

construction vehicles, together with storage on site of construction materials; 
10. Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto 

the adjacent adopted highways as a result of the groundworks operations or 
carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and 
measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations. 

 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the 
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the 
duration of the construction period. 
Reason. To mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the 
proposed development on the adjacent highways, ensure adequate off street car 
parking provision and materials storage arrangements for the duration of the 
construction period and that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited 
material from the ground works operations., in the interests of highway safety, 
pursuant to policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

18. In the event that it is not intended for the proposed residential estate roads to be 
considered for adoption by the Council, no development shall commence unless 
and until details of the proposed arrangements for future management and 
maintenance of the proposed estate road within the development have been 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The estate roads shall 
thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved management and 
maintenance details until such time as a private management and maintenance 
company has been established. 
Reason. This is required prior to the commencement of development to ensure 
that the unadopted estate roads serving the development is maintained to an 
acceptable standard in the interest of residential/highway safety, to ensure a 

Page 31



satisfactory appearance to the highways infrastructure serving the development, 
and to safeguard the visual amenities of the locality and users of the highway 
pursuant to policies H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

19. The various turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided 
before the areas of the development to which they relate are first occupied and the 
areas used for the manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free 
of obstruction at all times. 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety, pursuant to policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

20. A minimum hardstanding of 5.5m measured between the highway boundary and 
any proposed garage doors shall be provided to the satisfaction of the Local 
Planning Authority and thereafter maintained. 
Reason. To enable a vehicle to stand clear of the highway whilst the garage doors 
are opened and to allow adequate space to maintain a vehicle clear of the 
highway in the interests of pedestrian safety, pursuant to policies H2/2, EN1/2 and 
HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

21. Where dwellings are constructed without a garage, minimum hardstanding lengths 
of 5.0m at all dwellings (10.0m when in tandem) shall be provided to the 
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and thereafter maintained. 
Reason. To enable a vehicle to stand clear of the highway whilst the garage doors 
are opened and to allow adequate space to maintain a vehicle clear of the 
highway in the interests of pedestrian safety, pursuant to policies H2/2, EN1/2 and 
HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

22. The communal car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced and 
made available for use to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the each dwelling/part of the site to which it relates being occupied and thereafter 
maintained at all times. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

23. Bin storage arrangements shall be provided within the curtilage of each dwelling in 
accordance with the approved Refuse Plan (Dwg No. N1232/P/RP01 H) before 
first occupation of the respective dwelling. 
Reason. To ensure that adequate bin storage arrangements are provided within 
the curtilage of each dwelling, pursuant to policies H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 

24. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015, (or any Order revoking or 
re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no development within Class A 
to E of Part 1 of  Schedule 2 shall be carried out at Plots 1 and 4 to 11 (inclusive), 
unless permission is granted by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. The excluded types of development would not be appropriate due to the 
restricted size of the external amenity areas and proximity to existing neighbouring 
dwellings, pursuant to policy H2/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

25. Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 2, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) 
(or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification), no 
gates, fences, walls or other means of enclosure shall be erected adjacent to the 
northern boundary of the rear garden, which shall be fined by a Laurel hedge as 
required by Condition 12 of this planning permission. 
Reason. To enable the Local Planning Authority to regulate and control the 
development of land in order to protect the character and appearance of the 
Walmersley Conservation Area, pursuant to policy EN2/2 of the Bury Unitary 

Page 32



Development Plan. 
 
For further information on the application please contact Dean Clapworthy on 0161 253 
5317

Page 33



68055 

Viewpoints: 

 

 

P
age 34



68055 

Photos  

P
age 35



68055 

 

 

P
age 36



68055 

Aerial view of site from the east 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 37



68055 

Surrounding residential character 

 

 

 

 

P
age 38



LOCATION PLAN

25/11/21 SJM 1:1250 @ A3
N1232/P/LP01 -

Morris Homes (Group) Limited

Fax: (0845) 833 1845
Tel: (01625) 544 444
Cheshire SK9 5NW
Wilmslow

Morland House
Altrincham Road

SPRINGSIDE ROAD, BURY

P
age 39

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
722

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
130.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
694

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
BARNSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
715

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
127.1m

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
125.9m

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
PO

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
65

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
Old Brewers Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
659

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
WALMERSLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
15

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
SCHOOL LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
55a

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
TRAWDEN DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
SPRINGSIDE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
VICARAGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
21

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
81

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
El Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
732

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
708

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
680

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
848

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
840

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
678

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
681

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
OLD LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
62

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
124.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
11

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
GUISELEY CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
33

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
17 to 26

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Lych Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
1a

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Chadwick Fold

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
669

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
17

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
31

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
LB

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
3

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
651

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
720

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
WALTON DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
Christ Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
BRIERFIELD

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
BURNLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
The Lee

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
126.5m

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Christ Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
LEE STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
734

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
128.0m

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
706

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
24

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
3a

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
13

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
124.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
736

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
635

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
839

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
41

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
125.3m

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
55b

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
4

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
BURNLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
BRIERFIELD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Job. Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Dwg. Title

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
checked

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
date

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
drawn

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
scale

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
dwg.no

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
rev

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
INIT



E

M

E

R

G

E

N

Y

 
A

C

C

E

S

S

4
1

A

D

L
 

4
0

N

O

R

F

3
9

Proposed 1.1m high stone wall

between points A-B to match

existing between points B-C

A

B

C

3

6

D

A

L

T

3

7

D

A

L

T

D

G

+

1

2

D

A

L

T

3

D

A

L
T

S
G

+

2

4

2

3

K

N

U

T

2

2

A

D

L

 

2

1

2

0

A

B

I
N

G

1

9

1

8

K

N

U

T

A
D

L
 

9

1
1

1
0

3

5

C

A

P

E

S

3

4

D

I
S

1
7

A
D

L

D

G

+

3

4

3

5

3

7

3

6

V

V

Proposed Culverted watercourse

Proposed Culverted watercourse

Raised traffic

calming table

D

G

+

2m Wide bitmac footpath

provided on Springside Road

along development frontage

V

3
8

B

R

A

N

C

S
G

+

A

D

L

3

3

3

3

3

2

3

0

2

6

3

3

A

D

L

 

S

G

+

3

1

3

1

3

2

3

0

2

9

2

7

D

I
S

D

I
S

2

9

P

O

Y

A

F

F

3

0

3

1

3

2

2

5

A

B

I
N

G

2

9

2

8

P

O

Y

A

F

F

2

8

2

7

7

N
O

R
F

6

A
B

I
N

G

8

A
B

I
N

G

C
H

L

A
F

F

B
R

A
Y

A
F

F

16

B
R

A
Y

A
F

F

B
R

A
Y

A
F

F

B
R

A
Y

A
F

F

1
5

1
4

1
2
a

1
2

D

G

+

4

H

E

N

L

5

N
O

R
F

N

O

R

F

N

O

R

F

S
G

+

D
A

V

S
G

+

C
R

A
N

1
2

1
2

1
4

1
5

1
6

1
6

1
5

1
4

1
2
a

1
2
a

Bin collection

hard standing

(min. 10 bins)

Bin collection

hard standing

(min. 6 bins)

Bin collection

hard standing

(min. 6 bins)

D

A

V

D

A

V

2

7

2

8

B

R

A

Y

B

R

A

Y

A

F

F

B

R

A

Y

A

F

F

A

F

F

Bin collection

hard standing

(min. 8 bins)

Proposed 0.45m high timber post & rail divisional fence

Proposed 1.8m high/0.44m square brick piers at 2.0m ctrs with

0.65m high brick dwarf wall/feather edged borded infill panels

Proposed 1.8m high feather edge boarded timber screen fence

Proposed 1.8m high feather edge boarded timber screen fence

Proposed 0.45m high timber 'V'-rail fence

Proposed dwelling to be built opposite hand

with P.C.C. posts & gravel boards

W/F

Proposed brick built garage

Proposed dwelling

B

O

L

L

B

O

L

L

SF2

SF1

LEGEND

Common areas of shared drives in contrasting material or

kerb edgings to deliniate shared drive area

REV DESCRIPTION DATE INIT

Job. Title

Dwg. Title

checkeddate drawn scale dwg.no rev

Morris Homes (North) Limited

Fax: (0845) 833 1845
Tel: (01625) 544 444
Cheshire SK9 5NW
Wilmslow

Morland House
Altrincham Road

LN1232/P/PL011:500@A2SJM08/10/21

PLANNING LAYOUT

SPRINGSIDE ROAD, BURY

A Position of plots 18-22 amended to enable turning head size to be increased adjacent plot 22. Raised

06/01/22 SJMtraffic calming table and bin collection ploint opposite plot 10 added following consultants comments.

B Proposed low stone wall position indicated on North Western boundary. 23/02/22 SJM

C Layout re-planned to take into account As Built location of existing culvert. 07/10/22 SJM

D Layout re-planned to take into account Highways comments. 27/10/22 SJM

E

15/12/22 SJM

Planning and Highways comments incorporated including - Position of plots 14-16 amended to increase aspect

distance to 12 Barnside. Access provided to rear of plots 14-16 and existing boundary wall.  Plot 1 handed to

provide forward visibility off driveway. Roof configuration to plots 1, 16 & 24 amended to improve amenity of

private rears gardens to 2, 10, 12 Barnside and 14 Old Brewers. Drive arrangement to plots 22-26 & 38-41

amended. House type substitution to plots 6, 38 & 39. Schedule of accommodation updated accordingly.

F Emergency access arrangement updated to take into account Highways comments. 11/01/23 SJM

G Layout updated in line with LPA comments, including updated Affordable housing mix. 15/02/23 SJM

H Layout updated in line with LPA comments (shared parking arrangement to plots 29-33 amended).24/02/23 SJM

J Layout updated in line with Highways comments (bin collection points to plots 12-16, 22-24, 29-33 & 39-41).20/03/23 SJM

K Handing and roof configuration of plots 1 and 24 amended.  Shared parking arrangement to plots 27-33 

28/06/23 SJMupdated with additional landscaped areas provided.

L Shared parking arrangement to plots 29-33 updated. 07/07/23 SJM

P
age 40

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
BARNSIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
Old Brewers Court

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
6

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
55a

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
SPRINGSIDE ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
55

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
VICARAGE CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
14

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
8

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
124.4m

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
17 to 26

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Lych Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
12

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
51

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
53

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Christ Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Christ Church

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
16

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
9

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
El

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
Vicarage

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
1

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
Sub Sta

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
55b

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
2

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
BURNLEY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
BRIERFIELD DRIVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
133.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
134.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
132.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
132.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
132.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
134.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
132.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
133.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
PS

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
TP

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
MH

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
300%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
300%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
150%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
300%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
300%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
???%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
???%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
150%%C

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
JLP1

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
JLP2

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
STN1

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
STN2



P
age 41



GROUND FLOOR PLAN
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

8292

1
0

2
1

8

8
2

5
0

8292

DINING

GARAGE

ST

E.S.

W.C.

KITCHEN

LOUNGE

HALL

ST

UTILITY

BED 3

BED 2

LANDING

BED 1

BATH

BED 4

MILLIMETRES

SCALE BAR 1:100

1,000
0

5,000 10,000 15,000
MILLIMETRES

STANDARD CGI REV (-)

Planning Layout

SK NRS/4H/1119/A2P/L2013Q/PE01FEB 21 1:100@A2 A

New Wardrobe Specification  

1119 SQ FT
PART L 2013Q

THE ADLINGTON

(FORMERLY THE APPLETON 2 PLUS)

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION

RDL
26.10.21

A

P
age 42



W.C.

UTILITY

DINING

LOUNGE

KITCHEN

GARAGE

BATH

BED 2

BED 1

ST

E.S.

GROUND FLOOR PLAN
FIRST FLOOR PLAN

10
21

8

8242
8242

69
34

ST

HALL

BED 3

LANDING

1056 SQ FT

THE KNUTSFORD

PART L 2013Q

(FORMERLY THE RUFFORD 2 PLUS)

RDL NRS/3H/1056/L2013Q/PE01DEC 20

New Wardrobe Specification

Planning Layout

-

MILLIMETRES

SCALE BAR 1:100

1,000 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 MILLIMETRES

STANDARD CGI REV (-)

1:100@A2

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION

P
age 43



P
age 44



9300

9300

97
7211

66
5

LOUNGE

HALL

WC

KITCHENFAMILY

GARAGE
BED 2

BED 4

BED 1

BED 3

LANDING

GROUND FLOOR LAYOUT FIRST FLOOR LAYOUT

DINING

UTILITY

ST

BATH

E.S.

W2-Q

MILLIMETRES

SCALE BAR 1:100

1,000 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 MILLIMETRES

STANDARD CGI REV (-)

1469sq.ft

SS NRS/4H/1469/L2013Q/PE01MAR 21 1:100@A2 A

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION

RDL03.11.21A
.

P
age 45



Elec

LOUNGE

W.C

KITCHEN/DINING

BATH

BED 2

BED 1

LANDING

WROBE

SKJun 21 -

Morris Homes (Group) Limited

Fax: (0845) 833 1845
Tel: (01625) 544 444
Cheshire SK9 5NW

Wilmslow
Morland House
Altrincham Road

1:100@A2 NRS/2H/687/L2013Q/PE01

687sq.ft

P
age 46



8082

10
52

7

8082

84
27

DINING
FAMILY

HALL

WC

UTILITY

LOUNGE

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

ST

BATH

BED 2

BED 1

BED 4

BED 3

ST

KITCHEN

LANDING

E.S.

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Gas Elec

extract

MILLIMETRES

SCALE BAR 1:100

1,000 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 MILLIMETRES

STANDARD CGI REV (-)

Planning Layout
New Wardrobe Specification

1358sq.ftPART L 2013Q

THE CRANLEIGH

SS NRS/4H/1358/L2013Q/PE01FEB 21 1:100@A2 A

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION

RDL28.10.21A BED 3 WINDOW REPOSITIONED TO SUIT WARDROBE.

P
age 47



D2-Q

Morris Homes (Group) Limited

Fax: (0845) 833 1845
Tel: (01625) 544 444
Cheshire SK9 5NW

Wilmslow
Morland House
Altrincham Road

THE BRAY

PART L 2013Q

SKJun 21

New Wardrobe Specification

Planning Layout

-1:100@A2 NRS/2H/784/L2013Q/PE01

784sq.ft

P
age 48



elec

DINING

LIVING ROOM

KITCHEN

HALL

WC

ST

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 2

ST

BATH

LANDING

BEDROOM 1

E.S.

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

9
4

5
0

5500 5500

9
4

5
0

934 sq.ft

THE DISLEY

PART L 2013Q

(FORMERLY THE DIDSBURY SPECIAL)

RDL NRS/3H/934/L2013Q/PE01FEB 21

New Wardrobe Specification

Planning Layout

-

MILLIMETRES

SCALE BAR 1:100

1,000
0

5,000 10,000 15,000
MILLIMETRES

STANDARD CGI REV (-)

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION

1:100@A2

P
age 49



Stretcher course
projecting 20mm

HALL

LOUNGE

UTILITY

ST KITCHEN

W.C.

DININGFAMILY

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

9275

10
01

2

ST

FIRST FLOOR PLAN
1424 SQ FT

RDL NRS/4H/1424/L2013Q/PE01DEC 20 A

MILLIMETRES

SCALE BAR 1:100

1,000 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 MILLIMETRES

STANDARD CGI REV (-)

1:100@A2

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION

RDL29.10.21A

P
age 50



FIRST FLOOR PLAN

1
1

7
1

5

9442 9442

GROUND FLOOR PLAN

7
4

8
1

W.C.

HALL

ST

UTILITY

BED 3

BED 2

LANDING

BED 1

BATH

BED 4

GARAGE

KITCHEN

LOUNGE

FAMILY

DINING

ES

Gas
Elec

MILLIMETRES

SCALE BAR 1:100

1,000
0

5,000 10,000 15,000
MILLIMETRES

STANDARD CGI REV (-)

Planning Layout

New Wardrobe Specification

1502sq.ft
PART L 2013Q

THE NORFOLK

SS NRS/4H/1502/L2013Q/PE01MAR 21 1:100@A2 -

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION

P
age 51



LOUNGE
HALL

STUDY

DINING

UTILITY

FAMILY

KITCHEN

ST

WC

GROUND FLOOR PLAN FIRST FLOOR PLAN

8850

81
50

BED 3

BED 2

BED 1

BED 4

LANDING

BATH

FIRST FLOOR PLAN

8850

81
50

E.S.

PART L 2013Q

NRS/4H/1462/L2013Q/PE01

New Wardrobe Specification

Planning Layout

A

MILLIMETRES

SCALE BAR 1:100

1,000 0 5,000 10,000 15,000 MILLIMETRES

STANDARD CGI REV (-)

1:100@A2SKFEB 21

THE HENLEY

1462 SQ FT

FRONT ELEVATION

REAR ELEVATION SIDE ELEVATION 

SIDE ELEVATION

RDL
28.10.21

A

P
age 52



PART L 2013Q

1169 SQ FT

RDL NRS/4H/1169/L2013Q/PE01MAR 22

New Wardrobe Specification

Planning Layout

B1:100@A2

THE BRANCASTER 

(FORMERLEY THE BRERETON)

METERS REPOSITIONED.

P
age 53



ext

Morris Homes (Group) Limited

Fax: (0845) 833 1845
Tel: (01625) 544 444
Cheshire SK9 5NW

Wilmslow
Morland House
Altrincham Road

THE BRAY

PART L 2013Q

SKJun 21

New Wardrobe Specification

Planning Layout

-1:100@A2 NRS/2H/784/L2013Q/PLOT16

784sq.ft

PLOT 16

P
age 54



ST

BATH

Morris Homes (Group) Limited

Fax: (0845) 833 1845
Tel: (01625) 544 444
Cheshire SK9 5NW

Wilmslow
Morland House
Altrincham Road

808sq.ft

RDL NRS/AFF/3H/808/L2013Q/P01OCT 22 NTS -

(FORMERLY THE CHATSWORTH SA AFF)

GROSS AREA 75.02sq.m/808sq.ft

P
age 55



KITCHEN

WC

DINING

LIVING ROOM

ST

BEDROOM 3

BATH

LANDING

E.S.

HALL

elec

947sq.ft

RDL NRS/3H/947/L2013Q/PE01FEB 21 A

Morris Homes (Group) Limited

Fax: (0845) 833 1845
Tel: (01625) 544 444
Cheshire SK9 5NW

Wilmslow
Morland House
Altrincham Road

1:100@A2

P
age 56



P
age 57



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
  
 
Ward: Bury East - Redvales Item   02 

 
Applicant: Mrs Lauren Cohen 
 
Location: Rostrevor Hotel, 146-148 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 0TL 

 
Proposal: Change of use from hotel (C1) to 2 no. 9 bedroom (single occupancy) HMOs (Sui 

Generis) 
 
Application Ref:   69735/Full Target Date:  02/08/2023 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application site is the Rostrevor Hotel on Manchester Road, opposite Manchester Road 
Park. It compromises an imposing four-storey building (3 floors and a Basement), which is 
the combination of No.148 (Rostrevor) and No.146 (Belgrave) Manchester Road. The 
application site was historically built as two large semi-detached dwellings with single storey 
outriggers.  The use of the property has been in use as a Hotel since at least 1995. 
 
The application site is located on Manchester Road, which is predominantly residential, with 
Manchester Road Park directly opposite, and Holly Cross College and Sixth Form college 
diagonally opposite. 
 
The Property was constructed in 1895 in red brick with white sash windows framed with 
stone heads and cills. The most prominent and attractive original features of the building are 
the bay fronted windows on the ground and first floor of the front elevation and the design 
details of the front elevation. The main entrance is accessed via a set of steps at the front 
facing Manchester Road. In addition, there are two access doors on the rear elevation. 
 
To the rear of the building are two separate garden areas, bin stores and a private car park 
providing twelve car parking spaces (arranged in tandem), accessed from Back Manchester 
Road West, an adopted road. 
 
The building is considered to be a non-designated heritage asset given its local importance 
as a historical building.  The property is identified on the Council's draft list of 
non-designated Heritage Assets. 
 
The proposal seeks to re-create the two properties, and have 9 bedrooms within each of the 
properties, therefore 18 bedrooms (single occupancy) in total. External changes are 
proposed to the rear outrigger of the outrigger assocaited with 146 Manchester Road, 
relocating a doorway in the side elevation of its single storey outrigger to serve the kitchen 
areas, rather than the proposed living room area.  
 
The plans have been amended during the course of the application to retain the ground 
floor patio doors on the rear elevation and also amendments have been made to the rear 
car park to provide a safer parking area which allows refuse bins to be moved freely through 
the car park on collection days. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
Rostrevor Hotel 
09230/79: Additional use of premises for catering for functions, conference and similar type 
meetings - Refused, 15 March 1980 
 
146 Manchester Road 

Page 59



01142/74: Conversion of House into 4 Flats - Approved, 24 April 1975 
05074/77: Change of use, flats to guest house - Approved with Conditions, 10 November 
1977 
 
148 Manchester Road 
04980/77: Change of use, house to guest house. Approved with Conditions, 10 November 
1977 
 
Publicity 
The proposals have been advertised by Site Notices posted to the front and rear of the 
application site and all surrounding neighbours have been notified by letter. 
 
4 representations have been received raising the following objections: 
 

• Asserts that approval of such applications to turn properties in to HMO's is the return of 
slum housing. 

• Concerned that there is insufficient parking for at least 18 new residents within the area 
and that this will cause a significant issue to residents. 

• Questions how parking will be managed. 

• Concerned that a historic local building will lose much of it original features and 
character in the conversion to a large HMO.  

• Asserts that there is not the need nor want for this development in this area  

• Notes there is at least one HMO directly behind the property 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Adult Care Services - No comments or observations received. 
 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the car park and bin storage being installed as 
per the amended plans. 
 
Conservation Officer - No objections. 
 
Environmental Health - Pollution Control No comments or observations received. 
 
Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity - No comments or observations received. 
 
Waste Management - No objections, subject to the refuse storage provision being provided 
in accordance with the amended plans. 
 
Housing - Public Protection - No comments or observations received. 
 
The Coal Authority - No comments or observations received. 
 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Not applicable. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/4 Conversions 
EN1 Built Environment 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
SPD13 Conversion of Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 

Page 60



policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle of Development 
The application site is a commercial property, currently run as a Hotel, the Rostrevor Hotel 
that falls within the Use Class C1 (Hotels). The applicant is looking to purchase the 
property and change it into two 9 bedroom properties for housing in multiple occupation 
occupation (HMO) purposes.   
 
The Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) puts uses of land and buildings into 
various categories known as 'Use Classes'.  Use Class C4 (Houses in multiple 
occupation) is limited to houses with no more than six residents. Therefore, houses in 
multiple occupation with more than six residents, as is the case here, become a ‘sui 
generis’ use, which requires planning permission. 
 
There are no local or national planning policies preventing the loss of the commercial use 
of this property. 
 
In terms of converting the property into a HMO use, the National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) sets out the governments’ objective of significantly boosting the supply 
of homes in all kinds of size and tenures.  With regard to HMOs, the conversion of large 
houses into flats or bedsits can make an important contribution to the local housing stock 
and can utilise space more efficiently. 
 
UDP Policy H1/2 of the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) states that the Council will have 
regard to various factors when assessing a proposal for residential development, including 
whether the proposal is within the urban area, the availability of infrastructure and the 
suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, the nature of the local environment and the 
surrounding land uses.  
 
Taking account of the above, the application site is within the boroughs urban area, on a 
main transport route that is within walking distance of the town centre, Bus Stops and the 
Tram Station, and is therefore suitably located for new housing. The proposed 
development is therefore acceptable in principle subject to the other matters raised within 
UDP Policy H1/2 and UDP Policy H2/4 (Conversions) and other relevant Local Plan 
Policies. 
 
The requirements of the relevant UDP policies and Supplementary Planning Documents 
will be discussed throughout this report. 
 
Impact on Heritage Asset(s) 
The property dates from about 1910 and is considered to be a Non-Designated Heritage 
Asset (NDHA). It is a fine example of a late Victorian, early Edwardian, town house. It is 
largely unaltered externally and contributes to the strong group value of the row which 
forms an attractive group of properties that are considered to be a NDHA which all have 
the same appearance. 
 
Paragraph 203 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that the effect on 
an application on the significance of a non-designated heritage asset should be taken into 
account in determining the application.  It further states:  
 
"In weighing applications that directly or indirectly affect non-designated heritage assets, a 
balanced judgement will be required having regard to the scale of any harm or loss and the 
significance of the heritage asset" 

Page 61



 
The chief aspect of significance is the architectural interest of the front elevation and the 
decoration of the front elevation and decoration of the stairs and hall and the front rooms of 
the historic property.  The rear outrigger is of the least significance, which would have 
been in-fitting with the staff quarters and the 'working' side of the property.  
 
Officers note local residents concerns about the loss of internal historic features of the 
property.  Whilst Officers share these concerns, internal works to unlisted buildings do not 
constitute development and can thus be undertaken without planning permission. 
Therefore, there are no justified reasons to resist the application on this basis. 
 
Notwithstanding this, the submitted Heritage Assessment states that the proposal retains 
the architectural detail to the historic fittings in the entrance way, hall stairs and front rooms 
on the ground floor, indicating the higher significance of these rooms, which include 
staircases, moulded cornices, dado rails, door cases and moulded skirtings.  In order to 
comply with fire regulations as a Hotel, partitions were installed at the top of the stairways, 
at the back of the hallways and, to provide fire protection, ‘doorways behind doorways’ 
were installed to the principal rooms on the ground floor.   
 
This application proposes to remove the modern partition installations without causing 
damage to the historic walls and features.  The application proposes to reinstate the 
dividing wall that existed between nos. 146 and 148.  Modern walls within the property 
include the ensuite bathroom walls, most of which are to remain in situ. 
 
Overall, internal alterations and changes to the original layout of the building are proposed 
to be kept to a minimum to ensure original features would not be removed or damaged as 
part of the proposed works. 
 
Turning to the external works proposed, the submitted plans indicate the garden area at 
the frontage of the property would be retained and maintained as existing and that no 
changes are proposed to the front elevation of the existing property. 
 
To the rear elevation, the proposal seeks permission to re-position a doorway in the side 
elevations of the outrigger facing no. 146 Manchester Road serving the proposed kitchen 
areas in that part of the existing property.  This proposed doorway is considered to be a  
minor alteration which would not cause significant harm to this non-designated heritage 
asset, and provided the repositioned doorway is given a stone head and cill  would appear 
as a sympathetic additions.  A stone head and cill for this re-positioned doorway can be  
secured by a recommended planning condition. 
 
The ground floor of this and neighbouring properties all have the same openings which are 
therefore a historical feature of this group of properties.  As initially submitted the 
application proposed to change the rear ground floor double door openings into windows, 
which would have detracted from the rear elevation of this locally listed building(s).  
Officers have therefore secured amendments to the rear elevation of the property to  
ensure the existing ground floor openings on the rear elevation of the building(s) are 
retained so the appearance of the rear elevation of the property is retained. 
 
The rear tarmaced car park will be retained as part of the proposals and laid out more 
formally than exists to include car parking, parking for powered two-wheel vehicles and 
bicycles.  
 
Turning to local residents' concerns about the loss of internal historic features of the 
property, whilst Officers share residents concerns; internal works to unlisted buildings can 
be undertaken without planning permission, and therefore the Council has no jurisdiction 
over the proposed internal works and therefore there are no justified reasons to resist the 
application on this ground.   
 
Based on all of the above, the proposals would maintain the appearance of the building(s).  

Page 62



The proposed doorway within the rear outrigger of no. 146 is considered to be a minor 
alteration which can be undertaken sympathetically and therefore harm to the 
non-designated heritage asset would be minimal.   
 
Proposed Conversion 
UDP Policy H2/4 recognises that the conversion of buildings to HMOs can, in some cases, 
raise issues such as parking, residential amenity and impact on character and appearance 
of an area. This policy states that applications for the conversion of a building into a house 
of multiple occupation will be considered with regard to the following: 
 

• the effect on the amenity of neighbouring properties through noise, visual intrusion, the 

• position of entrances, impact of parking areas, extensions and fire escapes; 

• the general character of the area and the existing concentration of flats 

• the amenity of occupants; 

• the effect on the streetscene of any changes to the external appearance of the building; 

• car parking and servicing requirements. 
 
This policy is further supported by Supplementary Planning Document 13: 'Conversion of 
Buildings to Houses in Multiple Occupation' (SPD13) that seeks to ensure that proposals 
for HMOs do not have a detrimental effect on the amenity of surrounding residents through 
noise, visual intrusion, the position of entrances, impact of parking areas, extensions and 
fire escapes.  
 
Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
SPD 13 states that the Council will seek to avoid proposals that would lead to loss of 
neighbouring occupants' privacy.  
 
Rear elevations of properties on Inman Street overlook the application site and are within 
20m of the application site.  This separation distance will ensure no direct overlooking of 
occupiers of Inman Street would occur. 
 
Nos. 144 Manchester Road is located to the north of the application site. No. 150 
Manchester Road is located to the south of the application site. Both neighbouring 
properties are within residential use (Class C3). The proposed doorways in the single 
storey outriggers would have an outlook into each of the neighbouring rear outriggers.  
The creation of a doorway in the side of each of the outriggers next to the existing window 
openings would not cause materially worse overlooking to both neighbouring occupiers.  
The proposal is therefore considered to accord with UDP Policy H2/4 and SPD13 in 
relation to its effect on neighbouring properties. 
 
Effect on Street Scene and the Character of the area 
UDP Policies EN1/1 (Visual Amenity), EN1/2 (Townscape and Built Design) and H2/4 
(Conversions) are relevant in the determination of this planning application. These require 
all proposals to be sympathetic to the host building, the street scene and the character of 
the area in which properties are set.  
 
The property is visible from Manchester Road, Manchester Road Park, and the street that 
runs along the rear of the property, the rear of properties on Inman Street and from 
neighbouring properties. 
 
No changes are proposed to the front of the property. The rear elevations of the building(s) 
would also be retained.  The proposed new doorways in the side elevations of the 
outbuildings could be incorporated into the building sympathetically.   
 
The front garden area facing Manchester Road is to be retained. 
 
For the above reasons, the proposal is considered to accord with the above-mentioned 
UDP policies. 
 

Page 63



In terms of the proposals impact on the character of the area and the concentration of 
HMO properties (Policy H2/4), there is a 6-bed HMO on Inman Street located to the 
north-west of the site on the street at the rear which representations have made reference 
too. A 7-bed HMO is also present at no. 221 Manchester Road which is located 
approximately 400m to the south of the application site.  Officers therefore conclude that 
the proposal would not result in an over concentration of HMO development and therefore 
the proposal accords with this aspect of UDP Policy H2/4. 
 
Car parking and servicing requirements 
UDP Policy HT2/4 (Car Parking and New Development) states the Council will require all 
applications for development to make adequate provision for their car parking and 
servicing requirements in accordance with the Council's car parking standards set out in 
SPD11 - 'Parking standards in Bury'. 
 
Paragraph 124 of the NPPF states planning policies and decisions should support 
development that makes efficient use of land, taking into account, amongst other things, 
the availability and capacity of infrastructure and services and the scope to promote 
sustainable travel modes that limit future car use. 
 
The site is located on the A56 Manchester Road, a main transport road running through 
the borough which can accommodate abnormal loads. Bus stops are located 
approximately 100m to the north of the site and 150m to the south of the site.  The 
application site is also located approximately 700m from Bury Town Centre. 
 
The proposed development would provide 7 parking spaces to the rear of the property.  
One of the car parking spaces which could be used as a disabled parking space, 2 - Two 
Wheel Powered Vehicles parking bays, 8 cycle parking spaces. and 8 x 1100 litre refuse 
bins, 4 of which would be for general refuse with 4 dedicated to the two streams of 
recycling operated by the Council.   
 
The Rostrevor Hotel is an existing Hotel. The existing car park contains 12 No. parking 
spaces on the car parking area to the rear of the property.  However, they are not laid out 
or are of the size to meet the Parking requirements set out within SPD11.  Officers have 
therefore worked with the applicant to ensure the proposed development would provide 7 
parking spaces which accord with the size requirements laid out in SPD11. One of the 
parking spaces proposed could also accommodate provision for people with special needs, 
in accordance with the requirements of UDP Policy HT5/1. 
 
Concerns have been raised over the under provision of car parking being proposed at this 
site.  However, given the highly accessible location of the site on a main transport route, 
close to Bury Town Centre and the Bus and Tram interchange, it is considered that future 
occupants of the development would not need to rely on the private car to access basic 
services, amenities and work, which will limit future car use. 
 
The proposed development also provides sufficient refuse storage provision which will be 
manoeuvred through the car park on collection days. A condition is recommended to 
ensure this refuse storage provision proposed is in place prior to occupation of either of the 
HMO's. 
 
Overall, the site is located within a sustainable/ highly accessible location which has 
access to sustainable travel modes and Bury Town Centre.  It is therefore suitable for the 
development proposed and thus accords with the above-mentioned local and national 
policies. 
 
Amenity of Future Occupants 
All residential development should accord with the minimum space standard requirements 
laid out in the nationally prescribed Space Standards. The bedrooms and bathroom 
proposed accord with the nationally prescribed space standards and all bedrooms, 
including the two proposed in the Basement area are all served with natural light, by 

Page 64



windows.  The number of bedrooms have also been reduced from 20 bedrooms in total to 
18 bedrooms in total.  This amended proposal provides a larger communal area on the 
ground floor of the properties, with the creation of a Lounge area adjacent to the 
kitchen-diner, which will benefit the amenity of future occupants and their well-being of the 
development. 
 
The property also provides outside amenity areas to the front and rear of the building, as 
well as dedicated refuse storage provision, and parking provision for a range of transport 
modes. 
 
Overall, Officers conclude that as amended, the proposed development would provide a 
satisfactory level of amenity for future occupiers of the proposed development. 
 
Conclusion 
The proposed development to use this property as 2 x 9 bedroom (single occupancy) 
Houses in Multiple Occupation is acceptable given the sites highly accessible location and 
close location to public transport connections and the services and amenities within Bury 
Town Centre and that the location around the application site is not overly concentrated by 
other HMO developments.  
 
The proposed development would also retain and be sympathetic to the external character 
and appearance of the property, a non-designated heritage asset, subject to a condition 
requiring suitable stonework around the new doorways on the rear outrigger. 
 
The proposal also provides safe and sufficient parking provision, in light of the availability 
of public transport within close proximity of the site and provides a parking space which 
would allow people with special needs to access the development.  
 
Overall, subject to the amended plans and the recommended planning conditions, the 
proposals accord with all aforementioned local and national planning policies.  It is 
therefore recommended that the application be approved. 
 
 
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 
 

 

2. This permission relates to the following plans: 
 
Drawing no. Location Plan - HM Land Registry Title Plan 
Drawing no. 01 Rev. 03: Existing and Proposed Site Plans 

Page 65



Drawing no. 01 Rev. 05: Landscaping Plan 
 
Drawing no. 01 Rev. 01: Proposed Floor Plans 
Drawing no. GF-01 - 01 Rev. 03: Proposed Areas and Dimensions - Ground Floor 
Drawing no. FF-01 - Rev. 03: Proposed Areas and Dimensions - First Floor 
Drawing no. 2F-01 - 01 Rev. 03: Proposed Areas and Dimensions - Second Floor 
Drawing no. BM-01 - 01 Rev. 03: Proposed Areas and Dimensions - Basement 
 
Drawing no. EL02 - 01: Proposed Front Elevation 
Drawing no. EL-04 - 01 Rev. 4: Proposed Rear Elevation 
Drawing no. EL06 - 01 Rev. 02: Proposed Right Elevation 
 
Except as provided for by other conditions to this permission, the development 
shall be carried out in complete accordance with the approved drawings. 
 
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
development in accordance with the policies contained within the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

3. Notwithstanding any details shown on the approved plans and the requirements of 
condition 2  [Approved Plans] of this permission, no conversion works shall take 
place until details of all windows and doors (including both new and replacement 
openings) have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Such details shall include their design, materials (including sill and lintel 
treatments and stone surrounds), finishes, colour treatment, reveals and opening 
profile. The windows and doors shall be installed in accordance with the duly 
approved details before any of the bedrooms hereby approved are first occupied, 
and shall be retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure use of appropriate materials which are sympathetic to the 
character of the building, a non-designated heritage asset. and its surroundings in 
the interests of visual amenity in accordance with the requirements of Policy EN1/1 
and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

 

4. The car parking, two-wheel motorised vehicle parking, and cycle parking indicated 
on the approved plans shall be surfaced, demarcated and made available for use 
prior to the development hereby approved being occupied and shall be retained as 
such thereafter. 
 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision, servicing and 
manoeuvring in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - 'Car 
Parking and New Development' of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

5. Within three months of any conversion works first taking place, a scheme for the 
provision of the enclosure of the bin storage areas shown on Drawing ref no. 
SP-01 01 Rev. 03 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The scheme shall include details of the height, design and 
materials of the bin stores. The bin stores shall be constructed in accordance with 
the duly approved scheme and made available for use before any of the bedrooms 
within the houses in multiple occupations hereby approved are first occupied, and 
retained as such thereafter. 
 
Reason: To ensure the provision of satisfactory facilities for the storage of refuse 
in the interests of the amenity of future occupiers and to ensure the appropriate 

Page 66



design of the refuse storage facilities within the site in accordance with the 
requirements of Policy H2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

6. Before the re-positioned door proposed on the north elevation of the rear 
outrigger, as shown on Drawing no. EL06 - 01 Rev. 02, is installed, details of its 
design, material and construction, of the natural stone head and cill, in the form of 
scale drawings and material samples/specifications, shall be submitted to and 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The works shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the agreed heads and cill details. 
 
Reason: Inadequate details of these matters have been submitted with the 
application and in order to ensure that the works preserve the special architectural 
and historic interest of the historic building, in accordance with the principles of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Claire Booth on 0161 253 5396

Page 67



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 69735

Rostrevor Hotel 146-148 Manchester Road
Bury

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

1
6
0

Shelter

1
5
7

Lodge

1
5
0

1
3
8

1
2
8

4
2

6

1
5
1

1
5
5

1
5
3

124

1
1

2

3

12

8

1
3

2
5

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

OLIVANT STREET

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

IN
M

A
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

P
A

R
L

IA
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

C
E

81.2m

81.8m

82.5m

1.

2.

3.

Page 68



69735 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

Page 69



69735 

Photo 3 

Page 70



1 1:200
EXISTING 2 1:200

PROPOSED
V STACK HOTEL SIGNAGE

146 & 148 MANCHESTER ROAD, BURY, BL9 0TL 
(CURRENTLY ROSTREVOR HOTEL)

PROJECT ADDRESS

TITLE

PROJECT NO.

SCALE

© COPYRIGHT: ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PERMISSION. ALL DIMEN-
SIONS RELATIVE TO THIS DRAWING TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DESIGNER TO BE NOTIFIED OF ANY DISCREPANCIES. SWERE 
INVERT LEVELS MUST BE VERIFIED BEFORE WORK COMMENCES. THIS DRAWING MUST  BE CHECKED AGAINST ANY OTHER 
STRUCTURAL/ SPECIALIST DRAWINGSPROVIDED. THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS IS-
SUED FOR CONSTRUCTION. ALL DIMENSIONSON THIS DRAWING ARE IN MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DATE DRAWN BY

DRAWING NO. REV

SCALE @ A4

SP-01 01 03

EXISTING & PROPOSED SITE PLANS

LC27/07/23

8 x SECURE BIKE STORAGE WITH COVERED CANOPY
   (2 . 3m X 2m)

2 x MOTORBIKE SPACES (3 . 25m X 1 . 55m)

8 X 1100 LITRE WHEELIE BINS ( 1 . 08m X 1 . 37m)

7 x CAR PARKING SPACES (2 . 4m x 5m) GRASS

HEDGES

PAVING

BUSHES / BORDER PLANTS

TARMAC

1.84m

1.
42
m

1.
55
m

3.25m

2.4m

5m

2.3m

2m

4m

3.15m

BIN 
STORES

BIN 
STORES

CYCLECYCLE

MOTORBIKEMOTORBIKE

Page 71



P
age 72



P
age 73



P
age 74



P
age 75



P
age 76



P
age 77



P
age 78



146 & 148 MANCHESTER ROAD, BURY, BL9 0TL 
(CURRENTLY ROSTREVOR HOTEL)

PROJECT ADDRESS

TITLE

PROJECT NO.

SCALE

© COPYRIGHT: ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PERMISSION. ALL DIMEN-
SIONS RELATIVE TO THIS DRAWING TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DESIGNER TO BE NOTIFIED OF ANY DISCREPANCIES. SWERE 
INVERT LEVELS MUST BE VERIFIED BEFORE WORK COMMENCES. THIS DRAWING MUST  BE CHECKED AGAINST ANY OTHER 
STRUCTURAL/ SPECIALIST DRAWINGSPROVIDED. THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS IS-
SUED FOR CONSTRUCTION. ALL DIMENSIONSON THIS DRAWING ARE IN MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DATE DRAWN BY

DRAWING NO. REV

SCALE @ A4

1 1:100
REAR ELEVATION

PROPOSED

EL-04 01 03

PROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

KO14/08/23

P
age 79



1 1:200
EXISTING 2 1:200

PROPOSED
V STACK HOTEL SIGNAGE

146 & 148 MANCHESTER ROAD, BURY, BL9 0TL 
(CURRENTLY ROSTREVOR HOTEL)

PROJECT ADDRESS

TITLE

PROJECT NO.

SCALE

© COPYRIGHT: ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED WITHOUT PERMISSION. ALL DIMEN-
SIONS RELATIVE TO THIS DRAWING TO BE CHECKED ON SITE. DESIGNER TO BE NOTIFIED OF ANY DISCREPANCIES. SWERE 
INVERT LEVELS MUST BE VERIFIED BEFORE WORK COMMENCES. THIS DRAWING MUST  BE CHECKED AGAINST ANY OTHER 
STRUCTURAL/ SPECIALIST DRAWINGSPROVIDED. THIS DRAWING MUST NOT BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION UNLESS IS-
SUED FOR CONSTRUCTION. ALL DIMENSIONSON THIS DRAWING ARE IN MILLIMETRES (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED).

DATE DRAWN BY

DRAWING NO. REV

SCALE @ A4

LAP-01 01 05

LANDSCAPING PLAN

LC27/07/23

8 x SECURE BIKE STORAGE WITH COVERED CANOPY
   (2 . 3m X 2m)

2 x MOTORBIKE SPACES (3 . 25m X 1 . 55m)

8 X 1100 LITRE WHEELIE BINS ( 1 . 08m X 1 . 37m)

7 x CAR PARKING SPACES (2 . 4m x 5m) GRASS

HEDGES

PAVING

BUSHES / BORDER PLANTS

TARMAC

1.84m

1.
42
m

1.
55
m

3.25m

2.4m

5m

2.3m

2m

4m

3.15m

BIN 
STORES

BIN 
STORES

CYCLECYCLE

MOTORBIKEMOTORBIKE

Page 80



 
 
  
 
Ward: Radcliffe - West Item   03 

 
Applicant:  Hive Homes (Greater Manchester) LLP 
 
Location: Site of the former Riverside High School, School Street, Radcliffe, M26 3BW 

 
Proposal: Residential development to erect 90 dwellings with associated parking and 

landscaping  
 
Application Ref:   69233/Full Target Date:  19/04/2023 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
It is recommended that this application is Minded to Approve subject to the signing 
and completion of a Section 106 agreement for recreation provision, affordable 
housing and off-site biodiversity mitigation, thereto in accordance with policies H2/1, 
RT2/2 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan, SPD1 and SPD5 and Section 15 of 
the National Planning Policy Framework.  If the agreement is not signed within a 
reasonable timeframe, then delegated authority is sought by the Development 
Manager to determine the application. 
 
The Development manager requests a site visit. 
 
Description 
The application site relates to 2.3ha of land which formally comprised Radcliffe High School 
site and its grounds.  The main school building has long since been demolished and the 
northern part of the site redeveloped for a school for children with special educational 
needs, known as Millwood School, which was granted planning permission in 2010.  As 
part of that application, permission was also granted in outline to develop the southern part 
of the site for a residential development. This permission was not implemented.  
 
The site is bounded by a builder's merchant to the north, the Millwood School to the west, 
traditional terraced housing to the east, single storey sheltered housing and more 
contemporary suburban housing opposing the site to the south. The site falls within the 
Radcliffe Strategic Regeneration Framework and as such is a priority housing site.  
 
The proposal is for full planning permission for a residential development comprising 90 no. 
two storey dwellings with associated parking and landscaping. There would be two vehicular 
accesses into the site, one from School Street on the southern boundary and another from 
Abden Street at the eastern boundary and two additional dedicated pedestrian from School 
Street and Ulundi Street. The dwellings would be made up of: 

• 30 no. 3 bed mews; 

• 6 no. 4 bed mews; 

• 38 no. 3 bed semi-detached; 

• 10 no. 3 bed detached; 

• 6 no. 4 bed detached. 
 
There would be 7no. house types (13 variations in total), of which all would be two storey, 
although the Newbold mews property would have accommodation in the roof space, served 
with a small dormer at the front (with a higher ridge). 
 
The finishing materials are indicated as red brick, with blue brick detailing and grey roof tiles 
with grey uPVC window frames, doors and rainwater goods, but the application states that 
precise details would be agreed by condition. 
 

Page 81



Existing boundary iron railings to School Street/Ulundi Street would be retained where 
possible. Rear gardens to plots would be enclosed by 1.8m high timber fencing and 1.8m 
brick wall and piers with timber panel infills. An acoustic fence would be erected along the 
northern boundary to the neighbouring builder's merchant. The existing western boundary 
fence to the school would be retained. 
 
The proposal has been amended to facilitate the retention of two stands of mature trees 
arranged in rows northwards from the boundary with School Street. This resulted in the 
realignment of the access road into the site from School Street westwards. The 
arrangement of dwellings fronting School Street has also been amended in addition to minor 
alterations in response to feedback from the Highway Officer. 
 
 
 
Relevant Planning History 
66307: Demolition and Site Enabling Works. Approved 22/02/2021 
 
53879: Non Material Amendment following the grant of permission 52038. Approved 
1/7/2011 
 
52038: Full planning for construction of a new primary school for children with special 
educational needs together with the construction of associated parking and external play 
areas; outline proposals to develop the remaining high school site for housing. Approved 
16/02/2010 
 
45673: Outline application - residential development including associated infrastructure & 
open space. Approve with Conditions 14/09/2007 
 
 
Publicity 
Direct neighbour notification undertaken 19/01/2023 
Press Notice undertaken 26/01/2023 
Site Notice 23/01/2023 
 
5 representations were received raising matters that can be summarised as: 
 
Access/Highways/Parking 

• The proposal would add more traffic onto the local road network. School Street is a 
narrow and very busy road, serving Millwood School with its associated heavy traffic at 
drop-off and collection times and vehicles only have one way in and out. Additionally, 
there are horse riders, cyclists and pedestrians accessing the canal and rural paths. 

• The junction at Hutchinson Way and Sion Street is already challenging and can be 
blocked. 

• A full traffic study of the area should be undertaken 

• Exit via Abden Street is hampered by the traffic lights at Blackburn Street and access 
via Lord Street would cause congestion given that this isn't light controlled. 

• Site traffic would need to be accommodated on site. Traffic associated with the previous 
demolition blocked pavements and parked poorly. 

• Traffic accessing the site from School Street has previously caused damage to 
pavements and come close to damaging private property as the turning circle is not big 
enough for larger construction vehicles (some vehicles have had to unload on the 
street). Such impacts would need to be mitigated. 

• The provision of 192 parking spaces should mitigate against overflow parking and 
having two access points, plus additional pedestrian accesses is good news, as it would 
split the pedestrian and vehicular traffic, avoiding it all being routed along School Street. 
Construction activity would need to mitigate against such impacts. 

• The parking area to the neighbouring care home should not be blocked by 
construction/loading/deliveries. 

• The documents provided contain a number of inaccuracies - we are assured this will be 
Page 82



understood by both highways & planning in the assessment. The highways officer noted 
that School Street is the most direct route from the Key Route Network, albeit there are 
a number of accesses on the opposite side of the street to consider.  

• It is stated that the plan therefore shows the adjacent access points, including School 
Court which is situated approx 25m to the east, low-rise sheltered housing (this is not 
School Court). 

 
Amenity 

• Construction activity should be time limited to mitigate against noise and disturbance. 

• The site should be made secure (fencing) to prevent anti-social behaviour. 

• The main site entrance should not be from School Street as previously it has caused 
massive disruption in relation to noise and privacy . 

• The neighbouring Millwood School is a Special School to children with complex medical 
and/or behavioural needs. Construction activities can be very distressing and disruptive 
to the children (as was found with the remediation of the land).  

• Noise and construction activities would need to be managed appropriately to ensure that 
impacts on the neighbouring care home is kept to a minimum 

 
Ecology/landscaping 

• All existing trees would be removed and these provide homes for wildlife and are 
attractive. The replacement planting must be required, although it would be many years 
before they provide the same benefits. 

 
Drainage 

• The drainage on School Street is poor. There has been sewage floods at neighbouring 
properties and United Utilities have said that the drainage system is not in good 
condition. The drainage system would need to be upgraded. 

 
Other matters 

• The location of the proposed development indicates that the rear gardens of some 
houses directly border the neighbouring school site and therefore directly overlook 
children's playgrounds and the school car park. This could present a safeguarding issue 
for the school. What measures are in place to provide a barrier against this intrusion? 

• The development has the potential to significantly improve the quality of life and 
recreational leisure facilities for the local community, residents and pupils. Section 106 
monies from the developer should be directed to improving the facilities along and 
access to the towpath of the canal.   

 
Support points 

• The development looks well laid out and the properties seem to fit in well with the 
existing character. The landscaped area fronting School Street would provide a good 
division. 

• New housing and therefore families in the neighbourhood, will create opportunities for 
the care home to receive new service users in future. Staff are mostly local too, and so 
this may aid recruitment. 

 
Due to amendments to the proposal, further direct neighbour notification was undertaken on 
21/07/2023 
 
2 further representations were received raising the following matters: 

• The developer appears to have not given due consideration to the existing properties in 
the vicinity, overstating the appropriateness of the proposal based on inaccurate 
information. 

• The proposed layout & transport plan neglects to identify the neighbouring properties 
and two further access points. 

• The revised access location places the primary access to the site directly opposite 
existing property. This will have a huge negative impact on the enjoyment of opposing 
property and it's resale attractiveness/value. 

Page 83



• Vehicles exiting the estate will cause light nuisance to the main living and sleeping 
areas at opposing property. If this was triggered by an existing domestic or business 
property, we would have just cause to claim this as a statutory light pollution nuisance - I 
feel that developer proposals should be held accountable in the same regard. 

• The placement of the junction means, according to the highway code, occupants or 
visitors to properties opposing are unable to park opposite this junction - it is an offence 
if hindering emergency services. 

• This currently occurs on a daily basis by visitors, deliveries and 'home to school 
transport', which includes disabled visitors. 

• It is suggested that a primary access point opposite Pendlebury Street, potentially with a 
mini-roundabout, would be far more suitable to the traffic flow and cause significantly 
less hazard is in the area. 

 
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section: No objection, subject to conditions relating to the formation of accesses 
(including relocation of speed cushions), footpaths, street lighting, review of waiting 
restrictions, street lighting, adherence to adoption standards (if necessary), agreement of a 
Construction Traffic Management Plan (CTMP), provision of vehicular turning facilities, 
driveways and surfacing and waste and recycling provision. 
 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land: No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land. 
 
Environmental Health - Pollution Control: No objection, subject to condition securing the 
mitigation measures set out in the Ambient Noise Assessment 
 
Environment Agency: No comments received. 
 
The Coal Authority: No objection. 
 
Waste Management: No objection. 
 
United Utilities (Water and waste): No objection, subject to a condition relating to foul and 
surface water drainage. 
 
Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity: No objection. The proposal, where 
feasible, should be designed and constructed in accordance with the recommendations and 
specification set out in the supporting Crime Impact Statement. 
 
Transport for Greater Manchester: No objection.  
 
TfGM would recommend that the development funds improved pedestrian facilities at the 
junction of Pilkington Way / Sion Street / Dale Street and that this is secured by way of 
planning condition subject to agreement with the Local Highway Authority (LHA).    
 
The site would be served by a new priority junction on School Street.  The access should 
be designed to ensure the provision of tactile paving and dropped kerbs.  Any redundant 
access points which served the former site should be reinstated as continuous footway to 
adoptable standards. A secondary access is also proposed connecting to Abden Street.  
This connection should be designed in accordance with adopted standards in liaison with 
the Local Highway Authority. 
 
TfGM would suggest that it may be beneficial for a review to be undertaken of the Traffic 
Regulation Orders in the vicinity of the development, with a view to introducing additional 
parking restrictions as appropriate, as well as ensuring adequate parking restrictions remain 
in place, and are refreshed accordingly  
 
Nearest bus stops to the site, which provide a range of services at regular intervals, are 

Page 84



around a 4 minute walk from the site and Radcliffe Bus Station around 6 minutes away. 
Radcliffe Metrolink stop is located around an 11 minute walk away. 
 
TfGM would refer to the Local Authority to determine whether the quantum of development 
triggers the requirement for a Residential Travel Plan. If not, then TfGM would recommend 
that a Travel Pack is produced for residents. It is therefore considered that there are 
genuine public transport alternatives available for future residents of the site.  
 
Planning & Building Regs consultation Fire Protection Dept Bury Fire Station (Part 
B): No objection.  
 
The Fire Service requires vehicular access for a fire appliance to within 45m of all points 
within the dwellings and the access road should be a minimum of width of 4.5m and capable 
of carrying 12.5 tonnes. There should be a suitable fire hydrant with 165m of the furthest 
dwelling. 
 
The Fire Service strongly supports the installation of domestic sprinkler systems as a 
positive measure to protect persons. At a small cost occupants’ can be given the 
reassurance of a high level of protection. 
 
Borough Engineer - Drainage Section: No comments received. 
 
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit: No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions 
relating to reasonable avoidance measures relating to bats. A contribution should be 
secured for the off-site mitigation for the loss of 2.32 biodiversity units or alternatively, more 
of the existing trees could be retained, with more ambitious targets for habitat creation on 
site. 
 
Minerals and Waste Planning Unit (Urban Vision Partnership Ltd): No comments 
provided. 
 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H4/1 Affordable Housing 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN1/5 Crime Prevention 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT4 New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD5 DC Policy Guidance Note 5: Affordable Housing 

Page 85



SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
H5 Housing Improvement 
H5/1 Area Improvement 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
ASSESSMENT 
 
Principle - Residential 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) should be treated as a material planning 
consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply 
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. The Framework 
maintains the emphasis on identifying a rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply 
position, which is made up of sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that 
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a 
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of 
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as 
many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g. 
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring 
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing 
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential developments.   
 
The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is 
an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against 
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially 
below (less than 75%) of the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be 
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the 
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and 
therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential development. 
 
Therefore, in relation to the proposed dwelling, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning 
Policy Framework states that where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the 
policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, planning 
permission should be granted unless: 
i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular 
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole. 
 
In this case the 'titled balance' applies and planning permission should be granted unless 

Page 86



the above points Para 11(d) i or ii apply. 
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The site is located within the urban area and there are residential dwellings surrounding the 
site and the proposal would not therefore conflict with the surrounding land uses. 
Appropriate infrastructure would be available and the site is located in an accessible 
location, within 8 minutes walk of Radcliffe town centre. As such, the proposed development 
would be acceptable in principle, and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF.  
 
Furthermore, as noted above, planning permission for residential development has been 
approved at the site on two separate occasions, having been considered against the same 
UDP policies that relate to the present proposal. Whilst the NPPF did not relate to those 
planning applications, the latest version indicates that planning permission should be 
granted unless paragraph 11 (d) i or ii apply. 
 
Design and layout 
H2/1 - The Layout of New Residential Development and H2/2 - The Layout of New 
Residential Development, provides the assessment criteria for detailed matters relating to 
height, appearance, density and character, aspects and finish materials.   
 
The proposed development would provide a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced 
dwellings, framing streets which would be laid out to reflect the traditional layout of terraced 
streets to the east. The proposed dwellings would be of a simple form and character, again 
to reflect the predominant residential character, although the arrangement would be of a 
lower density to facilitate vehicle parking and private and communal amenity space. 
However, the layout would form robust building lines that would result in a clear delineation 
of streets with framing dwellings and the associated curtilages. 
 
The layout of dwellings fronting onto School Street has been amended (partly to enable the 
retention of the majority of existing mature trees) to reflect the wider existing traditional 
residential character and that within the core of the proposed development. The built form 
would be framed by generous soft landscaping and retained mature trees. Similarly, the 
dwellings at proposed plots 69-75 (onto Ulundi Street) have been re-orientated to have their 
principal elevation fronting the existing street (as opposed to backing onto it and presenting 
a fenced boundary). This would reinforce the layout of the existing street. 
 
The proposed materials would reflect those existing in the wider area with brick facades, 
which would be render free with grey tiles.  
 
Existing boundary iron railings and former gate posts to School Street/Ulundi Street would 
be retained where possible. 1.8m brick wall and piers with timber panel infills would frame 
principal gateways into and within the site and close boarded timber fencing would be used 
principally to separate gardens. 
 
All of the proposed dwellings would have a side or rear gardens, which would provide a 
suitable level of private amenity space. There would be space within the side/rear gardens 
for bin storage.  
 
Given the above, the proposed development would assimilate not be a prominent feature in 
the streetscene and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity 
Neighbouring amenity 

Page 87



SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between residential properties and as such, 
would be relevant in this case. The aspect standards states that there should be a minimum 
of 20 metres between directly facing habitable windows and 13 metres between a habitable 
room window and a two storey blank wall. 
 
The separation distances between the proposed dwellings would comply with the aspect 
standards in SPD6. 
 
Concerning the relationship to existing dwellings surrounding the site, the proposed 
dwellings at plots 69-75, which have been re-orientated and re-positioned (as noted above), 
would be approximately 14m from the opposing front elevations of existing dwellings. This 
arrangement would reflect the existing layout of Ulundi Street to the immediate north and 
the relationship between opposing dwellings on other nearby terraced streets. Furthermore, 
the proposed dwellings at plots 69-75 would have small forecourt gardens that would frame 
the street on the west side and soften the character and appearance of the development. It 
is considered that the wider benefit of creating a robust and more attractive street scene 
with dwellings either side fronting it justifies the tolerance of a separation distance that 
reflects and reinforces the traditional layout. 
 
All other relationships to surrounding dwellings would meet the suggested separation 
distances. 
 
Objections refer to potential impacts on neighbouring amenity due to construction activities. 
Such matters can be controlled by agreement of a Construction Traffic Management Plan, 
to be agreed by condition. The hours of operation fall within the Environmental Pollution Act 
considerations. 
 
Other objections refer to the impact of the access into the site from School Street and the 
impact of the associated vehicles by way of noise (queuing on School Street) and head light 
nuisance to opposing dwellings. Existing dwellings on the south side of School Street front 
onto an adopted road within the urban area opposing a brownfield site that has had 
planning permission on two occasions previously (having been approved under the same 
UDP policies). Furthermore, dwellings in many urban settings oppose junctions and it is not 
an anomalous juxtaposition. Headlights on cars tend to be in a default 'dipped' position and 
dwellings typically have blinds or curtains drawn during darker hours. 
 
Similarly, the neighbouring school to the east was approved under the same planning 
permission as outline permission for residential development at the site under consideration 
and there is a significant area of landscape buffer and intervening security fencing that 
would retained. GM Police have not raised any concerns. 
 
Given the above circumstances, the proposed development would not conflict with the 
relevant policies. 
 
Occupiers amenity 
UDP Policy EN7/2 states that the Council will not permit development close to a permanent 
source of noise. 
 
Given the relationship of those dwellings at the northern part of the site adjacent to the 
boundary to the existing builder's merchant, the proposal is supported by a Noise & Building 
Envelope Assessment, which was undertaken in accordance with BS 4142 - Method for 
rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound and BS 8233:2014 - Guidance on 
sound insultation and noise reduction for buildings. 
 
The Assessment concludes that the results of the noise impact indicate that the builder's 
merchant would have a ‘low’ impact at the nearest residential receivers, subject to the 
installation of a 2m high acoustic fence for the full length of the northern boundary and 
stated construction methods. 
 

Page 88



The Council's Pollution Control Section is satisfied that subject to the implementation of the 
recommendations of the Assessment, the proposal would not have unacceptable impacts 
on occupier's amenity. 
 
The 'Technical housing standards – nationally described space standard (NDSS) (2015)' 
concerns internal space within new dwellings and is suitable for application across all 
tenures. It sets out requirements for the Gross Internal (floor) Area of new dwellings at a 
defined level of occupancy as well as floor areas and dimensions for key parts of the home, 
notably bedrooms, storage and floor to ceiling height. The requirements of this standard for 
bedrooms, storage and internal areas are relevant only in determining compliance with this 
standard in new dwellings and have no other statutory meaning or use. 
 
The standard has not been adopted as a local plan policy (given that Bury UDP dates from 
1997), but it represents a useful guide as to what may constitute an acceptable standard of 
development. 
 
The development would not meet the standards. However, the applicant notes the presence 
of developments within the vicinity of the site that have been determined and are being built 
out, or have recently been approved, where space standards have also not been met. In 
this instance, given that Bury do not currently have a local plan policy that requires 
development to adhere to NDSS and the tilted balance that needs to be applied when 
considering paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF,  the non-compliance of the dwellings with NDSS 
is not considered to be so significant that it would warrant refusal of the scheme. 
 
Accessibility, Highways and Parking 
UDP Policy EN1/2 requires the consideration of the design and appearance of access, 
parking and service provision. This is further supported by UDP Policy H2/2 that requires 
proposals to demonstrate adequate car parking provision, access for both vehicles and 
pedestrians, and provision for public transport and the existence of any public rights of way, 
and UDP Policy HT6/2 that requires developments to reduce pedestrian/vehicular conflict. 
UDP Policy HT2/4 requires all applications for development to make adequate provision for 
their car parking and servicing requirements. Supplementary Planning Document 11 
provides parking standards for developments. 
 
Objections largely refer to highway concerns as noted above.  
 
A Transport Statement has been prepared to accompany the planning application with 
further addendums in response to matters raised by TfGM and the Council's Highway 
Officer, who is aware of the nature and content of the objections. 
 
The consultation responses from TfGM and the Council's Highway Officer are reported 
above. Neither object to the proposal and recommend that the proposal is acceptable, 
subject to the conditions that would require agreement of the re-positioning of speed 
cushions and a review of waiting restrictions to ensure that access and egress into the site 
and the local highway network operates in a safe manner. Further conditions are noted 
above, which would include a requirement to make good any residual damage to the 
surrounding highway network caused by construction activity. 
 
In relation to the TfGM recommendation for a contribution for the improvement of pedestrian 
facilities at the junction of Pilkington Way / Sion Street / Dale Street, the applicant has 
submitted an assessment of the pedestrian routes from the site to facilities in and around 
Radcliffe town centre. This finds that there are other, more likely pedestrian routes into the 
town centre (than via Pilkington Way/Sion Street/Dale Street) that are more direct, well lit 
and safer, better surfaced, and some of which will be improved as part of City Region 
Sustainable Transport Settlement (particularly around Green Street/May Street/Railway 
Street). This would strengthen the applicant's assumption that School Street/Blackburn 
Street or pedestrian footbridge (via Green Street) would represent the most desirable and 
the shortest pedestrian routes to the town centre from the site. 
 

Page 89



The assessment concludes that given that other more attractive (more pedestrian friendly) 
routes are available to residents, and whilst some residents may choose to use the 
Pilkington Way/Sion Street/Dale Street junction, the numbers are likely to be low and 
therefore a contribution would not be proportional to the size and scale of the development. 
 
Given the circumstances set out by the applicant, it is not considered that it would be either 
proportionate or justified to seek the off-site mitigation works suggested by TfGM. 
 
Each dwelling would have 2 off-street parking spaces, provided either to the front or to the 
side of each property and this is considered adequate given the high accessibility of the site. 
 
Ecology and landscaping 
The objection refers to the loss of trees at the site. However, the proposal has been 
amended since the original submission and the two principal groups of trees would be 
retained in the main. 
 
A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal has been submitted.  
 
The Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) have raised no objections to the proposal, 
subject to a condition to protect bats. 
 
Section 174 of the NPPF 2021 states that the planning policies and decisions should 
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment. The site currently comprises 
mixed scrub, neutral grasslands, base ground and urban trees. 
 
The proposed development would replace this with low value ecological value habitats and 
bare ground. The ecological report notes that only partial compensation would be possible 
on site and off-site compensation would be required. The GMEU consider that the latest 
iteration of the supporting Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment (following amendment to the 
proposed layout and retention of the most significant existing trees) significantly 
over-estimates the value of the existing habitat (earlier assess methods gave higher values 
to urban trees). They have therefore advised that the habitat loss (after the introduction of a 
landscaping scheme) would equate to 2.32 biodiversity units.  
 
Given that the biodiversity baseline was established in 2021 in relation to planning 
permission 66307, this translates into a contribution of £23,200 (i.e.£10,000 x 2.32).  
 
Therefore, subject to conditions and a contribution for off-site biodiversity mitigation, the 
proposed development would not cause harm to a protected species and would be in 
accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the 
NPPF. 
 
Trees and landscaping 
An Arboricultural Constraints Appraisal has been submitted in support of the application and 
the proposal has been amended to retain a significant level of existing tree cover. 
 
The proposal is also supported by a comprehensive soft landscaping scheme, which 
includes, as mitigation for the loss of trees, the provision for the planting of a mixture of 
native as well as ornamental trees, shrubs and hedges and tree protection measures. 
 
GMEU are satisfied that the proposed replacement landscaping (in tandem with the off-site 
mitigation noted above) would be satisfactory. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development, subject to conditional control, would not harm the 
character of the area and would be in accordance with Policy EN8/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
Other matters 
 

Page 90



Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service (GMFRS) 
The applicant has confirmed that the proposal would be in accordance with the technical 
requirements set out in the consultation response from the GMFRS. 
 
Ground conditions 
The Environmental Protection Officer and the Coal Authority do not object to the proposal, 
subject to the above noted conditions. 
 
Air quality 
The Environmental Protection Officer has no objection to the proposal, subject to the 
inclusion of a condition relating to the installation of electric vehicle charging points.  
 
Drainage 
United Utilities do not object to the proposal, subject to conditions relating to a surface and 
foul water drainage scheme. 
 
Waste Management 
Each proposed dwelling would be adequately provided for the storage of waste and 
recycling facilities with collection point pertaining to unadopted streets. 
 
Planning obligations 
Recreation - A contribution of £246,319.40 would be required towards recreation in 
accordance with Policy RT2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD1. 
 
Affordable Housing - The proposed development would provide 22 affordable units, which 
would equate to 25% of the total number of units in accordance with Policy H4/1 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan and SPG5.  
 
Of the 22 affordable units, 6 (25%) would be provided as First Homes at a 30% discount.  
 
The affordable units would be adequately pepper-potted around the site and as such, would 
comply with the policy requirement for pepper potting throughout.   
 
Off-site biodiversity mitigation - As noted above, the proposal generates a requirement to 
replace 2.32 biodiversity units, translating into a contribution of £23,200, which would be 
allocated to a site known as Walker's Field, Chesham, in accordance with paragraph 174 of 
the NPPF. 
 
Observation on representations received 
Many of the points raised in the representations, where material, have been addressed in 
the above analysis and/or recommended conditions. 
 
On the specific point relating to claimed inaccuracies, the local planning authority is satisfied 
that the submitted plans and supporting information has enabled a robust assessment of the 
proposal and the potential impacts. 
 
CONCLUSION 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that if regard is to 
be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the 
Planning Acts, the determination must be in accordance with the plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
The 'titled balance' applies and the NPPF therefore requires that planning permission 
should be granted any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably 
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a 
whole. 
 
Given the status of the site, the principle of the development is acceptable. The proposal 
would deliver much needed residential development on a previously developed site within 

Page 91



the urban area that is considered to be in a highly sustainable location. It would provide a 
mix of good quality market and affordable dwellings in a layout that would create varied and 
attractive streets, framed in a wider context of robust and extensive landscaping and open 
space. 
 
Further, the development would not unacceptably undermine residential amenity, highway 
safety or ecological interests and would provide a contribution for off-site biodiversity 
mitigation. 
 
Other constraints including drainage and flooding, contamination, coal mining risk and air 
quality impacts have been adequately addressed. 
 
On this basis, the scheme, along with the legal agreement to secure the above noted 
contributions, the development would comply with the Unitary Development Plan and the 
NPPF when considered as a whole.  
 
As such, the proposal would comply with the above policies of the Local Plan and the 
NPPF. Therefore, in accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act, the proposal merits approval. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to identify 
various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal comprised 
sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and environmental 
conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. These were 
incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning condition. The Local 
Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in Paragraph 38 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. Subject to the requirements of the conditions below, the development hereby 
permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following approved drawings 
and documents: 
Drawings: 
Location plan (dwg no. SL01) 
External Works - Sheet 1 (Dwg No. 21196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-1101 P02) 
External Works - Sheet 2 (Dwg No. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-1102 P02) 
Plot Drainage - Sheet 2 (Dwg No. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-2012 P02) 
External Works - Sheet 1 (Dwg No. 21196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-1101 P02) 
1.8m Brick Wall with Piers with Timber Infill Panels (Dwg No. BW01) 
1800mm High Feathered Access Door (Dwg No. TG01) 
1.8m Feather Edges Timber Fence (Dwg No. FB01) 
Newbold End - Floor Plans (Dwg No. NB-END-001 A) 
Newbold End - Elevations (Dwg No. NB-END-002 A) 
Bowker mid - elevations and floor plans (Dwg No. BO-MID-001 18-122 REV.C) 
Brooklands house type - elevations and floor plans (Dwg No. BR-001 18-122  
REV.B) 
Construction details (Dwg no. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-3201 -P01) 

Page 92



Bowker Alternative House Type - floor plans and elevations (Dwg no. 
BO-ALT-001) 
Timber fence detail (Dwg no. FB01) 
Hollinwood House Type - proposed floor plans and elevations (Dwg no. Hw 001) 
Timber gate detail (dwg no. TG01) 
Brooklands Alternative Bay House Type - proposed elevations and floor plans 
(Dwg no. BR ALT B-001) 
Cornbrook Alt House Type - proposed floor plans ane elevations (Dwg no. 
CO-ALT-001) 
Cornbrook end House Type - proposed floor plans and elevations (Dwg no. 
CO-END-001) 
Cornbrook mid house type - proposed floor plans and elevations (Dwg no. 
CO-MID-001) 
Firswood house type - proposed floor plans and elevations (Dwg no. FI-001) 
Newhey Alternative Bay House Type - proposed floor plans and elevations (Dwg 
no. NH-ALT B-001) 

 
Proposed Layout (Colour) (Dwg No. 21-039 PL01 U) 
Proposed Layout (Dwg No. 21-039 PL01 U) 
Catchment Analysis ((Dwg No. 21196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-2004 Rev. P03) 
Manhole schedule (dwg no. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-2201 P03) 
Longitudinal Sections - Dheet 2 (dwg no. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-2102 P03) 
Road Setting Out - Sheet 1 (dwg no. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-3002 P02) 
Road Setting Out - Sheet 2 (dwg no. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-3003 P02) 
Kerb and Surfacing Layout (dwg no. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-3006 P02) 
Longitudinal Sections - Sheet 1 (dwg no. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-2101 P03) 
Drainage Layout (dwg no. 211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-2002 Rev P03) 
Bowker End (Dwg No. BO-END-001 G) 
Indicative Sections (Dwg No. 21-039 CS01 C) 
Hard Landscaping Plan (Dwg No. 21-039 HL01 B) 
Land Use Plan (Dwg No. 21-039 LU01 B) 
Boundary Details Plan (Dwg No. 21-039 BD01 G) 
Indicative Streetscenes (Dwg No. 21-039 SS01 B) 
Proposed Soft Landscaping Plan - Sheet 1 of 2 (Dwg No. 21-039 L-S-001 B) 
Proposed Soft Landscaping Plan - Sheet 2 of 2 (Dwg No. 21-039 L-S-002 B) 
Materials Plan (Dwg No. 21-039 MP01 B) 
Refuse Management Plan (Dwg No. 21-039 RM01 B) 
 
Documents: 
Addendum Gas Risk Assessment and Updated Remediation Strategy (Ref. LKC 
20 1836) 
Ambient Noise and Building Envelope Assessment (Ref. J004296-6055-TD-01) 
Crime Impact Statement (2022/0362/CIS/01) 
 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 

Page 93



development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  
 

 

5. No development comprising the erection of any external walls shall take place until 
details of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the development, including the roof, and all boundary treatments, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The 
materials to be used throughout the development shall be consistent in terms of 
colour, size and texture with the approved details. 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 

6. Each dwelling hereby approved shall be provided with 1 electric vehicle (EV) 
charge point (minimum 7kW*) prior to its occupation.  
*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW 
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2019 to 
be used.  
Reason. To encourage the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the 
development is sustainable. To safeguard residential amenity, public health and 
quality of life, pursuant to Section 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

7. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans and in the supporting 
information, no development shall commence unless and until full details of the 
following have been submitted to a scope and specification to be agreed on a 
topographical based survey of the site and adjacent adopted highways to the 
Local Planning Authority: 
1. Formation of the accesses onto School Street, incorporating the provision of 

adequate arrangements at the interface with the adopted highway and 1 in 20 
plateau (maximum) at the junction, relocation of the affected speed cushions in 
a position to be agreed and any associated accommodation works, level 
access to the private footpaths serving Plots 80 - 85 and the public open space 
between Plots 79 & 80, provision of visibility splays appropriate for a design 
speed of 20mph, demarcation of the limits of the adopted highway, tactile 
paved crossing points, give-way markings and any associated alterations to 
existing road markings (subject to the requirements of the scheme of 20mph 
traffic calming measures and Traffic Regulation Order review) and all 
associated highway and highway drainage remedial works; 

2. Formation of the access onto Abden Street/un-named back street adjacent to 
No.'s 65/67 Ulundi Street, incorporating the provision of adequate 
arrangements adequate arrangements at the interface with the adopted 
highway and tying-in with the existing kerbline of and parking lay-by/road 
markings on Abden Street, 1 in 20 (maximum) plateau at the junction, 
reconstruction of the section of Abden Street between Ulundi Street and the 
easterly site boundary and scheme of road markings/coloured surfacing, 

Page 94



alterations to the boundaries at Plots 43/43 to form an acceptable junction with 
the back street and provide visibility splays appropriate for a design speed of 
20mph, demarcation of the limits of the adopted highway, tactile paved 
crossing points, give-way markings and alterations to existing road markings 
(subject to the requirements of the scheme of 20mph traffic calming measures) 
and all associated highway and highway drainage remedial works; 

3. Revised footpath arrangements in the vicinity of Plot 69 to ensure that the new 
pedestrian route connects to and at the correct level on the existing southerly 
footway on Chard Street and all associated accommodation works on the 
adopted highway; 

4. All works around the perimeter of the site to either retain or replace the existing 
school boundary walls, pillars and railings, incorporating, where required, new 
foundations that do not encroach under the adopted highway, demarcation of 
the limits of the adopted highway with flush/50mm upstand edgings (as 
appropriate) and all associated accommodation works on the adopted 
highway; 

5. In the event that the site access/estate roads are not to be considered for 
adoption by the Council, measures to prevent the discharge of surface water 
onto the adopted highway; 

6. In the event that any retaining structures are required that abut/are sited in 
close proximity to the adopted highway, an 'Approval In Principle' for the 
proposed structures, incorporating full structural, construction and drainage 
details, calculations, pedestrian protection measures and a detailed 
construction method statement; 

7. Provision of a street lighting assessment to a scope and specification to be 
agreed for School Street between the site access and Hutchinson Way, Abden 
Street between the site access and Blackburn Street, the proposed residential 
estate roads, and, where necessary, a scheme of improvements; 

8. Review of need for the introduction of waiting restrictions to scope to be 
agreed at the junction of the site accesses with School Street and Abden 
Street, including, if required, all necessary road markings and signage; 

9. A scheme of 20mph traffic calming measures on the proposed estate roads to 
a scope and specification to be agreed, incorporating the formation of speed 
tables at all appropriate junctions, road markings, signage and works within the 
existing as required. 

 
The details subsequently approved shall be implemented in full to a programme 
agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway 
safety, ensure good highway design, in the interests of fire safety, ensure the 
intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent highways and maintain the 
integrity of the adopted highway, all in the interests of highway safety, pursuant to 
policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

8. In the event that it is intended for the proposed residential estate roads to be 
considered for adoption by the Council, notwithstanding the details indicated on 
the approved plans and supporting information, no development shall commence 
unless and until full details of the following have been submitted on a 
topographical based survey of the site and adjacent adopted highways to the 
Local Planning Authority: 
1. Formation of the proposed estate roads (including any necessary land filling 

operations and method of compaction), incorporating minimum 5.5m 
carriageway and 2.0m footway widths; 

2. Provision of long sections and cross sections at positions to be agreed through 
the proposed estate roads and turning heads to ensure that adoptable 
gradients will not exceed 1 in 14 for the purposes of adoption and incorporating 
a maximum 1 in 20 plateau at each junction within the development and at the 
interface with the adopted highway; 

3. Demarcation of the limits of adoption at all relevant locations; 

Page 95



4. Provision of visibility splays and forward visibility envelopes appropriate for a 
design speed of 20mph at all internal junctions and bends in accordance with 
the standards in Manual for Streets with no obstructions above the height of 
0.6m within them; 

5. Revised access/parking arrangements for Plots 5, 31 & 36 to ensure that the 
new dwellings are served from the adjacent private shared accesses and to 
mitigate the need for long reverse manoeuvres into the adjacent junctions 
along the proposed adopted footways that would otherwise result from the 
layout as submitted; 

6. Revised access/parking arrangements for Plot 40 to avoid the proposed 
driveway straddling the anticipated limits of adoption; 

7. Provision of adequate levels of visibility at the back edge of the footway at 
Plots 27, 38 & 39; 

8. Swept path analysis of the proposed estate roads to ensure that an 11.85m 
long refuse collection vehicle can pass a private car at all points and 
manoeuvre at all turning heads; 

9. Facilities for the storage of bins on collection day at the interfaces of all shared 
accesses with the proposed adopted highway; 

10. Proposed planting/surfacing details and management/maintenance 
arrangements for all landscaped/car parking areas abutting the proposed 
adopted highway; 

11. Proposed porous/permeable shared driveway/hardstanding materials and/or 
measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the adopted highway. 

 
The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed programme 
and to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway 
safety, ensure good highway design, ensure the intervisibility of the users of the 
site and the adjacent highways and maintain the integrity of the adopted highway, 
all in the interests of highway safety. pursuant to policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

9. No development shall commence unless and until a ‘Construction Traffic 
Management Plan’ (CTMP), has been submitted to and agreed in writing with the 
Local Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
1. Photographic dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways leading to 

and abutting the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required 
following construction of the development and as a result of statutory 
undertakers connections to the site; 

2. Access route for all construction vehicles to the site from the Key Route 
Network, including the need to prohibit/limit the use of the residential street in 
the Abden Street/Lord Street area; 

3. Access point(s) for construction traffic taking into consideration existing 
residential properties and their accesses onto School Street and any 
temporary works/phasing of the development that may be required to facilitate 
safe access for construction vehicles; 

4. If proposed, details of site hoarding/gate positions, taking into consideration 
the need to maintain adequate levels of visibility onto the adopted highway; 

5. The provision, where necessary, of temporary pedestrian facilities/protection 
measures on the highway; 

6. A scheme of appropriate warning/construction traffic speed signage in the 
vicinity of the site and its access(es); 

7. Confirmation of hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 
8. Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 

of the site and/or measures to control/manage delivery vehicle manoeuvres; 
9. Parking on site or on land within the applicant’s control of operatives' and 

construction vehicles, together with storage on site of construction materials; 
10. Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto 

the adjacent adopted highways as a result of the groundworks operations or 

Page 96



carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and 
measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations. 

 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the construction period and the 
measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended purpose for the 
duration of the construction period. 
Reason. To mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the 
proposed development on the adjacent highways, ensure adequate off street car 
parking provision and materials storage arrangements for the duration of the 
construction period and that the adopted highways are kept free of deposited 
material from the ground works operations., in the interests of highway safety, 
pursuant to policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

10. In the event that it is not intended for the proposed residential estate roads to be 
considered for adoption by the Council, no development shall commence unless 
and until details of the proposed arrangements for future management and 
maintenance of the proposed estate road within the development have been 
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority. The estate roads shall 
thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved management and 
maintenance details until such time as a private management and maintenance 
company has been established. 
Reason. This is required prior to the commencement of development to ensure 
that the unadopted estate roads serving the development is maintained to an 
acceptable standard in the interest of residential/highway safety, to ensure a 
satisfactory appearance to the highways infrastructure serving the development, 
and to safeguard the visual amenities of the locality and users of the highway 
pursuant to policies H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

11. The various turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided 
before the areas of the development to which they relate are first occupied and the 
areas used for the manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free 
of obstruction at all times. 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety, pursuant to policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

12. Minimum hardstanding lengths of 5.0m at all dwellings (10.0m when in tandem) 
shall be provided to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority and 
thereafter maintained.   
Reason. To allow adequate space to maintain vehicles clear of the highway in the 
interests of pedestrian safety, pursuant to policies H2/2, EN1/2 and HT6/2 of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

13. The car parking indicated on the approved plans shall be surfaced and made 
available for use to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
each dwelling/part of the site to which it relates being occupied and thereafter 
maintained at all times. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

14. Bin storage shall be provided within the curtilage of each dwelling in accordance 
with the approved Refuse Management Plan (Dwg No. 21-039 RM01 B). 
Reason. To ensure that adequate bin storage arrangements are provided within 
the curtilage of each dwelling, pursuant to policies H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 

15. Any tree assessed as low risk by either TEP in the preliminary ecological 
assessment dated February 2021 drawing number g8603.001, or Arbtech in the 
preliminary ecological appendix 4 Habitat survey plan, shalll be removed using soft 
felling techniques under the guidance of an ecological consultant, unless 

Page 97



otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

16. The drainage for the development hereby approved shall be carried out in 
accordance with the principles set out in the approved Drainage Layout 
211196-EDGE-XX-XX-DR-C-2002 Rev P03, dated 11/05/2023, which was 
prepared by EDGE. For the avoidance of doubt surface water must drain at the 
restricted rate of 22.3l/s. Prior to occupation of the first dwellinghouse, the 
drainage scheme shall be completed in accordance with the approved details and 
retained thereafter for the lifetime of the development. 
Reason. To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue 
increase in surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding, pursuant to 
Policy EN5/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 14 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 

 

17. All trees to be retained on site, as indicated on approved drawing Proposed layout 
21-039 PL01 Q, shall be protected in accordance with BS 5837:2012 "Trees in 
relation to design, demolition and construction". The development shall not 
commence unless and until the measures required by the British Standard are 
implemented and all measures required shall remain in situ until the development 
has been completed. 
Reason. To avoid the loss of trees which are of amenity value to the area pursuant 
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree 
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

18. The hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved Proposed Soft Landscaping Plan - Sheet 1 of 2 (Dwg No. 21-039 
L-S-001 B) and Proposed Soft Landscaping Plan - Sheet 2 of 2 (Dwg No. 21-039 
L-S-002 B). All planting, seeding and/or turfing shall be carried out in the first 
planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of the building(s) relating to 
that phase or the completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any 
trees, shrubs, hedges or plants which within a period of five years from the 
completion of development die, are removed, or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size 
and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any 
variation. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity  and to ensure the protection of wildlife and supporting habitat and 
to secure opportunities for enhancing the site's nature conservation value, 
pursuant to policies EN6/4, EN8/2 and EN10/2 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 

 

19. The acoustic fence to the northern boundary of the site, as detailed in the 
submitted Ambient Noise & Building Envelope Assessment (Report Ref. 
J004296-6055-TD-01), shall be implemented in full prior to the occupation of the 
first dwellinghouse and where building fabric mitigation measures are indicated, 
these shall be completed in full prior to the first occupation of the associated 
dwellinghouse. 
Reason. In order to ensure that the amenities of the future occupants of the 
proposed properties are not adversely impacted by noise from the nearby 
industrial builder's merchant, in accordance with Policy EN7/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan and the Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Dean Clapworthy on 0161 253 
5317

Page 98



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 69233

Site of the former Riverside High School, 
School Street,  Radcliffe, M26 3BW

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Mast (telecommunication)
4

5

2
3

71

5 91

95

Court1
3

School

81

El Sub Sta

93

97

2

111

1

Tank

1
0

41
6
5

4
0

6
2

20

1
8

3
0

57

71

7
2

3
7

43

74

87

8
8

7
3

46

Works

56

5
2

ESS

8
3

5
0

6
9

5
7

47

67

66

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

V
IC

T
O

R
IA

 S
T
R

E
E

T

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

CHARD STREET

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

U
L
U

N
D

I S
T

R
E

E
T

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E
A

L
L

E
N

 G
R

E
E

N
 C

L
O

S
E

A
L

L
E

N
 G

R
E

E
N

 C
L

O
S

E

78.0m

77.1m

77.7m

78.9m

78.3m

4

7
3

2.

1

5

9

8

6

10

Viewpoints - 69233

Page 99



69233 

Aerial 

  

Existing character 

Page 100



69233 

Photo 1: School Street frontage 

 

Photo 2 - Newer suburban housing opposite site 

 

Page 101



69233 

Photo 3 -Opposite direction 

 

Photo 4 - North along Ulundi Street (from junction with School Street) 

 
Page 102



69233 

Photo 5 Rear of houses at eastern boundary 

 

Photo 6 - Millwood School (left) and builders merchants (right) 

 

Page 103



69233 

Photo 7 - Panorama from School Street 

 

Photo 8 - Panorama from Ulundi Street 

 

Photo 9 - Panorama west/north 

 

Photo 10 - Panoramas east 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 104



69233 

Photo 11 - Illustrative Street Scene (School Street) 

 

Page 105



5

7

8

3

Tank

U

L

U

N

D

I

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

4

7

El Sub Sta

ESS

6

9

3

7

78.3m

6

7

S

C

H

O

O

L

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

A

B

D

E

N

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

Project:

Drawing Title:

Drawn: Checked: Scale: Drawing No:Job No:Date: Rev:

PLANNING

tel: 01772 774510 fax: 01772 774511 email mck@mckassociates.co.uk

burnaby villa  n 48 watling street road n  fulwood n  preston n  pr2 8bp

associates limited

architecture    building surveying   urban design

Client:

SCHOOL STREET, RADCLIFFE

SITE LOCATION PLAN

W.L 1:1250
JULY 2021

21-039 SL01

HIVE HOMES 

Page 106



P
age 107



P
age 108



5

7

8

3

U

L

U

N

D

I

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

4

7

E

S

S

6

9

3

7

6

7

BT

BT

GP

TV

CL79.341

MH

CL79.334

MH

7

9

.

1

5

5

7

9

.

1

5

3

7

9

.

3

2

9

POST

1 No. Acer campestre

2 No. Fagus sylvatica

1 No. Sorbus aucup"Sheerwater Seedling"

1 No. Acer ginnala

1 No. Acer ginnala

2 No. Sorbus aucup"Sheerwater Seedling"

2 No. Prunus avium

1 No. Prunus avium

1 No.Pyrus calleryana "Chanticleer"

1 No. Prunus avium

1 No.Pyrus calleryana "Chanticleer"

1 No. Betula pendula

2 No. Sorbus aucup"Sheerwater Seedling"

1 No. Sorbus aucup"Sheerwater Seedling"

1 No. Betula pendula

2 No. Acer davidii

2 No. Acer ginnala

 20 No. prunus laurocerasus "rotundifolia"

10 No. Hebe "autumn glory"

12 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

12 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

12 No. skimmia japonica

12 No. photinia x fraseri "red robin"

7 No. vibernum davidii

8 No. skimmia japonica

10 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

10 No. calluna vulgaris "gold haze"

9 No. choisya ternata "sundance"

 8 No. Eescallonia "donard seedling"

48 No. hebe carl teschner

12 No. prunus laurocerasus "rotundifolia"

15 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

10 No. Euonymus fortuni "emerald and gold"

 5 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

12 No. Euonymus fortuni "emerald and gold"

 8 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

12 No. mahonia aquifolium apollo

12 No. cytisus scoparius "cornish cream"

12 No. calluna vulgaris "gold haze"

18 No. skimmia japonica

25 No. potentilla fruiticosa "red ace"

16 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

12 No. choisya ternata "sundance"

 8 No. Eescallonia "donard seedling"

20 No. senecio sunshine

 10 No. Euonymus fortuni "emerald and gold"

16 No. mahonia aquifolium apollo

18 No. senecio sunshine

 8 No. Euonymus fortuni "emerald and gold"

14 No. cytisus scoparius "cornish cream"

32 No. prunus laurocerasus "rotundifolia"

25 No. prunus laurocerasus "rotundifolia"

12 No. choisya ternata "sundance"

15 No. Eescallonia "donard seedling"

20 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

14 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

18 No. cytisus scoparius "cornish cream"

30 No. calluna vulgaris "gold haze"

20 No. buxus sempervirens

16 No. buxus sempervirens

 12 No. prunus laurocerasus "rotundifolia"

7 No. vibernum davidii

7 No. skimmia japonica

10 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

10 No. prunus laurocerasus "rotundifolia"

6 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

8 No. Hypericum x moserianum "tricolor"

6 No. Choisya ternata sundance

5 No. Escallonia "donard seedling"

10 No. mahonia aquifolium apollo

5 No. Hypericum hidcote

12 No. choisya ternata "sundance"

10 No. Eescallonia "donard seedling"

10 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

 28 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

20 No. Euonymus fortuni "emerald and gold"

20 No. Euonymus fortuni "emerald and gold"

6 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

2 No. Acer campestre

4 No. Acuba japonica crotonifolia

7 No. Hypericum x moserianum "tricolor"

4 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

5 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

5 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

10 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

10 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

5 No. Euonymus fortunei "emerald gold"

10 No. hebe carl teschner

45 No. hebe carl teschner

12 No. skimmia japonica

8 No. Eescallonia "donard seedling"

5 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

20 No. hebe carl teschner

20 No. hebe carl teschner

5 No. hebe carl teschner

10 No. prunus laurocerasus "rotundifolia"

10 No. hebe carl teschner

18 No. Hebe "autumn glory"

18 No. skimmia japonica

10 No. Hypericum x moserianum "tricolor"

5 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

5 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

10 No. Hypericum x moserianum "tricolor"

5 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

5 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

7 No. vibernum davidii

8 No. skimmia japonica

10 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

15 No. hebe carl teschner

25 No. hebe carl teschner

3 No. Carpinus betulus "fastigiata"

1 No. Fagus sylvatica

1 No. Fagus sylvatica

1 No. Acer ginnala

1 No. Sorbus aucup"Sheerwater Seedling"

2 No. Prunus avium

1 No. Acer ginnala

 7 No. vibernum davidii

7 No. skimmia japonica

10 No. Euonymus fortuni "silver queen"

10 No. skimmia japonica

12 No. mahonia aquifolium apollo

4 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

4 No. Acuba japonica crotonifolia

7 No. Hypericum x moserianum "tricolor"

10 No. Viburnum davidii

10 No. Viburnum davidii

4 No. Acuba japonica crotonifolia

7 No. Hypericum x moserianum "tricolor"

4 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

4 No. lavandula angustifolia vera

4 No. Acuba japonica crotonifolia

7 No. Hypericum x moserianum "tricolor"

NATIVE SHRUB MIX

Species

Corylus avellana

Specification

Transplant 1+1

Crataegus monogyna Transplant 1+1

Ilex aquifolium

Prunus spinosa

Container 5L

Transplant 1+1

Rosa arvensis

Rosa canina

Viburnum opulus

Transplant 1+1

Transplant 1+1

Double staggered row

Double staggered row

Double staggered row

Double staggered row

Double staggered row

Double staggered row

Height

60-80cm

60-80cm

60-80cm

60-80cm

60-80cm

60-80cm 20%

30%

10%

20%

5%

5%

Transplant 1+1 Double staggered row   60-80cm 10%

Percentage Contribution Density

1/m²

1/m²

1/m²

1/m²

1/m²

1/m²

1/m²

Species

Shrubs

Aucuba japonica 'Crotonifolia'

Cytisus scoparius 'Cornish Cream'

Cotoneaster dammeri

Choisya ternata Sundance ®

Calluna vulgaris 'Gold Haze'

Euonymus alatus 'Compactus'

Escallonia 'Donard Seedling'

Euonymus fortunei 'Emerald 'n' Gold'

Euonymus fortunei 'Silver Queen'

Hebe 'Autumn Glory'

Hypericum 'Hidcote'

Hypericum x moserianum 'Tricolor'

Lavandula angustifolia 'Vera'

Mahonia aquifolium 'Apollo'

Potentilla fruticosa 'Red Ace'

Photinia x fraseri 'Red Robin'

Skimmia japonica

Senecio 'Sunshine'

Viburnum davidii

Species

Hedges

Buxus sempervirens

Hebe 'Carl Teschner'

Specification Height

60-80cm

40-60cm

30-40cm

30-40cm

30-40cm

30-40cm

60-80cm

30-40cm

30-40cm

30-40cm

60-80cm

30-40cm

30-40cm

30-40cm

30-40cm

60-80cm

30-40cm

40-60cm

30-40cm

Pot Size Density

3/m²

4/m²

6/m²

4/m²

10/m²

3/m²

3/m²

4/m²

6/m²

6/m²

3/m²

6/m²

4/m²

6/m²

6/m²

3/m²

6/m²

6/m²

6/m²

Single row

Specification

Single row

Prunus laurocerasus 'Rotundifolia' Single row

WILDFLOWER SEED - To be sown at a rate of 5g/M².

EM1 - Basic General Purpose Meadow Mixture.

EM8 - Meadow Mixture for Wetlands.

Available from Emorsgate Seeds Tel: 01553 829 028 or

similar approved.

GRASS SEED - To be sown at a rate of 50g/M².

A22 Hard Wearing, Low Maintenance. Available from Germinal GB. Tel: 01522 868714 (or similar approved)

Height

30-40cm

25-30cm

60-80cm

Girth Pot Size Density

4/m5L

5L

10L

6/m

4/m

All wildflower areas to have 1M wide

close mown grass edge adjacent

roads and footpaths. Seeded with

grass mix A22.

Plant Schedule

Trees

Acer campestre

Acer davidii

Acer ginnala

Betula utilis jacquemontii

Betula pendula

Carpinus betulus 'Fastigiata'

Fagus sylvatica

Malus tschonoskii

Prunus avium

Pyrus calleryana 'Chanticleer'

Sorbus aria

Height Girth Specification

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

Sorbus aucup. 'Sheerwater Seedling'

Pot Size

B

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

350-425cm 12-14cm Heavy Standard: 3x

B

B

RB

RB

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

Species

10L

5L

3L

5L

2L

3L

10L

5L

3L

3L

10L

3L

5L

3L

5L

10L

5L

5L

3L

PROPOSED TREE PLANTING

NATIVE SHRUB PLANTING

ORNAMENTAL

SHRUB PLANTING

TURF

(CLOSE MOWN)

GRASS SEED, A22

(CLOSE MOWN)

WILDFLOWER SEED MIX

GRASS MIX A22.

KEY

5

7

8

3

Tank

U

L

U

N

D

I

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

4

7

El Sub Sta

E

S

S

6

9

3

7

6

7

BT

BT

BT

BT

BT

BT

BT

BT

IC

CL77.243

SB

SB

SV

GP

GP

GP

GP

GP

GP

GP

77.488

CONC.WALL

77.464

77.488

BIN

TV

TV

TV

TV

TV

NP

NP

CL79.341

MH

CL79.334

MH

7

9

.1

5

5

7

9

.1

5

3

7

9

.3

2

9

POST

SPECIFICATION
GROUND PREPARATION - GENERAL
NOTES
CLEARANCE/EXCAVATING
TREE ROOTS
 Protected area: Do not cut roots within precautionary protection area.

- Size of area: Branch spread of the tree.

Excavation in protected area:

- Method: By hand.

- Backfill as soon as possible or temporarily line with polyethylene sheet to reduce evaporation.

Outside protected area: Give notice of roots exceeding 25 mm and do not cut without approval.

Cutting:

- Make clean smooth cuts with no ragged edges.

- Pare cut surfaces smooth with a sharp knife.

- Treatment of cut roots: Not required.

Backfill: As dug material, enriched with phosphate fertilizer.

GROUND PREPARATION
SUBSOIL SURFACE PREPARATION

General: Excavate and/ or place fill to required profiles and levels.

Loosening:

- Light and noncohesive subsoils: When ground conditions are reasonably dry, loosen thoroughly to a depth of

300 mm.

- Stiff clay and cohesive subsoils: When ground conditions are reasonably dry, loosen thoroughly to a depth of

450 mm.

- Rock and chalk subgrades: Lightly scarify to promote free drainage.

Stones: Immediately before spreading topsoil, remove stones larger than 50 mm.

Remove Arisings, contaminants and debris and Builders rubble.

PREPARATION OF UNDISTURBED TOPSOIL

Standard: In accordance with BS 4428.

- Grading and cultivation: Category B.

Hard ground: Break up thoroughly.

Clearing: Remove visible roots and large stones with a diameter greater than 50 mm.

Areas covered with turf or thick sward: Plough or dig over to full depth of topsoil.

Fallow period (minimum): Not required.

Weed control: At appropriate times treat with a suitable translocated non-residual herbicide.

IMPORTED TOPSOIL TO BS 3882

Quantity: Provide as necessary to make up any deficiency of topsoil existing on site and to complete the work.

Standard: To BS 3882.

Classification: Multipurpose.

- Grade: 0.6-2 mm.

Source: Contractor's choice.

- Product reference: Contractor's choice.

CULTIVATION

Compacted topsoil: Break up to full depth.

Tilth: Loosen, aerate and break up topsoil to a tilth suitable for blade

grading.

- Depth: 150 mm.

- Particle size (maximum): 2-8 mm.

- Timing: Within a few days before planting.

- Weather and ground conditions: Suitably dry.

Surface: Leave regular and even.

Levels: 25 mm above adjoining paving or kerbs and 50 mm above adjoining lawns.

Undesirable material brought to the surface: Remove visible weeds, roots and large stones with any dimension

exceeding 50 mm.

Soil within root spread of trees and shrubs to be retained: Do not dig or cultivate.

GRADING OF TOPSOIL

Topsoil condition: Reasonably dry and workable.

Contours: Smooth and flowing, with falls for adequate drainage.

- Hollows and ridges: Not permitted.

Finished levels after settlement: 25 mm above adjoining paving, kerbs, manholes etc.

Blade grading: May be used to adjust topsoil levels provided depth of topsoil is nowhere less than 100 mm.

Give notice: If required levels cannot be achieved by movement of existing soil.

FINISHED LEVELS OF TOPSOIL AFTER SETTLEMENT

Above adjoining paving or kerbs: 25 mm.

Below dpc of adjoining buildings: Not less than 150 mm.

Shrub areas: Higher than adjoining grass areas by 50 mm.

Within root spread of existing trees: Unchanged.

Adjoining soil areas: Marry in.

Thickness of turf or mulch: Included.

SEEDING/TURFING
CLIMATIC CONDITIONS

General: Carry out the work while soil and weather conditions are suitable.

WATERING

Quantity: Wet full depth of topsoil.

Application: Even and without displacing seed, seedlings or soil.

Frequency: As necessary to ensure the establishment and continued thriving of all seeding/turfing.

HERBICIDE: FOR PROPOSED SEEDED/TURFED AREAS

Type: Suitable for suppressing perennial weeds.

Timing: Allow fallow period before cultivation.

- Duration: 2 weeks.

CULTIVATION

Compacted topsoil: Break up to full depth.

Soil ameliorant/ Conditioner/ Fertilizer: Fully incorporate into topsoil to a depth of 100 mm.

Tilth: Reduce topsoil to a tilth suitable for blade grading.

- Depth: 100 mm.

- Particle size (maximum): 5 mm.

Material brought to the surface: Remove stones and clay balls larger than 50 mm in any dimension, roots, tufts of

grass, rubbish and debris.

GRADING

Topsoil condition: Reasonably dry and workable.

Contours: Smooth and flowing, with falls for adequate drainage.

- Hollows and ridges: Not permitted.

Finished levels after settlement: 25 mm above adjoining paving, kerbs, manholes etc.

Blade grading: May be used to adjust topsoil levels provided depth of topsoil is nowhere less than 100mm .

Give notice: If required levels cannot be achieved by movement of existing soil.

FINAL CULTIVATION

Timing: After grading and fertilizing.

Seed bed: Reduce to fine, firm tilth with good crumb structure.

- Depth: 25 mm.

- Surface preparation: Rake to a true, even surface, friable and

lightly firmed but not over

compacted.

- Remove surface stones/earth clods exceeding:

General areas: 20 mm.

Fine lawn areas: 10 mm.

Adjacent levels: Extend cultivation into existing adjacent grassed

areas sufficient to ensure full marrying in of levels.

DELIVERY AND STORAGE OF TURF

Timing: Lay turf with minimum possible delay after lifting. If delay

occurs, lay turf out on topsoil and keep moist.

Frosty weather or waterlogged ground: Do not lift turf.

Delivery: Arrange to avoid need for excessive stacking.

Stacking height (maximum): 1 m.

Dried out or deteriorated turf: Do not use.

TURFING GENERALLY

Time of year: Autumn or early winter.

Timing of laying:

- Spring and summer: Within 18 hours of delivery.

- Autumn and winter: Within 24 hours of delivery.

Weather conditions: Do not lay turf when persistent cold or drying winds are likely to occur or soil is frost bound,

waterlogged or excessively dry.

Working access: Planks laid on previously laid turf. Do not walk on prepared bed or newly laid turf.

Jointing: Laid with broken joints, well butted up. Do not stretch turf.

Edges: Whole turfs, trimmed to a true line.

Adjusting levels: Remove high spots and fill hollows with fine soil.

Consolidating: Lightly and evenly firm as laying proceeds to ensure full contact with substrate. Do not use rollers.

Dressing, brushed well in to completely fill all joints: Sandy loam .

Watering: Thoroughly water completed turf immediately after laying.

Check that water has penetrated into the soil below.

Turf configuration: Diagonal or horizontal.

Securing turfs:

- Fixings: Pointed softwood pegs, 200 mm long x 25 mm square.

- Frequency of fixings: Each turf.

Removal of fixings: When turf is thoroughly self anchored by its roots. Make good any damage to grass until area is

accepted.

EXTERNAL PLANTING
CLIMATIC CONDITIONS

General: Carry out the work while soil and weather conditions are suitable.

- Strong winds: Do not plant.

TIMES OF YEAR FOR PLANTING

Deciduous trees and shrubs: Late October to late March.

Conifers and evergreens: September/ October or April/ May.

Herbaceous plants (including marginal): September/ October or March/ April.

Container grown plants: At any time if ground and weather

conditions are favourable.

- Watering and weed control: Provide as necessary.

Dried bulbs, corms and tubers: September/ October.

Colchicum (crocus): July/ August.

Green bulbs: After flowering in spring.

Wildflower plugs: Late August to mid November or March/ April.

Aquatic plants: May/ June or September/ October.

PLANTS/ TREES - GENERAL

Condition: Materially undamaged, sturdy, healthy and vigorous.

Appearance: Of good shape and without elongated shoots.

Hardiness: Grown in a suitable environment and hardened off.

Health: Free from pests, diseases, discoloration, weeds and physiological disorders.

Budded or grafted plants: Bottom worked.

Root system and condition: Balanced with branch system.

- Standard: The National Plant Specification.

Species: True to name.

Origin/ Provenance: Local provenance.

Definition: Origin and Provenance have the meaning given in the

National Plant Specification.

PLANTS/ TREES - SPECIFICATION CRITERIA

Name, forms, dimensions, provenance and other criteria: As

scheduled and defined in the National Plant Specification.

PLANT HANDLING, STORAGE TRANSPORT AND PLANTING

Standard: To HTA 'Handling and establishing landscape plants'.

Frost: Protect plants from frost.

Handling: Handle plants with care. Protect from mechanical damage and do not subject to shock, e.g. by dropping

from a vehicle.

Plant packaging: Coextruded polyethylene bags with black interior and white exterior. All bare root plants to be

supplied in bags containing and enclosing the whole root system. Transplants should be supplied with shoots and

roots fully enclosed in the bag, whereas larger shrubs and trees should have only the root system enclosed. The bag

should be co-extruded polythene bags with black interior and white exterior with larger trees packaged as follows:

6-8cm and 8-10cm girth trees = 3Nr trees per bag. All plants shall be adequately packaged and protected during

transportation from source to planting on site. To minimise storage of plant stock, operations are to be arranged so

that trees and shrubs are planted immediately after each planting pit is prepared.

Packaging of bulk quantities: Pallets or bins sealed with polyethylene and shrink wrapped.

Planting: Upright or well balanced with best side to front.

HERBICIDE: TO CLEAR ALL VEGETATION

Locations: All planting areas.

Type: Suitable for suppressing perennial weeds.

Timing: Allow fallow period before cultivation.

- Duration (minimum): 2 weeks.

PEAT

Peat or products containing peat: Do not use.

CULTIVATION

Compacted topsoil: Break up to full depth.

Cultivation: Loosen, aerate and break up soil into particles of 2-8mm.

- Depth: 300 mm.

- Timing: Within a few days before planting.

- Weather and ground conditions: Suitably dry.

Surface: Leave regular and even.

Levels: As above.

Undesirable material brought to the surface: Remove visible weeds,roots and large stones with any dimension

exceeding 30 mm. Soil within root spread of trees and shrubs to be retained: Do not dig or cultivate

REGULAR PLANT LAYOUT: TO ALL ORNAMENTAL BEDS

Spacing: In regular, staggered rows.

Density: As per schedules.

SHRUB PLANTING PITS

Timing: Excavate 1 days (maximum) before planting.

Sizes: Wide enough to accommodate roots when fully spread and 75 mm deeper than root system.

Pit bottom improvement Break up to a depth of 150 mm, incorporating 25 g of slow release fertilizer per planting pt.

Backfilling material: Previously prepared mixture of 1 part non peat based proprietary compost, 3 parts extracted

material and 1 Nr Scotts UK Sierrablen Flora tablet (supplier - Greentech or similar approved) per shrub.

FORMAL HEDGES

Shrubs for hedges: Consistent in species, cultivar and clone to ensure a uniform hedge.

Planting: In trenches large enough to take full spread of roots. Set out plants evenly.

SHRUB, HERBACEOUS AND BULB BACKFILLING MATERIAL

Composition: Previously prepared mixture of topsoil excavated from pit and additional topsoil as required:

Ameliorant/ Conditioner: Previously prepared mixture of 1 part non peat based proprietary compost, 3 parts extracted

material.

- Application rate: 1Nr litre bag per 30 Nr shrubs. Excess compost to be spread evenly around the shrubs after

planting.

Fertilizer: Sierra Flora (or similar approved).

- Application rate: 1 Nr 15g 'Sierra Flora' tablet per shrub.

AFTER PLANTING

Watering: Immediately after planting, thoroughly and without damaging or displacing plants or soil.

Firming: Lightly firm soil around plants and fork and/ or rake soil, without damaging roots, to a fine tilth with gentle

cambers and no hollows.

Top dressing: Not required.

Depth: N/A.WOODLAND/EDGE BEDS

Material: Medium grade bark mulch.

- Purity: Free of pests, disease, fungus and weeds.

- Recycled content: None permitted.

Preparation: Clear all weeds. Water soil thoroughly.

Coverage: 50 mm depth.

Finished level of mulch: 50 mm below adjacent grassed or paved

areas.

TREE PITS

Sizes: 500 mm wider than, and the same depth as the rootball (min 700 mm depth).

Sloping ground: Maintain horizontal bases and vertical sides with no less than minimum depth throughout.

Pit bottoms: With slightly raised centre. Break up to a depth of 150mm.

- Treatment: 3 Nr Scotts UK Sierrablen Flora tablet (supplier - Greentech, Tel: 01423 332100 - or similar

approved) UK per tree.

Pit sides: Scarify.

Backfilling material: Previously prepared mixture of 1 part non peat based proprietary compost and 3 parts extracted

material.

Accessories: As drawings.

TREE PIT ACCESSORIES: IRRIGATION OF TREES IN PUBLIC OPEN

SPACE

Locations: All trees.

Manufacturer: Greenleaf Horticulture (or similar approved).

- Product reference: RRPC4 Root Rain Metro tree irrigation.

Type: Perforated plastics irrigation pipe, 35 mm diameter, in circle above and around sides of rootball, with metal cap.

MULCHING PLANTING BEDS TO ALL ORNAMENTAL BEDS & TREE PIT ACCESSORIES: UNDERGROUND

GUYING OF EXTRA HEAVY STANDARD TREES

Locations: All EHS trees (ie. 16-18cm trees & above).

Manufacturer: Platipus Anchors Limited (or similar approved).

- Product reference: Platipus Tree Anchoring System, Type RF2P (or similar approved).

Type: The product is a root ball fixing kit that provides fast and secure root ball anchoring during the first few years of

tree growth. The components of the anchoring system are all located below ground, therefore avoiding the

appearance of unsightly guy wires or stakes. Basic installation tools required are a drive rod and tension lever.

STAKING GENERALLY

Stakes: Softwood, peeled chestnut, larch or oak, straight, free from projections and large or edge knots and with

pointed lower end.

- Preservative treatment: To provide a 20 year service life.

Nails: To BS 1202-1, galvanized, minimum 25 mm long and with 10 mm diameter heads.

Stake size (minimum): 150 mm diameter.

SHORT SINGLE STAKING FOR FEATHERED & STANDARD TREES

Staking: Position stake close to tree on windward side and drive at 45 degrees at least 300mm into bottom of tree pit

before planting.

- Backfiling: Consolidate material around stake

Height of stakes: Cut to approximately 600 mm above ground level.

Ties: Cushioned ties with spacer.

Tying: Secure tree firmly but not rigidly to stake with at least two ties within 25 mm of top of stake.

TREE BACKFILLING MATERIAL

Composition: Previously prepared mixture of topsoil excavated from pit and additional topsoil as required.

Ameliorant/ Conditioner: Enmag.

- Application rate: 120g per tree pit.

Fertilizer: Scotts (or similar approved) Sierrablen Flora 15g tablets (Green-tech, Tel: 01423 332100.

- Application rate: 4Nr per tree. Do not place at the base of the tree, place at the side, halfway up the backfill, no

deeper than 20cm.

MULCHING TREES

Material: Medium grade bark mulch.

- Purity: Free of pests, disease, fungus and weeds.

- Recycled content: None permitted.

Preparation: Clear all weeds. Water soil thoroughly.

Coverage: 1200 diameter with tree positioned in the centre.

Finished level of mulch: 30 mm below adjacent grassed or

paved areas.

TREE PROTECTION OF TREES IN PUBLIC OPEN SPACE

Manufacturer: Acorn Planting Products Ltd.

- Product reference: Spiral Shelters.

Type: Spiral.

Size/ Colour: 63mm dia by 750mm height, colour: slight tint.

Support: 1200mm 22-24lb/100 bamboo cane- as per manufacturers recommendation.

General: Ensure that protection methods do not impede natural movement of trees or restrict growth.

TREE PROTECTION FOR WHIPS/TRANSPLANTS IN PUBLIC OPEN SPACE

Manufacturer: Acorn Planting Products Ltd.

- Product reference: Spiral Shelters.

Type: Spiral.

Size/ Colour: 50mm dia by 600mm height (colour: slight tint).

Support: 1200m 22-24lb/100 bamboo cane- as per manufacturers recommendation.

General: Ensure that protection methods do not impede natural movement of trees or restrict growth.

SHRUB PROTECTION OF PLANTS IN PUBLIC OPEN SPACE

Manufacturer: Acorn Planting Products Ltd.

- Product reference: Sentree mesh guard.

Size/ Colour: 50mm dia by 600mm height, colour: slight tint.

Support: 90cm 12-14lb/100 bamboo cane- as per manufacturers recommendation.

General: Ensure that protection methods do not impede natural movement of shrubs or restrict growth.

TRANSPLANT PLANTING: FURROW PLANTING

Notching: Make a vertical notch or pit 'T' or 'L', large enough to accommodate full depths of roots.

- Size of notch/pit: Large enough to accommodate full depth/spread of roots.

Planting: Plant tree and backfill or close the notch with the root collar at ground level and firm the soil.

PLANTING IN TURF

Preparation: Cut and upturn a turf of minimum 500 mm square.

Notching: Make a vertical slit from the centre of the turf, to the side away from the prevailing wind.

- Depth: To accommodate full depth of roots.

Planting: Plant tree, close notch with root collar at ground level and firm the soil.

MAINTENANCE NOTES
TREES

Where trees are staked, the stakes and ties will be checked monthly and it is anticipated that they will need adjusting

at least twice annually. Any broken or damaged stakes will be replaced and ties re-fixed at a slightly lower position,

allowing for growth since planting.

Remove stakes as necessary, when the tree is suitably established, approximately year 5.

To reduce excessive competition, a weed free area will be retained around any trees less than 3m in height and will be

maintained to a diameter of 0.5m around the base of the trees using glyphosate spray twice a year. Newly planted

trees will require re-firming as required during the first three years.

Young trees will require formative pruning to maintain a desirable shape as well as to maintain health and vigour.

Once trees attain a height of 3m, the maintenance of a weed free base and formative pruning can be discontinued.

However, crown pruning is desirable and any dead or severely damaged trees will be felled and replaced accordingly.

HEDGEROWS

Management operations during the establishment phase (until branches of adjacent plants fully merge together) will

comprise of weed control, watering (if required) and formative 'facing up' of the hedgerow to establish dense branch

growth. New planting will be re-firmed as required.

During the first five years of establishment, between April and October monthly inspections of hedgerow will be

undertaken and weeds will be removed by hand weeding and if necessary herbicide (glyphosate) spot

ORNAMENTAL SHRUBS

Within the first three to five years of establishment, a mulch composted wood chip or bark mulch will be laid around

the base of all young plants to suppress weed growth and will be maintained to a depth of 75mm. Between April and

September frequent inspections of these areas will be undertaken, removing weeds wherever necessary by hand

pulling to assist the successful establishment of plants.

Pruning of ornamental shrubs will be undertaken in order to clear deadwood, promote healthy growth and produce

desired growth of flowers, fruit, foliage or winter colour as appropriate. Pruning will also

include for clearing out crossing and damaged branches.

Watering of the ornamental shrub planting might be required during periods of prolonged drought. Particular care will

be taken during such periods to ensure sufficient watering is carried out to facilitate healthy growth.

Any damaged, failing or dead shrubs will be replaced.

Weed control will include spot treatment using selective herbicide of noxious weeds such as docks, thistles, nettles,

ragwort and willowherb.

AMENITY GRASS

During the first three years some areas of amenity grassland may require cultivating and re-seeding.

Grass cutting will be undertaken fortnightly, during the growing season.

The grass will be kept as medium 'walk on' length of 35-50 mm. This length is suitable for most recreational grassland.

Weed control will include spot treatment using selective herbicide of noxious weeds such as docks, thistles, nettles,

ragwort and willowherb.

SCHOOL STREET, RADCLIFFE

general notes:
do not scale the drawing.
all dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work and any
discrepancy shall be immediately reported and resolved prior to work commencing.
this drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and
specifications relating to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing.
copyright reserved to mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or
reproduced without prior written consent.

Client:

Project:

Drawing Title:

Drawn: Checked: Scale:

Drawing No:Job No:

Date:

Rev:

A
0

Description
By

DateRev.

RText (RText)

P
L
A

N
N

I
N

G

    

tel: 01772 774510 fax: 01772 774511 email mck@mckassociates.co.uk

burnaby villa  n 48 watling street road n  fulwood n  preston n  pr2 8bp

associates limited

architecture    building surveying   urban design

SCHOOL STREET

RADCLIFFE

PROPOSED SOFT LANDSCAPING PLAN

SHEET 2 OF 2

SK 1:200
JUNE 2022

21-039 L-S-002 B

0m 8m1m 20m2m 4m 6m

1 : 200

10m 30m 40m

SHEET TWO

SHEET ONE

A 26-04-23 AT LANDSCAPE PLAN UPDATED TO SUIT REVISED LAYOUT

B 14-07-23 WL UPDATED TO SUIT REV P. GARAGES REMOVED

P
age 109



83m

84m

85m

86m

87m

88m

77m

78m

79m

80m

81m

82m

SITE BOUNDARY

LINE

Plot 72

FFL 78.3

Plot 86

FFL 77.6

Boundary

Fence

11 Ulundi St

(Shape is indicative only)

Plot 33

FFL 79.3

83m

84m

85m

86m

87m

88m

77m

78m

79m

80m

81m

82m

SITE BOUNDARY

LINE

SITE BOUNDARY

LINE

Plot 19

FFL 79.3

Plot 12

FFL 78.7

Plot 57

FFL 78.45

Plot 62

FFL 78.35

Plot 86

FFL 78.1

Plot 85

FFL 77.9

Boundary

Wall

Boundary

Fence

83m

84m

85m

86m

87m

88m

77m

78m

79m

80m

81m

82m

SITE BOUNDARY

LINE

SITE BOUNDARY

LINE

47 Ulundi St

(Shape is indicative only)

Plot 50 - 53

FFL 78.6

Plot 54 - 55

FFL 78.45

Plot 66

FFL 78.25

Plot 11

FFL 78.3

Boundary

Fence

Millwood School

(Shape is indicative only)

Existing Grass

Patch

47 Ulundi St

Boundary Fence

Plot 56 - 57

FFL 78.45

5
7

8
3

T

a

n

k

U
L
U

N
D

I
 
S

T
R

E
E

T

4
7

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

E
S

S

6
9

3
7

6
7

O

r

d

n

a

n

c

e

 

S

u

r

v

e

y

,

 

(

c

)

 

C

r

o

w

n

 

C

o

p

y

r

i

g

h

t

 

2

0

2

1

.

 

A

l

l

 

r

i

g

h

t

s

 

r

e

s

e

r

v

e

d

.

 

L

i

c

e

n

c

e

 

n

u

m

b

e

r

 

1

0

0

0

2

2

4

3

2

B

T

B

T

B

T

B

T

B

T

B

T

B

T

B

T

B

T

I

C

C

L

7

7

.

2

4

3

S

B

S

B

F

H

S

V

G

P

G

P

G

P

G

P

G

P

G

P

G

P

7

7

.
4

8

8

C

O

N

C

.

W

A

L

L

7

7

.
4

6

4

7

7

.
4

8

8

B

I

N

T

V

T

V

T

V

T

V

T

V

N

P

N

P

C

L

7

9

.

3

4

1

M

H

C

L

7

9

.

3

3

4

M

H

79.155
79.153

79.329

P

O

S

T

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

AS

Hw

E
N

D

B
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

B
o

A
S

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

E
N

D

C
o

A
S

M
I
D

C
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

C
o

O
P

P

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

END

Bo

AS

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

END

Bo

OPP

OPP

Br

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

A
S

B
o
 
A

l
t

END

Bo

OPP

M
I
D

C
o

O
P

P

M
I
D

C
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

C
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

C
o

A
S

S
O

AS

Nh Alt B

AS

Nb

OPP

Nb

AS

Nb

AS

Nb

OPP

Nb

AS

Nb

E
N

D

C
o

A
S

M
I
D

C
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

C
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

C
o

A
S

M
I
D

C
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

C
o

O
P

P

A
S

H
w

A
S

H
w

OPP

Fi

AS

Fi

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

END

Co

AS

MID

Co

OPP

END

Co

OPP

Acoustic fencing

Acoustic fencing
Acoustic fencing

FH
FH

FH FH FH FH

E
N

D

C
o

A
S

E
N

D

C
o

O
P

P

M
I
D

C
o

A
S

E
N

D

C
o

A
S

E
N

D

C
o

O
P

P

M
I
D

C
o

A
S

M
I
D

C
o

A
S

AS

Nh Alt B

 6

 7

 8
 9

 10

 11

 12

 13

 14

 15

 16

 17

 18

 19

 20

 21

 22

 23

 24

 25

 26

 27

 28

 29

 30

 31

 32

 33

 34

 35

 36

 37

 38

 39

 40

 41

 42

 43

 69

 70

 71

 72

 73

 74

 75

 76

 77

 78
 79

 80
 81

 82

 83

 84

 85

 86

 87

 88

 89

 90

OPP

Nh Alt B

O
P

P

F
i

A
S

F
i

MID

Co

OPP

MID

Co

OPP

END

Co

OPP

END

Co

AS

E
N

D

C
o

A
S

E
N

D

C
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

B
o

O
P

P

AS

Bo Alt

E
N

D

B
o

A
S

E
N

D

B
o

O
P

P

END

Bo

AS

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

O
P

P

B
o
 
A

l
t

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

E
N

D

B
o

O
P

P

E
N

D

B
o

A
S

END

Bo

OPP

END

Bo

AS

 1  2

E
N

D

B
o

A
S

 3

 4

 5

 44

 45

 46

 47

 48

 49

 50

 51

 52

 53

 54

 55

 56 57

 58

 59

 60

 61

 62

 63

 64

 65

 66  67

 68

OPP

Nh Alt B

O
P

P

N
h
 
A

l
t
 
B

AS

Hw

AS

Hw

OPP

Fi

A
S

N
h
 
A

l
t
 
B

END

Bo

AS

O
P

P

B
o
 
A

l
t

BC

B
C

B
C

B
C

B
C

B
C

B
C

S
O

S
O

S
O

SO SO SO

S
O

S
O

S
O

SECTION A-A

A

NOTE:

PLEASE NOTE, SECTIONS

ARE INDICATIVE ONLY

SUBJECT TO FINAL

ENGINEER FINISHED FLOOR

LEVELS

PLEASE NOTE,

TOPOGRAPHY LEVELS

OUTSIDE OF RED EDGE ARE

INDICATIVE DUE TO

INACCESSIBILITY DURING

SURVEYS

0m 8m1m 20m2m 4m 6m

1 : 200

10m 30m 40m

LAYOUT NOT TO SCALE

- FOR SECTION LINE LOCATION INDICATION ONLY

general notes:
do not scale the drawing.
all dimensions to be checked on site prior to commencement of work and any
discrepancy shall be immediately reported and resolved prior to work commencing.
this drawing is to be read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and
specifications relating to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing.
copyright reserved to mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or
reproduced without prior written consent.

Client:

Project:

Drawing Title:

Drawn: Checked: Scale:

Drawing No:Job No:

Date:

Rev:

A
0

Description
By

DateRev.

P
L
A

N
N

I
N

G

    

tel: 01772 774510 fax: 01772 774511 email mck@mckassociates.co.uk

burnaby villa  n 48 watling street road n  fulwood n  preston n  pr2 8bp

associates limited

architecture    building surveying   urban design

SCHOOL STREET

RADCLIFFE

INDICATIVE SECTIONS

MHR CT 1:200
18/01/2023

21-039 CS01 C

SECTION B-B

SECTION C-C

A

B

B

C

C

2m high bund added with 2.1m heavy duty fence 
MHR

19/01/2023A

B                 26/04/2023                        WL               Updated to match layout rev M

C               14/07/2023                        WL                 Afford tenures changed.

                                                                                 Garages removed

P
age 110



Dining

Kitchen
Hall

WC

ST.

Lounge

Bed 2

Bed 3

Landing

Bed 1

En-Suite

Bath

AREAS

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
GROUND 44.4 m² 478 ft²
FIRST 42.9 m² 461 ft²
TOTAL 87.3 m² 939 ft²

Ground Floor First Floor

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

1 : 100

B

Z:
\J

ob
's\

20
18

 jo
bs

\1
8-

12
2 

G
re

at
 P

la
ce

s 
- H

ou
se

 T
yp

e 
R

an
ge

\D
ra

w
in

gs
\m

od
el

s\
pr

op
os

ed
\p

la
ns

\W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\N

h\
N

h-
Al

t B
.rv

t

Core House Types MHR SK 6/3/2020

18-122NH-ALT
B-001

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Front Elevation Rear ElevationSide Elevation 1

Side Elevation 2

Newhey Alternative Bay
939 Sqft.
Code - Nh Alt B

Rev. Date by  Description

A 6/3/20 DH/HR Layout amended
B 20/10/20 MS External lighting added

P
age 111



D
W

Lounge

ST.

WC

Hall

ST.

Kitchen & Dining

Family

Bed 4
Bed 2

Bath

En-suite

Bed 1

Bed 3

Landing

ST

Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan

AREA SCHEDULE

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
GROUND 52 m² 564 ft²
FIRST 51 m² 548 ft²
TOTAL 103 m² 1112 ft²

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

Firswood
1112 Sqft.
Code - Fi

1 : 100

D

Z:
\J

ob
's

\H
IV

E\
H

IV
E 

H
om

es
 - 

M
as

te
r D

ra
w

in
g 

Pa
ck

 - 
Ju

ne
 2

02
1\

FI
 - 

(F
irs

w
oo

d)
\F

i.r
vt

Core House Types DSH SK 26/11/2019

18-122FI-001

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Front Elevation Side Elevation 1 Rear Elevation

Side Elevation 2

Rev. Date by  Description

A 05/03/20 DH/HR Layout altered
B 21/04/20 GO kitchen unit amended
C 02/06/20 DH Minor aesthetic changes
D 21/10/20 MS Elevations amended

P
age 112



WC

LOUNGE

PORCH

ST

KITCHEN & DINING BED 1

BATH

BED 2

BED 3

LANDING

ST

Ground Floor First Floor

Front Elevation Rear Elevation

AREA SCHEDULE

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
GROUND 35.41 m² 381 ft²
FIRST 35.41 m² 381 ft²
TOTAL 70.82 m² 762 ft²

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

Cornbrook Mid
762 Sqft.
Code - Co Mid

1 : 100

C

Z:
\J

ob
's

\H
IV

E\
H

IV
E 

H
om

es
 - 

M
as

te
r D

ra
w

in
g 

Pa
ck

 - 
Ju

ne
 2

02
1\

C
O

 M
ID

 - 
(C

or
nb

ro
ok

 M
id

)\C
o-

M
id

.rv
t

Core House Types DH SK 13/06/19

18-122CO-MID-001

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Rev. Date by  Description

A 30/04/2020 DH Canopy updated
B 30/04/2020 DH/HR Layout amendments
C 30/04/2020 GO Kitchen unit amendment

P
age 113



WC

LOUNGE

PORCH

ST

KITCHEN & DINING BED 1

BATH

BED 2
BED 3

LANDING

ST

Ground Floor First Floor

Front Elevation Side Elevation Rear Elevation

AREA SCHEDULE

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
GROUND 35.41 m² 381 ft²
FIRST 35.41 m² 381 ft²
TOTAL 70.82 m² 762 ft²

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

1 : 100

E

Z:
\J

ob
's

\H
IV

E\
H

IV
E 

H
om

es
 - 

M
as

te
r D

ra
w

in
g 

Pa
ck

 - 
Ju

ne
 2

02
1\

C
O

-E
N

D
 - 

(C
or

nb
ro

ok
 E

nd
)\C

o-
En

d.
rv

t

Core House Types DH SK 13/06/19

18-122CO-END-001

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Cornbrook End
762 Sqft.
Code - Co End

Rev. Date by  Description

A 27/02/20 DH Canopy altered
B 05/03/20 DH/SK Layouts amended
C 03/04/20 HR Amended the position of window in Bed 3
D 10/06/20 DH External light shown
E 28/10/20 MHR Layout Updated

P
age 114



LOUNGEHALL

WC

KITCHEN & DINING
BEDROOM 2

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 1

BATH

LANDING

Side ElevationFront Elevation Rear Elevation

Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan

AREAS

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
GROUND 35.4 m² 381 ft²
FIRST 35.4 m² 381 ft²
TOTAL 70.8 m² 762 ft²

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

CONSTRUCTION

Cornbrook Alt 
762 Sqft.
Code - Co Alt

1 : 100

B

Z:
\J

ob
's\

20
18

 jo
bs

\1
8-

12
2 

G
re

at
 P

la
ce

s 
- H

ou
se

 T
yp

e 
R

an
ge

\D
ra

w
in

gs
\m

od
el

s\
pr

op
os

ed
\p

la
ns

\W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\C

o\
C

o-
Al

t.r
vt

Core House Types AF DH 26/11/19

18-122CO-ALT-001

Rev. Date by  Description

A 26/02/20 DH Canopy amended
B 14/10/20 MS Verge caps added

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

P
age 115



FAMILY

DINING

KITCHEN

HALL
UTILITY

WC

CLOAKS

LOUNGE

ST.

BED 4
BATH

BED 3

BED 1

LANDING

BED 2

ST

EN-SUITE

Ground Floor Plan First Floor Plan

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

1 : 100

C

Z:
\J

ob
's\

20
18

 jo
bs

\1
8-

12
2 

G
re

at
 P

la
ce

s 
- H

ou
se

 T
yp

e 
R

an
ge

\D
ra

w
in

gs
\m

od
el

s\
pr

op
os

ed
\p

la
ns

\W
or

ki
ng

 D
ra

w
in

gs
\B

r\B
r A

lt 
B.

rv
t

Core House Types DH SK 6/3/2020

18-122BR ALT
B-001

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Front Elevation Rear ElevationSide Elevation 1

Side Elevation 2

Rev. Date by  Description

A 30/04/20 DH/HR Layout amended
B 30/04/20 GO Kitchen unit amended
C 21/20/20 MS Layout amended

Brooklands Alternative Bay
1201 Sqft.
Code - Br Alt B

Area Schedule (GIA)

Name AREA m² AREA ft²
GROUND 57 m² 609 ft²
FIRST 55 m² 592 ft²
TOTAL 112 m² 1201 ft²

P
age 116



FF

FAMILY
KITCHEN / DINING

HALLUTILITY

WC

CLOAKS

LOUNGE

STORE

BEDROOM 4
BATHROOM

BEDROOM 3

BEDROOM 1

LANDING

BEDROOM 2

STORE

EN-SUITE

Ground Floor First Floor

AREA SCHEDULE

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
GROUND 55 m² 592 ft²
FIRST 55 m² 592 ft²
TOTAL 110 m² 1185 ft²

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

CONSTRUCTION

Brooklands 
1185 Sqft.
Code - Br

1 : 100

B

Z:
\J

ob
's

\H
IV

E\
H

IV
E 

H
om

es
 - 

M
as

te
r D

ra
w

in
g 

Pa
ck

 - 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
(P

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
1)

\B
R

 - 
(B

ro
ok

la
nd

s)
\B

r.r
vt

Core House Types DH SK 20/06/19

18-122BR-001

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Front Elevation Rear Elevation Side Elevation 1

Side Elevation 2

Rev. Date by  Description

A 30/04/20 GO Kitchen unit amended
B 17/08/22 JS W3 raised by 150mm

P
age 117



FF

KITCHEN / DINING

WC

LOUNGE

PORCH

ST

LANDING

BATHROOM

BEDROOM 1EN-SUITE

BEDROOM 2

ST

BEDROOM 3

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

CONSTRUCTION

Bowker Mid 
837 Sqft.
Code - Bo Mid

1 : 100

C

Z:
\J

ob
's

\H
IV

E\
H

IV
E 

H
om

es
 - 

M
as

te
r D

ra
w

in
g 

Pa
ck

 - 
M

ar
ch

 2
02

2 
(P

re
vi

ou
sl

y 
Ju

ne
 2

02
1)

\B
O

-M
ID

 - 
(B

ow
ke

r M
id

)\B
o 

M
id

.rv
t

Core House Types DH SK 26/11/19

18-122BO-MID-001

Ground Floor

First Floor
Front Elevation

Rear Elevation

AREA SCHEDULE

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
GROUND 39 m² 418 ft²
FIRST 39 m² 418 ft²
TOTAL 78 m² 837 ft²

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Rev. Date by  Description

A 27/02/20 DH Canopy altered
B 14/10/20 MS External lighting and tap added
C 17/08/22 JS W1 raised by 150mm

P
age 118



Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

Newbold End
1131 Sqft.
Code - Nb End

 1 : 100

A

Z:
\J
ob
's
\H
IV
E\
H
IV
E 
H
om
es
 - 
M
as
te
r D
ra
w
in
g 
Pa
ck
 - 
M
ar
ch
 2
02
2 
(P
re
vi
ou
sl
y 
Ju
ne
 2
02
1)
\N
B 
- (
N
ew
bo
ld
)\N
b.
rv
t

Core House Types DH SK 20/06/19

18-122NB-END-002

AREAS

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
SECOND 27.0 m² 291 ft²
GROUND 39.0 m² 420 ft²
FIRST 39.0 m² 420 ft²
TOTAL 105.0 m² 1131 ft²

Front Elevation Rear Elevation Side Elevation

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Rev. Date by  Description

A 15/10/20 MS External lighting and tap added

P
age 119



LOUNGE

DINING

KITCHEN
HALL

WC

BEDROOM 2 BEDROOM 4

BEDROOM 3

LANDING

BATHROOM

STORE BEDROOM 1

EN-SUITE

2m HEADROOM

1.5m HEADROOM

FULL HEIGHT

FULL HEIGHT

2m HEADROOM

1.5m HEADROOM

Client: Project: Drawing Title: Drawn: Checked: Scale (A3) :

Job No:

Date:

Rev:

General notes:
Do not scale the drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to 
commencement of work and any discrepancy shall be immediately 
reported and resolved prior to work commencing. this drawing is to be 
read in conjunction with all relevant drawings and specifications relating 
to the job whether or not indicated on the drawing. copyright reserved to 
mck associates ltd. and this drawing may not be used or reproduced 
without prior written consent.

PLANNING

Drawing No:

Newbold End
1131 Sqft.
Code - Nb End

 1 : 100

A

Z:
\J
ob
's
\H
IV
E\
H
IV
E 
H
om
es
 - 
M
as
te
r D
ra
w
in
g 
Pa
ck
 - 
M
ar
ch
 2
02
2 
(P
re
vi
ou
sl
y 
Ju
ne
 2
02
1)
\N
B 
- (
N
ew
bo
ld
)\N
b.
rv
t

Core House Types DH SK 20/06/19

18-122NB-END-001

AREAS

FLOOR AREA m² AREA ft²
SECOND 27.0 m² 291 ft²
GROUND 39.0 m² 420 ft²
FIRST 39.0 m² 420 ft²
TOTAL 105.0 m² 1131 ft²

Ground Floor First Floor Second Floor

1:100

0m 2m 4m 10m1m 3m 5m

Rev. Date by  Description

A 21/04/20 GO kitchen unit & duct amendment

P
age 120



 
 
  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses Item   04 

 
Applicant:  Venturia Limited 
 
Location: Land at Billberry Close & Albert Road, Whitefield, M45 8BL 

 
Proposal: Erection of 7 no. bungalows with associated works 
 
Application Ref:   69535/Full Target Date:  16/06/2023 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
It is recommended that this application is Minded to Approve subject to the signing 
and completion of a Section 106 agreement for off-site biodiversity mitigation, thereto 
in accordance with Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework.  If the 
agreement is not signed within a reasonable timeframe, then delegated authority is 
sought by the Development Manager to determine the application. 
 
Description 
The application site is 0.3 hectares in size and is located to the east of Albert Road. The 
land was landscaped as part of the residential development for applications 32152 and 
32656 and there is a footpath through the middle of the land. The associated Section 106 
agreement required the developer to landscape the land, pay a maintenance contribution to 
the Council and use the area as amenity space. 
 
The development has complied with the legal agreement in that the site is landscaped, the 
maintenance contribution was paid to the Council and the site is currently in use as amenity 
space. The site is identified as amenity greenspace in the Bury Greenspace Audit and 
Strategy (2015). 
 
There are residential properties to the north, south and east of the site. Albert Road forms 
the boundary to the west with school playing fields beyond.  
 
The proposed development involves the erection of 7 bungalows. Two of the proposed 
bungalows would front onto Albert Road and 5 would front onto Billberry Close.  The 
proposed bungalows would be constructed from red brick with a tile roof. One driveway 
would be accessed on Albert Road and 5 driveways would be accessed from Billberry 
Close.  
 
 
Relevant Planning History 
32152 - Outline - sports hall and ancillary parking at Whitefield College, Albert Road, 
Whitefield. Approved with conditions - 27 June 1996. 
 
32656 - Residential development - 57 dwellings at former Whitefield College, Albert Road, 
Whitefield. Approved with conditions - 16 May 1997.  
 
62684: Application to remove planning obligations under Section 106A of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 of planning permission 32656 to cease the use of the open land 
as amenity space at land at Albert Road/Billberry Close, Whitefield. Refused - 6 June 2018. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 21 April 2023 and site 
notices were posted on 26 April 2023. 
 

Page 121



A letter from Councillors Smith, Bayley and Whitby has been received and has raised the 
following issues: 

• In June 2018 permission was refused to cease the use of the open land as amenity 
space. This was due to the land being well used by the local community. This is still true 
today and the space is used by dog-walkers, for children's ball games and by young 
families.  

• Removing this facility will have a negative impact on the community. 

• Housing need in the area is being met. Recent housing has been built along Albert 
Road and a new street of housing was recently erected on Elizabeth Street. Close by, a 
new block of flats has been built on Mersey Drive and new houses on Derwent Avenue 
are due to be inhabited soon while plans for new houses on the old Wheatfield site are 
underway. 

• The land was designated as open amenity space when the houses on Bilberry Close 
were granted planning permission to prevent too high a density of housing in the area. 

• There is no need for these bungalows to be built at this location. 
 
53 letters have been received, which have raised the following issues: 

• Family love close to the application site. The green space is used by children on the 
street as it provides a safe place to play.  

• Traffic and parking is already an issue on this road. 

• I purchased this house in 1999 and there hasn't been a day when this land has not been 
used by members of the community. 

• The developers have described this space as a 'shortcut path'. This is entirely false. It is 
a well-used community space. 

• Strongly object to the loss of amenity and it would have an immeasurable impact upon 
residents. 

• The land is a community asset - children play here. 

• In the summer you can watch bats flying around the field. 

• The applicant's leaflet to residents was sanctimonious and vexatious. 

• Concern that if the application for bungalows is granted, then a variation application 
would be submitted to provide houses. 

• Brownfield sites should be used for this type of development.  

• The greenspace is used often as a place for informal play and meets the objections AG2 
in the Bury Greenspace Audit.  

• The application states that there are other greenspace within 400 metres of this site. 
This is as the crow flies and residents would have to walk 400 metres to Thatch Leach 
or 850 metres to Boz Park, which would force residents back into their cars. 

• Disagree with comments from GMEU that states that the trees are not mature enough to 
support a roost. I have seen bats on the green and there are bats each night at dusk. As 
there are bats in the area, shouldn't a bat survey be required. 

• I have met people on the land, which I would not have met if it wasn't for this space.  

• The site does have relevant planning history - 62684, which was refused in February 
2018. 

• Parking is already an issue for visitors to this estate. 

• This land is covered by planning obligations under Section 106A to maintain use of the 
open land as recreation provision for the residents of Billberry Close and Edwards Drive. 
This obligation cannot be removed as the applicants are unable to provide new 
information that the obligation no longer serves a useful purpose.  

• It is the only useable green space in the local area, being a safe area, flat and drained. 

• Objections are identical to those raised in 2018 and this application should be rejected.  

• There is a culvert that passes under the land. I am concerned that any building could 
cause flooding to the surrounding area including Brook Drive and Regal Close. 

• Whilst I understand the need for new housing, a brownfield site should be used.  

• One of my children has mobility issues and the loss of this green space would impact 
upon their independence. 

• The other parks are not safe, especially after dusk due to anti-social behaviour. 

• Emergence vehicle access would be hampered by the proposed development.  

Page 122



• The building work would be very disruptive and invasive for family life. 

• Wildlife, such as squirrels and foxes have been seen on the land. 

• Impact upon access to and from the estate. 

• The appearance of bungalows would be a departure from the aesthetic of the area. 

• The negative impact upon the community far outweighs any potential benefits from the 
proposed development.  

• Increased noise, air and light pollution 

• The area has a covenant on it and it should not be lifted. 

• The proposed development does not increase biodiversity at this location. 

• There is no demonstrable urgent need for housing. 
 
The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.  
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to access 
works, footpath diversion, construction traffic management plan, car parking and bin 
storage.  
 
Drainage Section - No response. 
 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land. 
 
Environmental Health - Air Quality - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition 
relating to electric vehicle charging points. 
 
Waste Management - No response. 
 
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage. 
 
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to nesting 
birds, reasonable avoidance measures concerning bats japanese knotweed and 
landscaping/biodiversity net gain.  
 
There is no reason to doubt that bats regularly forage and or commute along the line of 
shrubs and trees along the boundary with the houses. Bats can also roost in trees, the silver 
birch because of the ivy being higher risk than the other trees on this site. Reasonable 
avoidance measures would be applicable in relation to the birch tree. 
 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Agent has agreed with pre-start conditions 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/1 Housing Land Allocations 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8 Woodland and Trees 
RT1/1 Protection of Recreation Provision in the Urban Area 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 

Page 123



HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT4 New Development 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Recreation 
The application site was last used as amenity space and as such, is designated as 
protected recreation land. 
 
UDP Policy RT1/1 relates to protected recreation in the urban area. In basic terms, the 
policy states that development will not be allowed on recreation space unless it meets 
specific criteria. 
 
Whilst similar, the approach in RT1/1 has now been superseded by Paragraph 99 of the 
NPPF which states that "existing open space, sports and recreational buildings and land, 
including playing fields, should not be built on unless: 
(a) An assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space, buildings 
or land to be surplus to requirements; or 
(b) The loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or 
better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location; or 
(c) The development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits of 
which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use". 
 
The whole site is allocated as protected recreation provision, as identified within the Bury 
Greenspace Audit and Strategy 2015, falling within the Whitefield and Unsworth area of the 
Borough. The proposal can only be supported if it complies with the exception criteria listed 
above. 
 
The submission includes an Local Open Space Assessment, which notes that the quality of 
the site is rated as good, but that there is an excess of good quality amenity greenspace 
provision in the area, equating to the equivalent of 0.89 hectares per 1,000 population, 
(which is considerably greater that the standard of 0.50 hectares per 1,000 population). 
 
Natural greenspace and children’s play provision are also sufficient against the standards. 
However, deficiencies are noted in young people play provision and parks. The Assessment 
finds that the site at Albert Road/Bilberry Close is not considered suitable for young people 
play provision, allotments or as a park due to its limited size, configuration being adjacent to 
existing housing and roads and the underground services which cross the site limiting its 
useage. 
 
An excess of amenity greenspace provision in the area has been clearly demonstrated, and 
whilst there is a deficiency in the area in allotments, outdoor sport and parks and gardens, 
the site would be unsuitable for such alternative provision for the reasons given above. 
Remaining amenity greenspace in the area would still exceed the quantitative and 
qualitative standards. 
 

Page 124



On this basis, it is considered exception 3 of the policy has been satisfied. 
 
It is acknowledged that 62684: Application to remove planning obligations under Section 
106A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 of planning permission 32656 to cease 
the use of the open land as amenity space was refused. However, that application was not 
supported by a robust Open Space Assessment, as in the current case. 
 
Principle - Residential - The National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a 
material planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to 
boost the supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. 
There is a particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a 
rolling five year supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
Bury's Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment sets out the latest housing supply 
position, which is made up with sites that have an extant planning permission and sites that 
have potential to obtain planning permission in the future. This shows that there are a 
number of sites within the Borough with the potential to deliver a significant amount of 
housing. However, not all of these sites will contribute to the five year supply calculations as 
many sites will take longer than five years to come forward and be fully developed (e.g. 
some large sites could take up to ten years to be completed). As such, latest monitoring 
indicates that the Council is unable to demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable housing 
land and this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential developments. 
 
The National Planning Policy Framework also sets out the Housing Delivery Test, which is 
an assessment of net additional dwellings provided over the previous three years against 
the homes required. Where the test indicates that the delivery of housing was substantially 
below (less than 75%) of the housing requirement over the previous years, this needs to be 
taken into account in the decision-taking process. The latest results published by the 
Government show that Bury has a housing delivery test result of less than 75%, and 
therefore, this needs to be treated as a material factor when determining applications for 
residential development. 
 
Therefore, in relation to the proposed 7 dwellings, paragraph 11d) of the National Planning 
Policy Framework states that where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the 
policies which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, planning 
permission should be granted unless: 
i. The application of policies in the Framework that protect areas, or assets of particular 
importance, provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed; or 
ii. Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole. 
 
Therefore, in this case the 'titled balance' applies and planning permission should be 
granted unless the above points Para 11(d) i or ii apply. 
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The site is located within the urban boundary and there are residential properties to all 
boundaries. The proposed development would not conflict with the surrounding land uses 
and would be located in a sustainable location with regard to public transport and services. 
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Design and layout - The proposed development would provide 7 bungalows, which would 
consist of 1 detached and 6 semi-detached properties. The proposed bungalows would be 
constructed from red brick with a tiled roof. The use of headers, cills and pike details would 

Page 125



add visual interest. As such, the proposed development would not be a prominent feature in 
the streetscene. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies 
H2/1, H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon surrounding area - All of the proposed dwellings would have a rear garden, 
which would provide an adequate level of private amenity space. There would be space 
within the rear gardens for bin storage. The proposed boundary treatments are indicated as 
1.8m high timber fencing, but specific details are not provided. This would match the 
existing fences in the locality and could be agreed by condition. Therefore, the proposed 
development would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene and would be in 
accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between 
residential properties and would be relevant in this case. 
 
There would be 12.8 metres between the gable of plot 1 and the blank gable of No. 38 
Albert Road, which would be acceptable.  
 
There would be 19.9 metres between the rear of plots 3 and 4 and the blank gable of No. 8 
Regal Close, which would be in excess of the 13 metre aspect standard.  
 
There would be over 28 metres between the rear elevations of plots 5 – 7 and the rear 
elevations of the properties fronting onto Regal Close. There would be over 25 metres 
between the front elevation of plots 3 – 7 and Nos 8 – 14 Billberry Close. Both of these 
distances would be in excess of the aspect standard of 20 metres.  
 
At the closest point, there would be 16.2 metres between the front of No. 19 Billberry Close 
and the gable elevation of plot 7, which would be in excess of the 6.5 metre aspect 
standard.  
 
As the proposed development would comply with or exceed the aspect standards set out in 
SPD6, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
amenity of the neighbouring properties. Therefore, the proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policies EN1/2 and H2/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Ecology 
The main issues associated with this application are nesting birds, Japanese Knotweed and 
landscaping/biodiversity net gain. 
 
Protected Species - An ecological assessment has been submitted with the application, 
which found no evidence of any protected species on the site. GM Ecology Unit agrees with 
this assessment and as such, no further information or measures are required. It has been 
advised that reasonable avoidance measures are employed in relation to the removal of a 
specific tree given that a bat was observed exiting the Ivy covering. 
 
Nesting Birds - The proposed development would result in the loss of trees and shrubs, 
which provide potential bird nesting habitat. GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to 
the inclusion of a condition relating to nesting birds.  
 
Further, house sparrow has been found on site, which is a UK Biodiversity Priority Species. 
As such, it is recommended that a house sparrow terrace is mounted on each dwelling on 
either an easterly or westerly elevation, which would be secured by condition. 
 
Japanese Knotweed - Japanese Knotweed is present on the site, which is a species listed 
under Schedule 9, Part 2 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981. GM Ecology Unit has no 
objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition requiring the Japanese Knotweed to be 
dealt with. 
 
Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment - Section 174 of the NPPF 2021 

Page 126



states that the planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment.  The development will result in the loss of amenity grassland and 
some of the scrub and trees associated with the site. 
 
A Biodiversity Net Gain summary has been provided which has calculated a 0.74 
biodiversity unit loss at the site (due to the loss of urban trees). GM Ecology Unit has 
assessed the report and agrees that some form of additional mitigation or compensation is 
required. GM Ecology Unit also agrees that it would not be possible to provide this 
mitigation on site and have agreed that it would be appropriate that an off-site contribution is 
directed to Fusiliers Meadow, around 150m to the south-west. The applicant has agreed to 
a contribution of £18,840. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would provide a betterment in terms of biodiversity 
net gain and would not harm any protected species. The proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the 
NPPF. 
 
Highways issues - The proposed development would be accessed from Albert Road and 
Billberry Close. The driveways to the proposed dwellings have been sited so as to ensure 
there would be no adverse impact upon visibility at the junction of Albert Road and Billberry 
Close. The Traffic Section has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating 
to access works, footpath diversion, construction traffic management plan, car parking and 
bin storage. Therefore, the proposed development would not be detrimental to highway 
safety and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards is 1.5 spaces per 2 bedroom 
unit, which equates to 11 spaces. 
 
The proposed development would provide 14 spaces. Whilst this would be over the 
maximum parking provision, it would ensure parking is provided for any visitors to the site. 
As such, the level of parking provision would be acceptable in this case and would be in 
accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and SPD11.  
 
Planning obligations 
Off-site biodiversity mitigation - As noted above, the proposal generates a requirement to 
replace 0.74 biodiversity units, translating into a contribution of £18,840, which would be 
allocated to Fusiliers Meadow, in accordance with paragraph 174 of the NPPF. 
 
This would be secured through a Section 106 agreement.  
 
Observation on representations received 
The points raised in the representations, where material, have been addressed in the above 
analysis and/or recommended conditions. 
 
CONCLUSION 
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that if regard is to 
be had to the Development Plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the 
Planning Acts, the determination must be in accordance with the plan, unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
The Open Space Assessment undertaken demonstrates clearly that the identified open 
space is surplus to requirements and that its redevelopment would not lead to a quantitative 
or qualitatative deficiency in the host geographical analysis area. Furthermore, the 'titled 
balance' applies and the NPPF therefore requires that planning permission should be 
granted any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the 
benefits, when assessed against the policies in the Framework, taken as a whole. 
 
The principle of the development is therefore acceptable. The proposal would deliver much 

Page 127



needed residential development on a site within the urban area that is considered to be in a 
sustainable location.  
 
The above assessment indicates that the proposed development would assimilate 
appropriately in the suburban context of the site and would not unacceptably undermine 
residential amenity, highway safety or ecological interests. Furthermore, it would provide 
contributions for biodiversity mitigation and off-site highway design works. 
 
On this basis, the scheme, along with the legal agreement to secure the above noted 
contribution, the development would comply with the Unitary Development Plan and the 
NPPF when considered as a whole.  
 
As such, the proposal would comply with the above policies of the Local Plan and the 
NPPF. Therefore, in accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act, the proposal merits approval. 
 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered Location plan, P01 C, P02, P03, 
TCP/4749/Y/100, BF.TS.03 and the development shall not be carried out except in 
accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 

Page 128



remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 

A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

5. No development comprising the erection of any external walls shall take place until 
details of the materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of 
the development, including the roof, and all boundary treatments, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  The 
materials to be used throughout the development shall be consistent in terms of 
colour, size and texture with the approved details. 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 
 

 

6. No works to trees or shrubs shall occur between the 1st March and 31st August in 
any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced ecologist 
has been carried out immediately prior to clearance. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 - 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

7. Any trees to be removed that have been assessed as low risk in the Preliminary 
Ecological Appraisal by UES (Ref. UES03928/02), shalll be removed using soft 
felling techniques, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

8. Prior to any earthworks, a method statement detailing control measures for 
japanese knotweed should be supplied to and agreed in writing with the Local 
Planning Authority.  The agreed method statement shall be adhered to and 
implemented in full. Should a delay of more than one year occur between the date 
of approval of the method statement and either the date of the development 
commencing, a further site survey must be undertaken and submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority.  
Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual extent of 
Japanese Knotweed and Himalayan Balsam in the interest of UDP Policy EN9 - 
Landscape and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

9. A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to, and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the erection of any external walls of the development hereby 
approved.  The contents of the plan should include details of tree protection 
measures for retained trees, as identified in the submitted Arboricultural 
Implication Study by ACS Consulting, that shall be in accordance with BS 
5837:2012 "Trees in relation to design, demolition and construction", native tree 
and shrub planting and the provision of bat bricks/tubes and house sparrow 

Page 129



terraces within the new development.  The approved scheme shall thereafter be 
implemented not later than 12 months from the date of the occupation of the first 
dwelling or within the first available tree planting season,; and any trees or shrubs 
removed, dying or becoming severely damaged or becoming severely diseased 
within five years of planting shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or 
species to those originally required to be planted.   
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential 
Development,  EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and 
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving 
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.  

 

10. Prior to the commencement of development, details of a sustainable surface water 
drainage scheme and a foul water drainage scheme shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage schemes must 
include: 
(i) An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning 
Practice Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This investigation 
shall include evidence of an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for 
infiltration of surface water in accordance with BRE365; 
(ii) A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning 
authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); 
(iii) Levels of the proposed drainage systems including proposed ground and 
finished floor levels in AOD; 
(iv) Incorporate mitigation measures to manage the risk of sewer surcharge where 
applicable; and 
(v) Foul and surface water shall drain on separate systems. 
The approved schemes shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory 
Technical Standards for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any 
subsequent replacement national standards. 
 
Prior to occupation of the first dwellinghouse, the drainage schemes shall be 
completed in accordance with the approved details and retained thereafter for the 
lifetime of the development. 
Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the 
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact.  To promote sustainable 
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies 
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - 
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate 
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF. 

 

11. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved plans, no development shall 
commence unless and until full details of the following have been submitted on a 
topographical based survey of the site and adjacent adopted highways to the 
Local Planning Authority and approved in writing: 
 

• Formation of the replacement footway on the northerly side of Billberry Close 
to a scope and specification to be agreed, incorporating a minimum footway 
width of 2.0m, provision of footway crossings serving Plots 2 - 7, demarcation 
of the limits the adopted highway, relocation/replacement of the affected street 
lighting column, street nameplate at the back of the new footway in positions to 
be agreed, relocation/replacement of the affected dog waste bin in a position to 
be agreed, tactile paved crossing point at the Billberry Close/Albert Road 
junction, all associated highway and highway drainage remedial works and any 
alterations required to existing traffic calming features that may be required as 
a direct result of the proposed development; 

• Formation of the proposed footway crossing serving Plot 1 onto Albert Road to 
a scope and specification to be agreed, incorporating all necessary 
accommodation works at/extension of the existing crossing serving No. 38 

Page 130



Albert Road and demarcation of the limits the adopted highway all associated 
highway and highway drainage remedial works and any alterations required to 
existing traffic calming features that may be required as a direct result of the 
proposed development. 

 
The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed phasing 
plan of both the highway works and housing element of the proposed development 
and to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway 
safety, ensure good highway design, ensure the intervisibility of the users of the 
site and the adjacent highways and maintain the integrity of the adopted highway, 
all in the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following Policies EN1/2 - 
Townscape and Built Design, H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
and H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 

12. The development hereby approved shall not be commenced unless and until the 
required stopping-up/footpath diversion order has been secured and a programme 
of implementation for the replacement footway on Billberry Close has been agreed 
with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The phasing plan shall incorporate the implementation of the replacement facility 
to basecourse level prior to the existing footpath route being affected by the 
construction of the development, with the facility fully implemented prior to first 
occupation of the development hereby approved. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of highway 
safety, ensure good highway design, ensure the intervisibility of the users of the 
site and the adjacent highways and maintain the integrity of the adopted highway, 
all in the interests of highway safety pursuant to the following Policies EN1/2 - 
Townscape and Built Design, H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
and H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 

13. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
 

• Dilapidation survey of the footways and carriageways leading to and abutting 
the site in the event that subsequent remedial works are required following 
construction of, and statutory undertakers connection to, the development; 

• Access route for vehicles from the Key Route Network; 

• Access point(s) to the site, including all temporary works and measures 
required to protect highway users and facilitate vehicular access; 

• Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 

• Proposed site hoarding/gate positions clear of appropriate visibility splays onto 
the adopted highway; 

• A scheme of appropriate warning/speed limit signage in the vicinity of the 
construction site access(es); 

• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 
of the site, including any requisite phasing of the development to 
accommodate this; 

• Parking on site of operatives' and construction vehicles together with storage 
on site of construction materials, including any requisite phasing of the 
development to accommodate this; 

• Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not spread onto 
the adjacent adopted highways as a result of the ground work operations or 
carried on the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and 
measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations. 

 
Page 131



The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction 
period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended 
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas 
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking of 
vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials. 
Reason.  Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of 
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent 
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and 
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that 
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works 
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary 
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 - 
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 

14. The car parking indicated on the approved plans, incorporating minimum 
hardstanding lengths of 5.5m minimum (11.0m at tandem driveways) and 
measures to prevent the discharge of surface water onto the adopted highway, 
shall be surfaced and made available for use prior to the development hereby 
approved being occupied and thereafter maintained at all times. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

15. Bin storage arrangements shall be provided within the curtilage of each dwelling in 
accordance with Waste Management's 'Guide to Refuse Collection Requirements 
& Storage Methods for New Developments', before first occupation of the 
respective dwelling. 
Reason. To ensure that adequate bin storage arrangements are provided within 
the curtilage of each dwelling, pursuant to policies H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 

16. Each dwelling hereby approved shall be provided with 1 electric vehicle (EV) 
charge point (minimum 7kW*) prior to its occupation.  
*Mode 3, 7kW (32A) single phase, or 22kW (32A) three phase, and for 50kW 
Mode 4 rapid charging may be required. British Standard BS EN 61851-1:2019 to 
be used.  
Reason. To encourage the uptake of ultra-low emission vehicles and ensure the 
development is sustainable. To safeguard residential amenity, public health and 
quality of life, pursuant to Section 9 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Dean Clapworthy on 0161 253 
5317

Page 132



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 69535

Land at Billberry Close & Albert Road 
Whitefield

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

1
7

16

19

12

25

1

11
15

2

8

10

2

4
4

3
8

6

1

2

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

B
IL

L
B

E
R

R
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

CLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSECLOSEREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGALREGAL

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S

E
D

W
A

R
D

S
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
D

R
IV

E
5

4

1
3Aerial

2

Viewpoints   69535

Page 133



69535 

Aerial view from west 

 

 

Photo 1 Panorama from northern boundary of the site 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 134



69535 

Photo 2 - Site from junction into Billberry Close 

 

Photo 3 - South-east from the northern boundary 

Page 135



69535  

Photo 4 - Panning south-west 

 

Photo 5 - Along eastern boundary 

 
Page 136



Billberry Close, Whitefield

© Crown copyright and database rights 2023 OS 100054135. Map area bounded by: 381623,405828 
381765,405970. Produced on 15 March 2023 from the OS National Geographic Database. Supplied by 
UKPlanningMaps.com. Unique plan reference: p2c/uk/922158/1244523

Page 137



LD1

LD1A

LD1B

IR.F

IR
.F

IR
.F

IR
.F

IR
.F

IR
.F

IR
.F

IR.F

IR.F

IR.F

CP&TP.F

CP&TP.F

CP&TP.F

CP&TP.F

SPEED SPEED

HUMP
HUMP

SP
EE

D
HU

M
P

SP
EE

D
HUMP

ALB
ERT

ROAD

ED
W

AR
D

S
D

R
IVE

BILLBERRY CLOSE

AL
BE

R
T

R
O

AD

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

GRASS

FLAGS

TARMAC

FLAGS

FLAGS

GRASS

FLAGS

TARMAC

TARMAC

TARMAC

FLAGS

TARMAC

TARMAC

TARMAC

TARMAC

20

FLAGS

FLAGS

TARMAC

PRIVATEGARDENS

PRIVATEGARDENS

PRIVATEGARDENS

01.

03.
04. 05. 06. 07.

Existing Drain &
6m Wide Easement

New Footpath

New Footpath

Accommodation Schedule
07No. 2b3p Bungalows 60sq.m 
Total 07No. Units
Site Area = 0.33 Hectares

Existing Services
& 6m Easement

Existing Drain &
6m Wide Easement

02.

20
00

2000

11
00

0

11
00

0

5000

3000

3000

6000
3000

11
00

0

30
0011000

T.
F

T.
F

Front Elevation - Plot No. 03 Front Elevation - Plot No. 04 Front Elevation - Plot No. 05 Front Elevation - Plot No. 06 Front Elevation - Plot No. 07Side Elevation - Plot No. 02

Street Scene Elevation Along Bilberry Close
(Scale 1:100)

Albert Road

Front Elevation - Plot No. 04 Front Elevation - Plot No. 05 Bilberry CloseExisting House

Street Scene Elevation Along Albert Road
(Scale 1:100)

ALBERT ROAD / BILBERRY CLOSE, WHITEFIELD

PROPOSED SITE LAYOUT &

1:500 ALBERT ROAD - P01 C@ A3

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

STREET SCENE ELEVATIONS

A DEC.22 PRE-APP COMMENTS ENDORSED
B FEB.22 BIN LOCATIONS ADDED
C JUNE.22 HIGHWAYS AND PLANNERS COMMENTS ENDORSED

Indicates Aco Drainage Channel

 

Porous / Permeable Surfacing to Drive ways and Aco
Drainage Channels at the junction with the adopted
highway to avoid water travelling from the site onto the
adopted highway.

P
age 138

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
91.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
91.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
91.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
91.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
91.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
91.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
91.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
91.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
91.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
91.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
91.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
91.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
91.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
91.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
91.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
91.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
91.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
91.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
91.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
91.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
91.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
91.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
91.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
91.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
91.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
91.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
91.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
91.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
91.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
91.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
91.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
STx2

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
91.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
91.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
G91.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
91.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
91.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
G91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_285
91.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_286
91.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_287
G91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_288
91.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_289
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_290
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_291
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_292
91.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_293
91.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_294
91.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_295
91.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_296
G91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_297
91.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_298
91.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_299
91.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_300
91.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_301
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_302
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_303
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_304
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_305
91.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_306
91.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_307
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_308
91.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_309
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_310
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_311
91.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_312
91.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_313
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_314
91.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_315
91.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_316
91.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_317
91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_318
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_319
91.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_320
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_321
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_322
91.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_323
91.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_324
91.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_325
91.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_326
91.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_327
91.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_328
91.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_329
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_330
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_331
91.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_332
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_333
G91.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_334
G91.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_335
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_336
91.04

AutoCAD SHX Text_337
91.03

AutoCAD SHX Text_338
G91.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_339
G91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_340
G91.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_341
91.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_342
91.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_343
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_344
91.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_345
91.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_346
91.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_347
91.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_348
91.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_349
91.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_350
91.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_351
91.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_352
91.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_353
91.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_354
91.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_355
91.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_356
91.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_357
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_358
91.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_359
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_360
91.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_361
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_362
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_363
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_364
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_365
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_366
91.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_367
91.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_368
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_369
91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_370
91.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_371
91.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_372
91.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_373
91.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_374
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_375
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_376
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_377
91.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_378
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_379
91.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_380
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_381
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_382
91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_383
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_384
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_385
91.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_386
91.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_387
91.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_388
91.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_389
91.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_390
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_391
91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_392
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_393
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_394
91.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_395
91.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_396
91.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_397
91.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_398
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_399
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_400
91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_401
91.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_402
91.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_403
G91.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_404
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_405
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_406
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_407
91.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_408
91.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_409
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_410
91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_411
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_412
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_413
91.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_414
91.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_415
91.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_416
GATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_417
91.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_418
91.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_419
91.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_420
FFL92.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_421
EL94.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_422
EL96.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_423
RL99.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_424
EL96.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_425
FFL92.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_426
RL98.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_427
EL95.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_428
EL96.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_429
RL98.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_430
EL96.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_431
RL98.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_432
G91.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_433
91.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_434
91.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_435
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_436
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_437
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_438
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_439
91.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_440
91.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_441
91.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_442
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_443
91.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_444
91.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_445
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_446
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_447
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_448
G91.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_449
STx2

AutoCAD SHX Text_450
SV

AutoCAD SHX Text_451
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_452
91.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_453
91.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_454
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_455
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_456
91.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_457
91.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_458
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_459
91.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_460
91.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_461
91.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_462
91.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_463
91.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_464
91.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_465
91.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_466
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text_467
FFL91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_468
EL96.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_469
RL99.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_470
EL96.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_471
RL99.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_472
RL99.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_473
FFL92.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_474
96.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_475
99.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_476
91.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_477
91.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_478
91.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_479
91.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_480
91.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_481
91.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_482
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_483
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_484
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_485
91.82

AutoCAD SHX Text_486
91.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_487
91.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_488
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_489
91.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_490
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_491
91.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_492
91.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_493
91.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_494
91.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_495
91.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_496
91.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_497
91.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_498
91.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_499
91.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_500
91.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_501
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_502
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_503
91.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_504
91.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_505
91.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_506
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_507
91.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_508
91.93

AutoCAD SHX Text_509
91.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_510
91.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_511
91.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_512
91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_513
91.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_514
91.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_515
91.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_516
91.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_517
91.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_518
91.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_519
92.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_520
91.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_521
91.89

AutoCAD SHX Text_522
91.80

AutoCAD SHX Text_523
91.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_524
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_525
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_526
91.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_527
91.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_528
91.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_529
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_530
91.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_531
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_532
91.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_533
91.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_534
91.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_535
91.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_536
91.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_537
91.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_538
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_539
91.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_540
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_541
91.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_542
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_543
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_544
91.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_545
91.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_546
90.98

AutoCAD SHX Text_547
90.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_548
90.94

AutoCAD SHX Text_549
90.90

AutoCAD SHX Text_550
91.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_551
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_552
91.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_553
91.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_554
91.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_555
91.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_556
G91.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_557
STx2

AutoCAD SHX Text_558
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_559
91.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_560
91.22

AutoCAD SHX Text_561
91.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_562
91.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_563
91.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_564
91.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_565
91.34

AutoCAD SHX Text_566
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_567
91.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_568
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_569
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_570
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_571
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_572
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_573
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_574
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_575
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_576
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_577
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_578
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_579
G91.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_580
91.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_581
91.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_582
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_583
91.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_584
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_585
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_586
NP

AutoCAD SHX Text_587
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_588
G91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_589
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_590
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text_591
91.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_592
91.27

AutoCAD SHX Text_593
91.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_594
91.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_595
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_596
91.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_597
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_598
91.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_599
91.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_600
91.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_601
91.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_602
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_603
91.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_604
91.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_605
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_606
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_607
91.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_608
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_609
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_610
91.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_611
91.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_612
91.76

AutoCAD SHX Text_613
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_614
91.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_615
91.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_616
91.81

AutoCAD SHX Text_617
91.77

AutoCAD SHX Text_618
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_619
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_620
91.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_621
91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_622
91.51

AutoCAD SHX Text_623
91.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_624
91.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_625
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_626
91.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_627
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_628
91.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_629
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_630
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_631
91.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_632
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_633
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_634
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_635
91.55

AutoCAD SHX Text_636
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_637
G91.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_638
G91.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_639
G91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_640
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_641
STx2

AutoCAD SHX Text_642
91.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_643
91.97

AutoCAD SHX Text_644
91.92

AutoCAD SHX Text_645
91.91

AutoCAD SHX Text_646
91.88

AutoCAD SHX Text_647
91.83

AutoCAD SHX Text_648
91.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_649
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_650
BT

AutoCAD SHX Text_651
91.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_652
91.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_653
91.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_654
91.19

AutoCAD SHX Text_655
FFL91.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_656
EL96.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_657
EL95.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_658
RL98.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_659
RL98.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_660
FFL92.02

AutoCAD SHX Text_661
EL96.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_662
RL99.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_663
EL96.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_664
RL99.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_665
RL99.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_666
EL96.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_667
EL96.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_668
FFL92.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_669
FFL91.87

AutoCAD SHX Text_670
FFL91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_671
FFL91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_672
91.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_673
91.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_674
91.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_675
91.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_676
91.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_677
91.35

AutoCAD SHX Text_678
91.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_679
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_680
91.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_681
91.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_682
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_683
91.64

AutoCAD SHX Text_684
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_685
91.73

AutoCAD SHX Text_686
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_687
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_688
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_689
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_690
91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_691
91.61

AutoCAD SHX Text_692
91.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_693
91.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_694
91.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_695
91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_696
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_697
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_698
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_699
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_700
91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_701
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_702
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_703
91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_704
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_705
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_706
91.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_707
91.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_708
91.23

AutoCAD SHX Text_709
91.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_710
91.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_711
91.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_712
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_713
91.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_714
91.69

AutoCAD SHX Text_715
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_716
91.78

AutoCAD SHX Text_717
91.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_718
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_719
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_720
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_721
91.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_722
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_723
91.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_724
91.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_725
91.28

AutoCAD SHX Text_726
91.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_727
91.25

AutoCAD SHX Text_728
91.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_729
91.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_730
91.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_731
91.13

AutoCAD SHX Text_732
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_733
91.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_734
91.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_735
91.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_736
91.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_737
91.24

AutoCAD SHX Text_738
91.17

AutoCAD SHX Text_739
91.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_740
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_741
91.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_742
91.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_743
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_744
91.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_745
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_746
91.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_747
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_748
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_749
91.54

AutoCAD SHX Text_750
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_751
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_752
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_753
91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_754
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_755
91.44

AutoCAD SHX Text_756
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_757
91.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_758
91.50

AutoCAD SHX Text_759
91.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_760
91.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_761
91.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_762
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_763
91.46

AutoCAD SHX Text_764
91.42

AutoCAD SHX Text_765
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_766
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_767
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_768
91.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_769
91.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_770
91.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_771
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_772
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_773
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_774
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_775
91.65

AutoCAD SHX Text_776
91.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_777
91.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_778
91.71

AutoCAD SHX Text_779
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_780
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_781
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_782
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_783
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_784
91.68

AutoCAD SHX Text_785
91.66

AutoCAD SHX Text_786
91.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_787
91.57

AutoCAD SHX Text_788
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_789
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_790
91.59

AutoCAD SHX Text_791
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_792
91.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_793
91.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_794
91.06

AutoCAD SHX Text_795
91.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_796
91.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_797
DK

AutoCAD SHX Text_798
91.12

AutoCAD SHX Text_799
91.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_800
91.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_801
91.49

AutoCAD SHX Text_802
91.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_803
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_804
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_805
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_806
91.62

AutoCAD SHX Text_807
91.63

AutoCAD SHX Text_808
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_809
91.58

AutoCAD SHX Text_810
91.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_811
91.52

AutoCAD SHX Text_812
91.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_813
91.43

AutoCAD SHX Text_814
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_815
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_816
91.30

AutoCAD SHX Text_817
91.20

AutoCAD SHX Text_818
91.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_819
91.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_820
91.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_821
91.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_822
BUSHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_823
BUSHES

AutoCAD SHX Text_824
92.86

AutoCAD SHX Text_825
93.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_826
92.45

AutoCAD SHX Text_827
92.26

AutoCAD SHX Text_828
92.31

AutoCAD SHX Text_829
91.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_830
91.18

AutoCAD SHX Text_831
91.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_832
91.21

AutoCAD SHX Text_833
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_834
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_835
91.39

AutoCAD SHX Text_836
91.47

AutoCAD SHX Text_837
91.74

AutoCAD SHX Text_838
91.40

AutoCAD SHX Text_839
91.75

AutoCAD SHX Text_840
91.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_841
91.07

AutoCAD SHX Text_842
91.11

AutoCAD SHX Text_843
91.29

AutoCAD SHX Text_844
91.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_845
91.38

AutoCAD SHX Text_846
91.36

AutoCAD SHX Text_847
91.33

AutoCAD SHX Text_848
91.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_849
91.14

AutoCAD SHX Text_850
91.60

AutoCAD SHX Text_851
91.72

AutoCAD SHX Text_852
91.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_853
91.95

AutoCAD SHX Text_854
91.79

AutoCAD SHX Text_855
91.69



Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2Hall

StoreBathroom Store Bathroom

Bedroom 2 Hall Bedroom 1 Bedroom 1 Bedroom 2Hall

Store

Kitchen

Dining

Lounge

Front Elevation - Plot No. 03

Side Elevation - Plot No. 03

Rear Elevation - Plot No. 03

Side Elevation - Plot No. 03

Floor Plan - Plot No. 03
60sq.m

Kitchen

Dining

Lounge Lounge Kitchen

Dining

Front Elevation - Plot No's 1&2, 4&5, 6&7

Side Elevation - Plot No's 1&2, 4&5, 6&7

Rear Elevation - Plot No's 1&2, 4&5, 6&7

Side Elevation - Plot No's 1&2, 4&5, 6&7

Floor Plans - Plot No's 1&2, 4&5, 6&7
60sq.m

ALBERT ROAD / BILBERRY CLOSE, WHITEFIELD

PROPOSED BUNGALOWS 

1:100 ALBERT ROAD - P02 -@ A2

REV DATE DESCRIPTION

- - -

P
age 139



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 
 
  
 
Ward: Bury East Item   05 

 
Applicant:  Bury Council 
 
Location: Land & buildings at Murray Road/2-10 Princess Parade/47-51 Market Street & Bury 

Market, Bury, BL9 0BJ 
 

Proposal: 1. Demolition of buildings and erection of flexible events hall with associated 
servicing, parking and landscaping: 
2. New canopy structure to cover existing outdoor market; 
3. Temporary permission sought for area of Bury Market car park to be utilised for 
site cabins for the duration of the build 

 
Application Ref:   69580/Full Target Date:  08/08/2023 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The flexi hall/market application site  is 1.31 hectares in size and includes the outdoor 
section of Bury market and buildings at 1 Murray Road, 47 - 51 Market Street and 2 - 10 
Princess Parade. The buildings at Princess Parade and Market Street contain commercial 
and retail units and are two storeys in height. The building on Murray Road contains the 
market offices and is single storey. 
 
Currently, the site is accessed from Angouleme Way via Murray Road and Hilton Road. 
There are a small number of parking spaces accessed from Hilton Road and a coach drop 
off on Murray Road, which connects to Angouleme Way. 
 
There are commercial units to the north and west. Bury interchange is located to the east of 
the site and Angouleme Way forms the boundary to the south. 
 
The proposed development involves: 

• the demolition of the existing buildings (1 Murray Road, 47 - 51 Market Street and 2 - 10 
Princess Parade); 

• the erection of a new flexible events hall; 

• the erection of a new canopy structure to cover the existing outdoor market; 

• temporary permission for a construction compound on the Bury Market car park.  
 
Flexible events hall - The proposed flexi hall would be located in the western part of the site 
and would contain two floors and would be three storeys in height. The proposed building 
would be constructed from brick and timber and would be accessed from Murray Road. The 
proposed flexi hall would be used for a variety of uses as follows: 

• conferences, meetings and training; 

• AGMs, business to business networking; 

• banquets, awards dinners, drinks receptions; 

• small trade exhibitions, public exhibitions 

• weddings, private parties, christmas parties 

• community use including support groups, hobby groups, indoor sports, well being and 
public information exhibitions; 

• gigs, tribute nights, dance, boxing matches; 

• festivals, pop up trading. 

• offices for use by the market staff 
 
New canopy structure - The proposed development involves the erection of a canopy above 

Page 141



the external market. The proposed canopy would be constructed from a membrane with 
polycarbonate panels and would consist of a canopy with a series of pitched roofs, which 
would be set above the existing market stalls. 
 
Temporary construction compound - The proposed construction compound would be 
erected in the south eastern corner of the market car park, which is on the south side of 
Angouleme Way. The proposed compound would be in place for a temporary period of 21 
months and would measure 54 metres by 34 metres. It would contain the market office 
(temporarily), Contractor offices and welfare facilities, storage containers, security point and 
staff parking. The proposed compound would have solid hoardings (3 metres in height) on 
the perimeter with gates for access. The proposed development would be accessed from 
Spring Street. The cabins would be double stacked and would be two storeys in height.  
 
The vehicular access would be from Angouleme Way and a car park containing 6 disabled 
parking bays would be provided. The existing coach drop off point and access to the 
external market would be retained.  
 
Relevant Planning History 
Pre-application enquiry 
02759/E - Demolition of existing building and creation of new flexi hall, market canopy and 
associated external works, parking and servicing at Bury Market, 1 Murray Road, Bury> 
Enquiry completed - 17 October 2022. 
 
Planning applications 
47600 - Provision of two new market stalls at Bury Market, Market Square, Bury. Approved 
with conditions - 29 March 2007 
 
48058 - Provision of security gates and railings to existing outdoor market (resubmission) at 
Bury Market, off Market Square, Bury. Approved with conditions - 13 June 2007. 
 
56476 - Demolition of disused toilet block and modification to interchange structure to create 
a bus-only access onto Angouleme Way and associated works at Bury Interchange, 
Haymarket Street, Bury. Approved with conditions - 14 August 2013. 
 
57862 - Change of use of land from vacant former PFS site to a temporary coach drop-off 
facility for Bury Markets, including a new access to the site from Murray Road and a new 
exit onto Angouleme Way. Surfacing works to create a uniform surface for coach 
passengers to alight/board at site of former fuel station, junction of Angouleme Way/Murray 
Road, Bury. Approved with conditions - 9 October 2014. 
 
63318 - Change of use from bank (Class A2) to restaurant (Class A3) with ancillary 
children's play area on first floor and exterior alterations including 2 no. flues at rear at 51 
Market Street, Bury. Approved with conditions - 4 December 2018 
 
64288 - Addition of new curved roof section to the Edward Stall block 'A' at Bury Market, 
Angouleme Way, Bury. Approved with conditions - 5 September 2019. 
 
69323 - Prior approval for proposed demolition of 3 no. existing buildings and removal of 
market canopies (enabling works for proposed new Flexi hall and market canopy and 
associated landscaping and servicing) at Bury Market, Murray Road, Bury. Prior approval 
required and granted - 2 March 2023. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 11 May 2023 and a press 
notice was published in the Bury Times on 18 May 2023. Site notices were posted on 18 
May 2023. 
 
1 letter has been received, which has raised the following issues: 

• Millgate Management have not been very clear with what the plans are and many 

Page 142



retailers in the area are extremely concerned and worried by the uncertainty. Many 
retailers have been given different or contradicting information resulting in uncertainty 
such as extending lease agreements or making business forecasts. Though we 
appreciate they can only tell so much, a clearer and more transparent approach by The 
Millgate Shopping Centre and Bury council would be appreciated. 

• Talks of town centre changes and funding have been going on since around 2021, 
therefore, for the Millgate to sign retailers up for leases or long term leases at least, is 
unfair. Retailers spend a lot of time, effort and finance to set up. 

• With many areas and buildings being knocked down including much of princess parade, 
we are concerned that this will make bury town centre an inaccessible place. Visitors 
are reliant on certain routes and particular modes of transport to enter the parade. 
Knocking down part of Princess Parade and work in the surrounding area, will make this 
area inaccessible by foot or by bus. 

• Concern that footfall floor to the area resulting in a massive downfall of customers, thus 
resulting in massive loss of trading. Less shops on the parade mean less customers 
interested in the area.  

• We would expect for retailers on the parade to be compensated for loss of earnings 
whether that be while work is taking place or after as foot floor will be reduced. 

• Business rates are paid to Bury Council, however, with the planned disruption, we would 
expect for retailers to be refunded or made exempt. 

• When will a feasibility study be conducted for the works? As seen in many town centres 
that have been through similar changes, there are empty spaces and units as trading in 
todays world is difficult and expensive with rates, bills, etc. Is it all going to be prove a 
waste? 

• How long is the work expected to take bearing in mind delays, etc? 
 
The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.  
 
Statutory/Non-Statutory Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections in principle. Conditions will be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. 
Drainage Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to surfacet 
water drainage. 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land.  
Environmental Health - Air Quality - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition 
relating to dust measures.  
Environmental Health - Pollution Control - No comments.  
Environmental Health - Commercial Section - No response. 
Public Rights of Way Officer - No objections. 
Conservation Officer - No objections. 
Waste Management - No response. 
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to bats, 
nesting birds and landscaping.  
G M Archaeological Advisory Service - No objections.  
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to foul and 
surface water drainage. 
The Coal Authority - No objections, subject to the inclusion of informatives relating to coal. 
Transport for GM - No objections. 
Environment Agency - No objections.  
Cadent Gas Ltd - No objections, subject to the inclusion of informative relating to gas 
infrastructure. 
Designforsecurity - No response. 
 
Pre-start Conditions - Awaiting confirmation that Applicant/Agent agrees with pre-start 
conditions. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EN1/1 Visual Amenity 

Page 143



EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN1/4 Street Furniture 
EN1/5 Crime Prevention 
EN1/7 Throughroutes and Gateways 
EN1/8 Shop Fronts 
EN2 Conservation and Listed Buildings 
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas 
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control 
EN2/3 Listed Buildings 
EN5/1 New Development and Flood Risk 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/1 Atmospheric Pollution 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8 Woodland and Trees 
RT3/4 Recreational Routes 
RT4/1 Tourism Development 
S1/1 Shopping in Bury Town Centre 
S2/4 Control of Non-Retail Uses in All Other Areas 
S2/6 Food and Drink 
S3/4 Markets 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT4 New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
HT6/1 Pedestrian and Cyclist Movement 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
TC1/1 Open Space in Town Centres 
TC1/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict in Town Centres 
TC2/2 Mixed Use Development 
Area 
BY6 

Central Shopping Area 

SPD3 DC Policy Guidance Note 3: Planning Out Crime 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
policies of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Community facilities - Policy CF1/1 states that proposals for new and 
improved community facilities will be considered with regard to the following factors: 

• impact on residential amenity and the local environment; 

• traffic generation and car parking provision; 

• the scale and size of the development; 

• where applicable, access to shops and other services; 

• if the use is intended to serve a local community, or catchment area, the suitability of the 
chosen location in relation to that community or catchment area; 

• accessibility by public and private transport; 
Page 144



• the needs and requirements of the disabled. 
 
The proposed development includes the provision of a flexi hall for use in conjunction with 
the market and to enable the market to host events. The proposed development would have 
good access to shops and other services and would serve the catchment area of the market 
well. The site has good access to public transport and there are several car parks nearby. 
As such, the proposed use would be a community facility and would be in accordance with 
Policy CF1/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Principle - Town centre - Paragraph 81 of the NPPF states that planning policies and 
decisions should help create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and 
adapt. Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and 
productivity, taking into account both local business needs and wider opportunities for 
development. The approach taken should allow each area to build on its strengths, counter 
any weaknesses and address the challenges of the future. 
 
The proposed development was successful in securing funding for this project from the 
Levelling Up fund to support improvements at Bury Market, the development of a new flexi 
hall and enhanced public realm improvements. This scheme forms part of wider plans to 
transform and regenerate the town centre, which include a new transport interchange and a 
redeveloped Mill Gate centre. It is recognised that the market plays a vital role for local 
customers and traders, while also drawing visitors from afar.  
 
Paragraph 86 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should support the 
role that town centres play at the heart of local communities, by taking a positive approach 
to their growth, management and adaptation. Planning policies should: 
a. define a network and hierarchy of town centres and promote their long-term vitality and 

viability – by allowing them to grow and diversify in a way that can respond to rapid 
changes in the retail and leisure industries, allows a suitable mix of uses (including 
housing) and reflects their distinctive characters; 

b. define the extent of town centres and primary shopping areas, and make clear the range 
of uses permitted in such locations, as part of a positive strategy for the future of each 
centre; 

c. retain and enhance existing markets and, where appropriate, re-introduce or create new 
ones; 

d. allocate a range of suitable sites in town centres to meet the scale and type of 
development likely to be needed, looking at least ten years ahead. Meeting anticipated 
needs for retail, leisure, office and other main town centre uses over this period should 
not be compromised by limited site availability, so town centre boundaries should be 
kept under review where necessary; 

e. where suitable and viable town centre sites are not available for main town centre uses, 
allocate appropriate edge of centre sites that are well connected to the town centre. If 
sufficient edge of centre sites cannot be identified, policies should explain how identified 
needs can be met in other accessible locations that are well connected to the town 
centre; and 

f. recognise that residential development often plays an important role in ensuring the 
vitality of centres and encourage residential development on appropriate sites.  

 
Policy S2/4 states that when considering proposals for a non-retail use, the following factors 
will be taken into account: 

• that the proposal is appropriate in scale and character to the requirements of the area 
and necessary to serve the local needs which would not otherwise be met; 

• that the new non-retail use would not result in an over concentration or grouping of uses 
which could result in a long term loss of trade from a centre compared with a continued 
Class A1 use; 

• whether or not the locality is adequately served by alternative local shopping facilities 
within reasonable walking distance; 

• that a display window is retained or provided, where appropriate; 

• that access is provided for the mobility impaired, where appropriate; 
Page 145



• that adequate provision is made for car parking and servicing. 
 
Policy S3/4 states that the Council will encourage and support proposals which seek to 
consolidate and enhance existing market facilities in Bury, Ramsbottom and Radcliffe town 
centres through environmental and physical improvements. 
 
The proposed flexi hall would provide a flexible space, which would help to diversify the 
uses within the town centre and allow the town centre to provide a adaptable space. The 
proposed development would bring footfall into the town centre, which would be of benefit to 
the market and existing retailers. Overall, the proposed development would have a positive 
impact upon the vitality and viablity of the town centre and would be in accordance with 
paragraphs 81 and 86 of the NPPF.  
 
The proposed development would provide a flexible civic space for use in conjunction with 
the market and a canopy to the existing outdoor stalls on the market. The proposed flexi hall 
would contain a multi functional space for events, pop up trading, live performance and 
community events, a cafe, offices for the market and toilets and storage etc. While the 
proposed development would not be a retail use (Class E), it would complement the market 
and the surrounding retail units by increasing footfall. through diversification. As such, the 
proposed development would not harm the existing retail offer and would enhance the 
market facilities. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies 
S2/4 and S3/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Heritage - The application site is outside Bury Town Centre Conservation Area but the tip of 
the north west boundary of the site is adjacent to the south east tip of the conservation area 
boundary. There are some designated and non-designated heritage assets in proximity to 
the application site, in particular the Grade II listed Kay Monument and Bury College 
Woodbury Centre, which is a Non-Designated Heritage Asset.  
 
Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires 
Local Planning Authorities in the exercise of their planning functions to pay special attention 
to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the 
conservation area. 
 
Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 requires 
Local Planning Authorities in the exercise of their planning functions to have regard to the 
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special architectural or 
historic interest which it possesses. 
 
Paragraph 199 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states when considering 
the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset, 
great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the asset, 
the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm 
amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance. 
 
Paragraph 200 of the NPPF states any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a designated 
heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development within its setting), 
should require clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm to or loss of:  

• grade II listed buildings, or grade II registered parks or gardens, should be exceptional; 

• assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites, 
registered battlefields, grade I and II* listed buildings, grade I and II* registered parks 
and gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.  

  
Paragraph 202 of the NPPF states where a development proposal will lead to less than 
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be 
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing 
its optimum viable use. 
 
Policy EN2/3 states that the Council will actively safeguard the character and setting of 

Page 146



Listed Buildings by not permitting works, alterations or changes of use which would have a 
detrimental effect on their historical or architectural character and features. Proposals for 
demolition will be opposed and will only be considered where it is demonstrated 
conclusively that the building(s) cannot be retained.  
 
This application is part of the wider Bury Town Centre Master Plan for regeneration which 
includes further re-development of Princess Parade and a new bus station, both of which by 
virtue of their 1960s and 80's design / materials represent negative features within the 
setting of the conservation area and other designated and non-designated assets. Opposite 
Princess Parade is a 19th century Mill Gate building of red brick with stone dressings that 
elegantly curves around the corner. This forms the southern edge of the Bury Town Centre 
Conservation Area. It has modern casement windows, 21st century shopfronts and a 
ground floor metal canopy, as the canopy continues along the modern shopping centre 
adjacent, it is considered to be a modern addition of no interest.   
 
North from the application site is the Kay Monument, which is a stone structure sat on a 
series of steps at the centre of a triangular park. The Monument is an attractive feature and 
due to its prominence and setting is a focal point for the immediate area. The setting of the 
Grade II listed Kay Monument is intimate and defined by its curtilage constrained by the bus 
station to the south and Haymarket and Market Street to the west and east respectively.  
 
Bury College Woodbury House is a Non-Designated Heritage Asset sited to the south of the 
application site, south of Angouleme Way.   
 
The proposed building would not dominate the surrounding built environment being at a 
similar height to nearby buildings such as the Mill Gate fronting Market Street and the 
Woodbury Centre. Due to its strong vertical emphasis, the proposed development would 
represent architectural cohesion with these and other nearby buildings such as the 
Townside development. 
 
The proposed building would not disrupt key viewpoints into and out of the setting of the 
Grade II listed Kay Monument and Garden and as such, would have a neutral impact on its 
setting. It is not considered the proposed building would have such an impact on the setting 
of the conservation area as to cause harm to its significance. As such, it would preserve the 
character and appearance of the conservation area.   
 
The proposed development would not be viewed within the setting of the Woodbury Centre.  
The proposed replacement canopy to the outdoor market would not be visible in the 
conservation area. 
 
The Conservation Officer has no objections to the proposed development.   
 
Therefore, the proposed development would preserve the character and appearance of the 
Conservation Area and would have a neutral impact upon the character o fthe Grade II 
listed Kay Monument. The proposed development would be in accordance with Policies 
EN2/1, EN2/2 and EN2/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and paragraphs 199, 200 
and 202 of the NPPF.  
 
Design and layout - The proposed scheme has been presented to Places Matter for a 
design review. There were no objections in principle, but the main concern was centred on a 
small scale space/square. The design panel did not understand the diagonal axis / 
importance to the outdoor market area and preferred a simplification of the external design. 
 
The proposed scheme has responded by improving the landscaping and by working 
towards a longer term plan which would seek to create a larger open space/square so the 
flexi hall can stand as a key focal point/way finding building. The proposed flexi hall would 
be a focal point and has been designed to have an active frontage to all boundaries, which 
would provide a good relationship to the interchange and its subsequent redevelopment.  
 

Page 147



Flexi hall - The proposed flexi hall would be located so as to create a focal point and would 
act as a gateway feature to Bury town centre. The location of the proposed hub has been 
set by analysing the main pedestrian routes from Kay Gardens to the market and along 
Haymarket Street. The proposed building has been designed so as to create an active 
frontage to all sides and would be a welcoming, inclusive feature.  
 
The proposed building would be two to three storeys in height and has been designed in 
two halves. The triangular section of the proposed building would be constructed from 
timber with three storey high glazing to create the triple height flexi hall. The proposed hall 
would be multi functional and would be able to accommodate market stalls, pop up trading, 
live events and community events. The rectangular section of the proposed building would 
be two storeys in height and would have a more traditional brick construction. This part of 
the building would contain meeting spaces and offices for the market management team, 
storage, toilets, staircases and a cafe/bar area.  
 
Overall, the proposed flexi hall would be of a modern design with a strong vertical emphasis 
to the windows and openings. The proposed materials of brick with timber cladding would b 
complement the nearby buildings, including those within the Conservation area in colour, 
whilst providing a contemporary structural element in timber. Therefore, the proposed 
building would not be a prominent feature in the streetscene and would be in accordance 
with Policies EN1/1, EN1/2, EN2/1 and EN2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Canopy - The existing canopy, which is constructed from polycarbonate, covers the 
walkways and would be demolished. The existing market stalls would be retained. The 
proposed canopy would cover the two areas of the outdoor market and would be 
constructed from polycarbonate panels with a single ply membrane roof. The proposed 
canopy would have polycarbonate infill panels and timber facings/soffits on the external 
face, where signage could be added at a later date.  
 
The design of the proposed canopy has evolved from a sculptural wave with curved glass 
elements to the current design, which involves the provision of a canopy with a series of 
pitched roofs. The current design combines the more sculptural form of the original canopy 
with a simpler geometry, incorporating translucent roof sections and fewer columns. The 
proposed design would would ensure good light levels within the market and provide 
weather protection to the users. 
 
The proposed canopy would present a traditional roof form with modern materials and 
would draw attention to the entrance to the market. The proposed development, including 
the removal of the existing canopy and the installation of the new canopy would be installed 
above the existing external market stalls, which would be open during the construction 
period.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not be an unduly prominent feature in the 
streetscene and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/1 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
Temporary construction compound - The proposed compound would consist of double and 
single height containers, which would contain offices, meeting rooms and toilet/showering 
facilities. A security point would be provided and there would be storage containers and a 
storage area provided as well as an area for staff parking.  
 
The proposed buildings would be temporary and would be located on the eastern part of the 
site, which would result in the temporary loss of 116 parking spaces. A 3 metre high 
hoarding would be provided on the perimeter of the site, which would help to screen the 
proposed buildings. Given the temporary nature of the facility and its location within a 
commercial part of the town centre and the timber hoarding, it is considered that the 
proposed development would not be significantly harmful to the visual amenity of the area. 
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy EN1/2 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan.  

Page 148



 
Impact upon residential amenity  
Flexi hall - Aspect standards (from SPD6) are not relevant in a town centre location. The 
proposed flexi hall is largely replacing existing built form and outlooks from the existing 
residential properties would maintain oblique or onward views. 
 
The floor layout of the proposed flexi hall is such that there would only be limited views out 
from the building at an elevated position and then across internal space within the proposed 
building. It will have a similar relationship to existing buildings with only a marginal 
overlooking relationship. However, this is expected in town centre locations. Despite this, 
the overlooking is considered not to be of any significant concern. 
 
Canopy - The proposed market canopy would be between 4.4 and 5.9 metres in height and 
the residential properties are at first floor level. By providing a minimum of 9.1 metres 
between the proposed canopy and the residential dwellings, (which for reference would 
exceed the aspect standard of 6.5 metres), the proposed canopy would not have a 
significant adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring properties.  
 
Noise - A noise survey was submitted with the application. The report concludes that the 
background noise levels for the day, evening and night are 53dB, 48dB and 38dB 
respectively. The plant for the proposed building would be located on a rectangular area of 
the roof, which would have a full storey of the rectangular roof space between the plant and 
the existing dwellings. As such, any noise would be directed towards the interchange and 
the town centre. The report recommends that any plant should be 5dB below the 
background noise level, which would be conditioned. 
 
The proposed flexi hall would be used as a venue for events, which may include the use of 
amplified music. A noise report has been submitted, which has assessed the background 
noise levels. Technical guidance states that the 'entertainment noise should be controlled to 
10dB below the background noise level without the entertainment noise present, in each 
octave band at the nearest noise sensitive location.' The nearest noise sensitive locations 
would be the residential properties above Princess Parade. 
 
The report concludes that the criteria for internal sound levels can be achieved in the 
residential properties, subject to mitigation measures. The mitigation measures would 
include double glazed window units, cladded walls, ventilators and a sound level monitor or 
noise limiter within the flexi hall building and a noise management plan, which could include 
permitted operational hours for amplified music, sound level limits for amplified music and a 
clear noise complaints and monitoring procedure. All of the mitigation measures would be 
conditioned. Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significantly adverse 
impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring properties and would be in accordance with 
Policy EN7/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Ecology - An ecological survey was submitted with the application and the main issues 
relate to bats, nesting birds and biodiversity mitigation. 
 
Bats - Bat surveys were provided for the prior approval application for demolition, which 
confirmed that there were no bats found within the buildings. GM Ecology Unit has no 
objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to bats. Therefore, the proposed 
development would not have an adverse impact upon a protected species.  
 
Nesting birds - Two breeds of birds (feral pigeon and pied wagtail) were suspected of 
nesting across the site. All British birds nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are 
protected by Section 1 of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981, as amended. It should be 
noted that pigeons are capable of breeding throughout the year and whilst protected on the 
nest like any birds, they are also listed as a pest species and a 'general license' can be 
applied for from Natural England to allow work to proceed that would damage pigeon's 
nests, if present.  GM Ecology Unit has no objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition 
relating to nesting birds.  

Page 149



 
Contributing to and Enhancing the Natural Environment - Section 174 of the NPPF 2021 
states that the planning policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural 
and local environment.  
 
The existing site is primarily hardstanding with a few young mature trees to the north and 
south and a small area of amenity grassland.  The trees to the south would be lost as part 
of the proposed development and 1 tree to the north would be removed. The five trees lost 
would be replaced with around 20 small and medium sized trees, with an increase overall of 
vegetated land. Given the increase in the number of trees on site and the increased 
vegetation, the proposed development would be able to enhance the local environment. GM 
Ecology Unit have no objections, subject to the inclusion of condition relating to 
landscaping, which would include provision for nesting birds. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon a protected 
species and would be in accordance with Policies EN6 and EN6/3 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 
 
Drainage/Flood risk - The existing site consists of predominantly hardstanding and 
buildings and is located within flood zone 1, which is at low risk of flooding. The proposed 
redevelopment would include the use of sustainable urban drainage systems. These would 
include the use of an attenuation tank and rain gardens, which would be landscaped areas. 
Both of which would contain water and slowly feed it back into the drainage system. The 
Drainage Officer has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to surface 
water drainage and the location of the columns. As such, the proposed development would 
not have an adverse impact upon the drainage system and would not increase flood risk to 
the site or downstream. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with 
Policy EN5/1 and EN7/5 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Air quality - A air quality assessment was submitted with the application and the impacts to 
air quality would be from the construction and operational phases.  
 
During the construction phase, the potential impacts to air quality would be from dust 
emissions. The report states that the use of good practice control measures would mitigate 
the impacts and reduce air quality impacts to an acceptable level. 
 
During the operational phase, there is the potential for negative air quality impacts as a 
result of traffic exhaust emissions associated with vehicles driving to and from the site. 
However, there would be a relatively low number of vehicle trips and the existing provision 
of electric vehicle charging points on the market car park would ensure that there would not 
be a significant impact. 
 
Environmental Health - Air Quality have no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions 
relating to dust measures. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon air 
quality and would be in accordance with Policy EN7/1 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan.  
 
Highways issues - The proposed development would be accessed from Murray Road via 
the existing vehicular access and there would be acceptable levels of inter visibility. The 
proposed development would provide a turning area adjacent to 6 disabled parking bays 
and would maintain access to the existing coach drop off point.  
 
Pedestrian access along the adopted highway would be maintained along Princess Parade, 
Haymarket Street and Murray Road and pedestrian access would be maintained under the 
proposed canopy. Revised plans have been provided, which would ensure that the 
materials used would be paviours which would match the existing town centre. The Traffic 
Section has no objections in principle and conditions will be reported in the Supplementary 

Page 150



Report. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not be detrimental to highway safety and would 
be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, HT4 and HT6/2 of the Bury Unitary Development 
Plan.  
 
Parking/Construction compound 
Flexi hall - With regard to parking provision, there is no maximum standard within SPD 11. 
 
The current use of the site includes retail units and the market offices, which is served by 
town centre parking with 5 disabled parking bays located off Murray Road.  
 
The proposed development would provide 6 disabled parking bays adjacent to the proposed 
flexi hall, which would be 1 more than the current provision. The proposed development 
would be located next to the interchange and would be accessible for any bus and tram 
users. In addition, there are public car parks (Trinity Street & Bury Market car parks) on the 
opposite side of Angouleme Way, which are within walking distance of the proposed 
development. As such, given the very sustainable location, the level of parking provision 
would be acceptable in this instance and would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Construction compound - The proposed construction compound would be located on 116 
spaces within the Bury market car park for a period of 21 months.  
 
A parking strategy was undertaken in November 2022 by Bury Council and states that the 
car park near the market is 'extremely underutilised on non-market days.' As such, there 
would be sufficient parking available on non-market days (Sunday - Tuesday and 
Thursday).  
 
On market days (Wednesday, Friday and Saturday), the market car park is utilised and is 
almost at capacity. However, the car parks on George Street and Trinity Street and all within 
walking distance of the market/town centre and would be able to accommodate any parking 
displaced from the market car park. Therefore, the proposed construction compound would 
not have an adverse impact upon the level of parking available in the town centre.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan and SPD11.  
 
Community consultation -  A series of consultations took place including face to face 
'drop in' sessions, meetings with various stakeholders and a webpage where people were 
able to comment on the proposals prior to the submission of the planning application.  
 
Various meetings have been held with the Bury market Traders Association and discussions 
have been held with the stakeholders involved in the schemes relating to the adjacent 
interchange and the Millgate centre.  
 
From Monday 9 January 2023 to Sunday 29 January, a comprehensive public consultation 
took place, which incorporated an array of approaches, including 'drop in' sessions and 
online engagement. Presentations were provided at the Bury Town Centre Advisory Board 
and at the Bury East Community Groups in January.  
 
55 survey responses were received forms after the public consultation. 
 
The feedback from the public consultation and meetings has resulted in several changes to 
the scheme. 
 
The Council have adopted a town centre masterplan recognising the importance of large 
stakeholders and their significnat land holdings in the town centre working/knitting together. 
Each stakeholder will, has or is undertaking further consultation. More consultation will 

Page 151



ensue, but the part for the flexi hall has now reached application stage and requires 
determination. 
 
The interface between the proposed flexi hall, interchange scheme by Transport for GM and 
the Millgate proposals has been key and a fundamental part of the proposals, which have 
evolved collaboratively. 
 
Conclusion 
A significant regeneration proposal that has been formulated to work in with wider 
regeneration proposals will further enhance the town centre viability and vitality and would 
be an additional functional contribution to the longevity of the outdoor market. 
 
Bold and contemporary in design, the building would replace existing poor buildings within 
the town centre and would be the first part of major proposals coming forward in due 
course. 
 
The development would be compliant with planning policy and relationships to pre-existing 
but limited residential uses would be appropriately maintained. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 

2. This decision relates to drawings numbered BURMAR-JHA-V6-XX-DR-A-0145 
Rev P02, BURMAR-JHA-00-XX-DR-A-0001 Rev P06, 
BURMAR-JHA-V6-XX-DR-A-0003 Rev P23, BURMAR-JHA-V6-XX-DR-A-0112 
Rev P11, BURMAR-JHA-V5-02-XX-A-0017 Rev P01, 
BURMAR-JHA-XX-02-DR-A-0015 Rev P14, BURMAR-JHA-V2-02-DR-A-0102 Rev 
P06, BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0009 Rev P12, BURMAR-JHA-XX-DR-A-0035 
Rev P07, BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0029 REV P09, 
BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0038 Rev P08, BURMAR-JHA-XX-02-DR-A-0034 
Rev P10, BURMAR-JHA-XX-02-DR-A-0063 Rev P09, 
BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0007 Rev P12, BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0008 
Rev P12, BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0009 Rev P13, 
BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0010 Rev P11, BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0042 
Rev P11, BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0111 Rev P03, 
BURMAR-JHA-VS-XX-DR-A-0136 REV P04, BURMAR-JHA-V5-02-DR-A-0013 
Rev P11, BURMAR-JHA-V5-XX-DR-A-0162 Rev P01, 
BURMAR-JHA-V6-ZZ-DR-A-0154 Rev P01, BURMAR-CWC-V2-04-DR-M-5701 
P05, BURMAR-CWC-V2-00-DR-M-5701 P4, BURNAR-CWC-V2-ZZ-DR-E-6301 
P2, BURMAR-CWC-V2-01-DR-M-5701 P4, BURMAR-JHA-XX-DR-A-0064 Rev 
P06, BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0023 Rev P08, BURMAR-JHA-XX-DR-A-0016 
Rev P13, BURMAR-JHA-V5-02-XX-A-0017 Rev P20, 
BURMAR-JHA-V5-XX-DR-A-0036 Rev P11, BURMAR-JHA-V5-XX-DR-A-0151 

Page 152



Rev P01, BURMAR-JHA-V5-XX-DR-A-0152 Rev P01, 
BURMAR-JHA-V6-ZZ-DR-A-0153 Rev P01, BURMAR-JHA-V2-02-DR-A-0004 Rev 
P22, BURMAR-JHA-V2-02-DR-A-0005 Rev P25, 
BURMAR-JHA-V2-02-DR-A-0006 Rev P13, BURMAR-JHA-V2-ZZ-DR-A-0042 Rev 
P10, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0100 08, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0102 05, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0103 05, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0104 05, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0105 05, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0106 05, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0107 05, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0108 06, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0109 04, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0110 03, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0112 03, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0113 03, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0114 03, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0115 03, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0116 04, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0117 04, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0300 02, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0302 03, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0303 01, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0304 01, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0305 01, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0401 02, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0402 02, BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0403 00, 
BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0404 00, BURMAR-AJP-V2-ZZ-DR-C-0001 P04, 
Proposed site office and welfare compound, 70092924-TP-009 P01, 57968/1, 
57968/2, 57968/3 and the development shall not be carried out except in 
accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 

3. No development other than demolition, shall commence unless or until 
details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations, 
together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the 
approved materials/bricks shall be used for the construction of the development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 

 

4. No development, other than demolition shall commence, unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 
remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

Page 153



 

6. No development shall commence unless and until a scheme to minimise dust 
emissions has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme shall include details of all dust [and odour] control 
measures and the methods to monitor emissions of dust [and odour] arising from 
the development. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved scheme with the approved dust control measures being retained and 
maintained in a fully functional condition for the duration of the development 
hereby approved. 
Reason. The information is required to reduce the impacts of dust disturbance 
from the site on the local environment, pursuant to chapter 11 of the NPPF - 
Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 

7. If the demolitions hereby approved does not commence before 30th April 2025, 
the building must be reassessed for bat roosting potential and the finding supplied 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to demolition works 
commencing. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 
11 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 

8. No demolition shall occur unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably 
experienced ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to demolition and 
written confirmation provided that no active bird nests are present which has been 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, unless the species present is 
feral pigeon in which case a general license issued by Natural England authorising 
destruction of feral nests should be provided to the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 - Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 - 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 15 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 

9. No development, other than demolition, shall commence unless or until a 
landscaping scheme of soft and hard landscaping, planting, materials and 
maintenance has been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The contents of the plan should include native tree and shrub planting 
and the provision of bat bricks/tubes within the new development and bat and bird 
boxes.  The approved scheme shall thereafter be implemented not later than 12 
months from the date the building(s) is first occupied or within the first available 
tree planting season,; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming 
severely damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting 
shall be replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally 
required to be planted.   
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential 
Development,  EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 - Woodland and 
Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and chapter 15 - Conserving 
and enhancing the natural environment of the NPPF.  

 

10. No development, other than demolition, shall commence unless or until details of 
the final design of surface water drainage proposals have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be based 
on the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance 
and be designed in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards for 
Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) and in line with the principles 
outlined on submitted drawing ref BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0108. Final design 
details shall include: 
1. Appropriate calculations, up to 1:100 year storm event with 40% addition for 

Page 154



Climate chang; 
2. Test results to support the chosen solution; 
3. The design and location of attenuation tanks; 
4. Details of proposed maintenance arrangements; 
5. A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the Local Planning 

Authority (if it is agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); 
Only the approved details shall be implemented prior to first occupation and 
thereafter maintained.  
Reason. The current application contains insufficient information regarding the 
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact.  To promote sustainable 
development and reduce flood risk pursuant to Unitary Development Plan Policies 
EN5/1- New Development and Flood Risk , EN7/3 - Water Pollution and EN7/5 - 
Waste Water Management and chapter 14 - Meeting the challenge of climate 
change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF. 

 

11. No development other than demolition shall commence unless or until a scheme of 
noise mititgation measures, including a noise management plan has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved details shall be implemented prior to first occupation of the building 
hereby approved and the noise management plan shall be adhered to while the 
building is in use.  
Reason. To reduce nuisance from noise to the occupiers of the nearby dwelling 
pursuant to Policy EN7/2 - Noise Pollution of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 

12. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 
Management Plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority and shall confirm/provide the following: 
 
1. Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements; 
2. Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage 

of the site; 
3. Parking on site of operatives' and demolition/construction vehicles together 

with storage on site of demolition/construction materials; 
4. Measures to ensure that all mud and other loose materials are not carried on 

the wheels and chassis of any vehicles leaving the site and measures to 
minimise dust nuisance caused by the operations 

 
The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the demolition/construction 
period and the measures shall be retained and facilities used for the intended 
purpose for the duration of the demolition and construction periods. The areas 
identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the turning/parking of 
vehicles and storage of demolition/construction materials. 
This condition can be satisfied in phases. 
Reason.  Information not submitted at application stage. To mitigate the impact of 
the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the adjacent 
residential streets, and ensure adequate off street car parking provision and 
materials storage arrangements for the duration of the construction period and that 
the adopted highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works 
operations, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary 
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 - 
Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Leach on 0161 253 5322

Page 155



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

o

n

o

n

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 69580

Land & buildings at Murray Road/
2-10 Princess Parade/47-51 Market 
Street & Bury Market

(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

FB

Subway

Subway

TCB

TCBs

FB

FB

Market Hall

M
a
rg

a
re

t  
B

l o
ck

15

S
h
e

lt e
rs

5 7

PC

15
 to

 1
9

9

42

1

3

4
2

56

48

2

11

Wyndham

27

Georgiana

Garden

32

24

7
to

11

1

26
a

26

17

27

38

6 to 10
40

13

19

4

2

21

Sta

53

12
 to

 1
8

37
33

31

3

1

35
 to

 4
3

K
a
y G

a
rd

e
n
 S

ho
p
p
ing

 C
e
n
tre

2

T
o

u
l m

in
 B

lo
c
k

B
lo

ck

B
lo

ck

Fr
ed

er
ic
k

30

31

12

5

PC

Prin
ce

ss
 B

lock

George B
lock

Block

Blo
ck

E
d
w

a
rd

Market

Humphrey House

Blo
ck

2

19 to 23

20

10

32
 to

 3
6

21

59

Sub

12

20

14

El

41

41

1

Woodbury Centre

6

8

12

20

The Square

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

A
N

G
O

U
LE

M
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

PA
R
A
D
E

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

M
A
R
K
E
T

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

HILTON ROAD

WAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAYWAY

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

M
U

R
R

A
Y

 R
O

A
D

ANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEME
ANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEME
ANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEME
ANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEME
ANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEME
ANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEME
ANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEMEANGOULEME
ANGOULEME

The M
all

M
in

den P
ara

de

Princess Parade

5

6

4
1

3

2

87

Viewpoints - 69580

Page 156



69580 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2 

 

 Page 157



69580 

Photo 3 

 

Photo 4 

 Page 158



69580 

Photo 5 

 

Photo 6 

 Page 159



69580 

Photo 7 

 

Photo 8 

 Page 160



12

1
2

3

DEMOLITION KEY PLAN

Building to be demolished

Canopy to be demolished

EXISTING MATERIALS OF BUILDINGS TO BE
DEMOLISHED.

EXISTING BUILDING 1:
Existing two storey building with brick façades
incorporating timber framed glazed shop fronts at ground
floor and small timber frame windows to first floor, with
metal security roller shutters. Building has existing flat
roof with brick parapets at roof edges and a partial slate
pitched roof to the north end.

EXISTING BUILDING 2:
Existing two storey building with brick façades and a
pebble dash render mid band to the side elevations and
parapet band detail to all elevations. Metal framed
glazed shop fronts at ground floor to north elevation with
metal security roller shutters and metal frame windows to
first floor. Projecting panel clad canopy over shopfronts
on north elevation. Building has existing flat roof with
parapet upstand at roof edges.

EXISTING BUILDING 3:
Existing single storey building with brick façades and part
rendered façade with signage to south elevation above
windows. UPVC framed full height windows to three
elevations with metal security roller shutters. Building
has existing flat roof and brick parapets at roof edges.

EXISTING MARKET CANOPIES:
Existing secondary pitched canopy roofs spanning
between existing market stall buildings made up of
lightweight clear polycarbonate panels supported on
metal frames, metal ridge beams and steel tie rods.

P01 FIRST ISSUE 24.05.21 RCO

P02 Revised to suit hybrid scheme 28.05.21 RCO

P03 Revised to show sub station demolished and alterations around eastern
subway entrance.

14.09.22 RCO

P04 Market stall retained covered walkways added 21.09.22 CT

P05 Margaret Block shown as retained 22.09.22 CT

P06 Existing building materials added 09.01.23 CT

P07 Extent of market canopies to be removed updated 12.01.23 CT

P08 Updated to show Margaret block being retained 24.01.23 CT

P09 Existing Buildings 4 to be retained 25.01.23 CT

P10 Section of existing roof canopy between Meat Market, Market Hall and market
stalls retained

13.03.20 CT

P11 PLANNING ISSUE 21.04.23 CT

Do not scale off this drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to manufacture and
construction. This drawing is the property of Just-H Architects and should not be reproduced without
permission. All discrepancies to be brought to the attention of the architect immediately. This drawing
to be read in conjunction with the specification / bill of quantities and related drawings.

REVISION

107 Timber Wharf
32 Worsley Street
Castlefield, Manchester
M15 4NX
0161 237 5500
info@justharchitects.co.uk

client

project

title

job No.

dwg No.

scale

drawn

Just H
Architects

RCO

1:500 @ A1

BURMAR-JHA-V6-XX-DR-A-0112 Rev P11

BCO1

PROPOSED DEMOLITION PLAN

MASTERPLAN
BURY MARKET

BURY COUNCIL

PLANNING ISSUE

P
age 161

AutoCAD SHX Text_856
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_857
FB

AutoCAD SHX Text_858
TCBs

AutoCAD SHX Text_859
L Twr

AutoCAD SHX Text_860
SM

AutoCAD SHX Text_861
Kay Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text_862
Kay Garden

AutoCAD SHX Text_863
93.6m

AutoCAD SHX Text_864
D Fn

AutoCAD SHX Text_865
Market Street

AutoCAD SHX Text_866
Princess Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_867
HILTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_868
TCB

AutoCAD SHX Text_869
MURRAY ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_870
MARKET

AutoCAD SHX Text_871
PARADE

AutoCAD SHX Text_872
WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text_873
ANGOULEME

AutoCAD SHX Text_874
The Square

AutoCAD SHX Text_875
The Mall

AutoCAD SHX Text_876
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_877
Subway

AutoCAD SHX Text_878
Minden Parade

AutoCAD SHX Text_879
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_880
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_881
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_882
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_883
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_884
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_885
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_886
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_887
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_888
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_889
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_890
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_891
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_892
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_893
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_894
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_895
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_896
Market Hall

AutoCAD SHX Text_897
Meat  & Fish  Market

AutoCAD SHX Text_898
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_899
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_900
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_901
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_902
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_903
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_904
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_905
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_906
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_907
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_908
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_909
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_910
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_911
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_912
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_913
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_914
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_915
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_916
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_917
STALLS

AutoCAD SHX Text_918
STALLS



P
age 162



P
age 163



P
age 164



DRAINAGE:
Rainwater Goods Capacity: To comply with
Building Regulations Approved Document H3
Rainwater & Drainage Section 1.

Rainfall intensity rate - Bury, Manchester CAT 2
0.051 litres/sec per m² of roof area.

GUTTER: 600mm wide x 170mm (150mm
minimum) deep metal valley gutter channel,
designed and installed as manufacturers details.

SIPHONIC DRAINAGE SYSTEM:
2no. Fullflow Primaflow 09 stainless steel outlets,
or similar approved, per gutter run connected to
Fullflow collection main pipe below, designed and
installed in accordance with manufacturers details
and specifications.

1no. Fullflow aluminium downpipe, or similar
approved, at one end of each gutter run, designed
and installed in accordance with manufacturers
details and specifications.

ROOF ACCESS & PROTECTION:
Access onto roof canopy 1 & 2 is to be via cherry
picker or MEWP (mobile elevating work platform)
positioned on the surrounding road or
hard-standing landscaped areas.

A man-safe system is to be provided along each
valley gutter line in the form of MSA Latchways
Mansafe Constant Force Horizontal Lifeline
system for Sarnafil roofing membrane, or similar
approved. Constant force posts top fixed to roof
structural using four toggle bolts per post.
Latchways ManSafe horizontal 7x7 316S
Stainless steel cable to be fitted between posts.
System to be located minimum 2.3m from the roof
edge to provide safe access on roof for 2 users
for maintenance and cleaning. The anchorage
points must limit the load to a constant force of 10
kN in the event of a fall and absorb the energy
integrally. The entire system must be CE marked
and be in accordance with Class D Fall Protection
systems under BS EN 795. Installation to be
carried out by trained and approved contractors.

ROOF AREAS:

CANOPY ROOF 1:
Roof 1 Area=   329.273 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 2 Area=   382.677 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 3 Area=   497.199 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 4 Area=   407.939 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 5 Area=   547.657 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 6 Area=   369.644 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 7 Area=   706.077 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 8 Area=   335.240 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 9 Area=  451.377 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof

Canopy 1 Total Single Ply Membrane Roof Area= 2531.583 sqm
Canopy 1 Total Translucent Panel Roof Area= 1495.5 sqm

Canopy 1 Total Area= 4027.083 sqm

CANOPY ROOF 2:
Roof 1 Area=   347.816 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 2 Area=   217.749 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 3 Area=   
Roof 4 Area=   153.429 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 5 Area=   162.700 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 6 Area=   280.302 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 7 Area=   236.252 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 8 Area=   207.513 sqm    Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 9 Area=   159.454 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 10 Area= 111.710 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 11 Area= 123.376 sqm Translucent Panel Roof
Roof 12 Area= 307.627 sqm Single Ply Membrane Roof
Roof 13 Area= 168.166  sqm    Translucent Panel Roof

Canopy 2 Total Translucent Panel Roof Area= 1067.697 sqm
Canopy 2 Total Single Ply Membrane Roof Area= 1,408.397 sqm

Canopy 2 Total Area= 2476.094 sqm

EXIST STALLS
EXIST

STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLSEXIST STALLS
EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST STALLS

EXIST
STALLS

EXIST
STALLS

EXIST
STALLS

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 16°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 20°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 13°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 20°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 13°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 20°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 20°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 16°
R

O
O

F
PITC

H
 20°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 13°
R

O
O

F
PITC

H
 20°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 13°
R

O
O

F
PITC

H
 20°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 20°

ROOF

PITCH 25
°

ROOF

PITCH 20
°

ROOF

PITCH 20

ROOF

PITCH 11°

ROOF

PITCH 14
°

ROOF

PITCH 25°

ROOF

PITCH 20°

ROOF 1

ROOF 2

N

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 8°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 8°

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

1

2

4

8

7

6

9

10

11

12

13

GROUND LEVEL PLAN
0m 4m 8m 12m 16m 18m

A

B

C

D

E

F

6500

17250

16800

16900

01

02

03 05 06 07a

8600

10200

760010200

H

K

K

J

H

11770

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

80
00

13
00

0

G

EXIST STALLS

Gutter

Ridge

Gutter

Gutter

Gutter

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Gutter

Gutter

Gutter

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

G
utter

Gutter

Ridge

G
utter

12220

15200

04

RWP

Gutter

Gutter

Gutter

Gutter

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

Ridge

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

10
00

0

ROOF

PITCH 25°
6450

13970

600
7283

7260

6020

10270

20615

95
00

29275

ROOF

PITCH 20
°

07
1000

7027

24965

9360

600

8950

600

600
4732

J

ROOF

PITCH 12°

ROOF

PITCH 25
°

8000

Ridge

Ridge

ROOF

PITCH 20°

5

60
60

63
40

4553

5050

4885
600

5250

14985

17
30

Ridge

Gutter

Gutter

Gutter

Gutter

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 20°

R
O

O
F

PITC
H

 20°

Ridge

Ridge

Gutter

G
utter6130

9

AREA= 348.67 sqm

EXISTSTALLS

7852

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

600

60
0

G
utter

Gutter

Gutter

Gutter

Gutter

G
utter

Ridge

75
0

EXIST BUILDING
EXIST BUILDING

2900

1000

17500

1000

Ridge

3300

EXIST
STALLS

EXIST
STALLS

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Outlet

Mansafe system

Mansafe system

Mansafe system

Mansafe system

Mansafe system

Mansafe system

Mansafe system

M
ansafe system

M
ansafe system

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

2300

60
0

4862

9700

1000

2400

37
65

36
35

60
0

TRANSLUCENT POLYCARBONATE PANEL ROOF

SINGLE PLY MEMBRANE ROOF

ROOF TYPES:

P07 Rainwater calculations updated as Alumasc details and RWP numbers and
positions altered to suit.

22.08.22 CT

P08 Grid line references amended as SE details, rooflight sizes amended to suit
SE purlins at1500mm centres

21.09.22 CT

P09 Canopy design amended 02.11.22 CT

P10 Roof types and areas added 09.11.22 CT

P11 Roof type amended and roof pitches and dimensions added 23.11.22 CT

P12 Canopy Roof 2 geometry amended. Column positions amended following
design review.

30.11.22 CT

P13 Roof type locations amended on Roof 2 and rainwater calculations updated 30.11.22 CT

P14 Roof pitches amended as Kalwall comments, Roof 1 Grid lines C & D altered
to suit retained existing canopy and opening

10.01.23 CT

P15 Dimensions updated to suit chages 13.01.23 CT

P16 Roof 1 GL B position amended to suit existing canopy overhangs. Roof 2
Margaret block retained, roof layout altered and column positions amended.

02.02.23 CT

P17 Roof 2 at GL 14-15/K-J amended to cover existing walkway. Roof drainage
amended to Fullflow siphonic drainage system, RWP numbers and positions
amended to suit.

03.02.23 CT

P18 Roof type areas updated and mansafe system added 14.02.23 CT

P19 Roof types amended 21.02.23 CT

P20 Green roof areas removed - PLANNING ISSUE 21.04.23 CT

Do not scale off this drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to manufacture and
construction. This drawing is the property of Just-H Architects and should not be reproduced without
permission. All discrepancies to be brought to the attention of the architect immediately. This drawing
to be read in conjunction with the specification / bill of quantities and related drawings.

REVISION

107 Timber Wharf
32 Worsley Street
Castlefield, Manchester
M15 4NX
0161 237 5500
info@justharchitects.co.uk

client

project

title

job No.

dwg No.

scale

drawn

Just H
Architects

SK

1:200 @ A1

BURMAR-JHA-V5-02-XX-A-0017 Rev P20

BC01

ROOF PLAN
MARKET CANOPY

MASTERPLAN
BURY MARKET

BURY COUNCIL

PLANNING ISSUE

P
age 165



P
age 166



P
age 167



P
age 168



P
age 169



P
age 170



P
age 171



D

C

E

F

G

H

J

43
87

.5

B

A

43
87

.5
43

87
.5

43
87

.5
43

87
.5

43
87

.5
43

87
.5

43
87

.5
43

87
.5

43
87

.5

K

L

PROPOSED FLEXIHALL VOID PLAN
0m 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

2.1

2.2

2.4

2.3

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

A2

C2

D2

F2

H2

10462.5 4612.5

6205

6205

6205

6205

6205

6205

6205
62

05

62
05

62
05

62
05

62
05

62
05

1.1 1.2
10462.5

1.3
4612.5

62
05

1.1 1.2 1.3

G2

E2

B2

Void over
flexihall space

RWP

RWP

RWP

svp

RWP

G
U

TTER
G

U
TTER

RWP

G
U

TTER
G

U
TTER

LIFT CAP

G
U

TTER

Void over
Tech booth

W-01-11

W-01-12

W-01-13

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

RWP

Void over
meeting room

Void over
Break room

Void over
Council Offices

Void over
Store

Void over
Lobby

Void over
Tech store

ROOF
ACCESS
HATCH

RWP

56
00

SIG
NAGE ZONE

SERVICE
RISER

ROOF
ACCESS

HATCH

SERVICE
RISER

FIXED
ROOF
ACCESS
STEPS

Minimum
1:60 fall

Minimum 1:60 fall

Minimum
1:60 fall

Minimum 1:60 fall

ROOF 1

RWP

RWP

RWP RWP

P01 FIRST ISSUE 06.09.22 CT

P02 Cantilever area noted as in abeyance 30.09.22 RCO

P03 Plant room added over council offices 28.11.22 RCO

P04 Plant room removed and void over rooms below reinstated. External wall at
grid lines K/1.3 - F2 updated to suit first floor alterations and void over tech
booth added. Cantilever area at grid lines 1.3/2.1 removed.

06.01.23 CT

P05 Wall amended at GL A2/2.2-2.3 to include signage zone 08.02.23 CT

P06 PLANNING ISSUE 20.04.23 CT

Do not scale off this drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to manufacture and
construction. This drawing is the property of Just-H Architects and should not be reproduced without
permission. All discrepancies to be brought to the attention of the architect immediately. This drawing
to be read in conjunction with the specification / bill of quantities and related drawings.

REVISION

107 Timber Wharf
32 Worsley Street
Castlefield, Manchester
M15 4NX
0161 237 5500
info@justharchitects.co.uk

client

project

title

job No.

dwg No.

scale

drawn

Just H
Architects

CT

1:150 @ A1

BURMAR-JHA-V2-02-DR-A-0102 Rev P06

BCO1

VOID PLAN
FLEXIHALL

MASTERPLAN
BURY MARKET

BURY COUNCIL

PLANNING ISSUE

P
age 172



D

C

E

F

G

H

J

43
87

.5

B

A

43
87

.5
43

87
.5

43
87

.5
43

87
.5

43
87

.5
43

87
.5

43
87

.5
43

87
.5

43
87

.5

K

L
RWP

G
U

TTER
G

U
TTER

RWP

G
U

TTER
G

U
TTER

LIFT CAP

SERVICE
RISER

ROOF
ACCESS

HATCH

RWP

RWP

MANSAFE SYSTEM

RWP

GUTTER

GUTTER

GUTTER

M
AN

SA
FE

 S
YS

TE
M

RWP

GUTTER

RWP

Minimum 1:60 fall

RWP

RWP

RWP

PROPOSED ROOF PLAN
0m 2m 4m 6m 8m 10m

2.1

2.2

2.4

2.3

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

A2

C2

D2

F2

H2

10462.5 4612.5

6205

6205

6205

6205

6205

6205

6205
62

05

62
05

62
05

62
05

62
05

62
05

1.1 1.2
10462.5

1.3
4612.5

62
05

1.1 1.2 1.3

G2

E2

B2

RWP

2300 min

RWP

SERVICE
RISER

2300 min

2300 min

2300 min

M
AN

SA
FE

 S
YS

TE
M

GUTTER

G
U

TTER

NB. Big foot system
required for plant on roof
to M&E and SE details.

FIXED
ROOF
ACCESS
STEPS

Plant compound

Timber screen to plant
area, size to suit M&E plant
layout. For details see dwg
BURMAR-JHA-V2-02-DR-A-0119.

Timber screen to plant area,
size to suit M&E plant layout.
For details see dwg
BURMAR-JHA-V2-02-DR-A-0119.

Minimum
1:60 fall

Minimum 1:60 fall

Minimum
1:60 fall

Minimum 1:60 fall

VENTILATION
TERMINAL

VENTILATION
TERMINAL

VENTILATION
TERMINAL

VENTILATION
TERMINAL

Mini
mum

 1:
60

 fa
ll

2300 min
Mini

mum
 1:

60
 fa

ll
Minimum 1:60 fall

ROOF
ACCESS
HATCH

ROOF 1

ROOF 2

VENTILATION
TERMINAL

RWP

RWP

RWP RWP

P01 FIRST ISSUE 12.10.21 RCO

P02 Amended to suit revised parapet heights 02.12.21 CT

P03 Amended following client briefing regarding market operation. Structural grid
amended and building layout altered to suit. Service riser and M&E plant
equipment positions added.

01.06.22 CT

P04 Roof access hatch & AOV removed to staircase 1 and staircase 2 amended
to access hatch only as fire officers comments.

23.06.22 CT

P05 RWP locations updated to suit floor plans. Roof edge protection notes added 20.07.22 CT

P06 Roof access hatch position and size amended to suit access steps below.
Access steps between lower roof and Flexihall roof added

25.08.22 CT

P07 Roof access hatch position amended as M&E comments. Plant enclosure
added

06.09.22 CT

P08 Cantilever area noted as in abeyance 30.09.22 RCO

P09 50sqm meters of PV panels added to roof over council offices. Cantilever
area at grid lines 1.3/2.1 removed.

06.01.23 CT

P10 Roof Access hatch location amended due to services as M&E engineers
comments

08.02.23 CT

P11 Possible additional PV panel locations and areas added to achieve a total of
170 sqm as M&E engineers report.

23.02.23 CT

P12 Lower Roof 1 plant equipment added as M&E details and walkway positions
added and plant enclosure screen amended to suit.

23.03.23 CT

P13 PLANNING ISSUE 20.04.23 CT

Do not scale off this drawing. All dimensions to be checked on site prior to manufacture and
construction. This drawing is the property of Just-H Architects and should not be reproduced without
permission. All discrepancies to be brought to the attention of the architect immediately. This drawing
to be read in conjunction with the specification / bill of quantities and related drawings.

REVISION

107 Timber Wharf
32 Worsley Street
Castlefield, Manchester
M15 4NX
0161 237 5500
info@justharchitects.co.uk

client

project

title

job No.

dwg No.

scale

drawn

Just H
Architects

RCO

1:150 @ A1

BURMAR-JHA-V2-02-DR-A-0006 Rev P13

BCO1

ROOF PLAN
FLEXIHALL

MASTERPLAN
BURY MARKET

BURY COUNCIL

PLANNING ISSUE

P
age 173



P
age 174



P
age 175



P
age 176



P
age 177



P
age 178



LB

LB

LB

CCTV

CCTV

L1

L1

L1

L3

L3

C
C
C
C
C
C

L3

L3

L3

L3 CCTV

L2

L2

L2

L2

L2

L2

L2

CCTV

L3

L3

L3

L3

CCTV

L3

L3

D

D

D

D
D

D
D

D

D

D

D

D
D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

B

LB

CCTV

D

STREET FURNITURE

KEY
BOUNDARIES

CONTRACT BOUNDARY

P1 PAVING (NON ADOPTABLE)

HARDWORKS

P2  PAVING (ADOPTABLE)

P3 PAVING (LINK PAVING)

P5 TACTILE PAVING

F01 BESPOKE MODULAR SEATING

F02 STANDARD SEATING

F03 LITTER BINS

F04 CYCLE STANDS

F05 FINGERPOSTS

F06 DOOR BARRIER

L1 - LIGHTING COLUMNS L2- SOFFIT LIGHTING
L3 - BUILDING MOUNTED

LIGHTING & CCTV

CCTV

PLANTING MIX 01:RAINGARDEN

SOFTWORKS

PLANTING MIX 02:PERENNIAL

PROPOSED TREES

EXISTING TREES RETAINED

P6 ASPHALT CONCRETE
(PEDESTRIAN)

PROPOSED TELECOM BOX RELOCATION

L1

REFER TO DRAWING BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0112
SURFACE MATERIALS PLAN FOR FURTHER  DETAILS

REFER TO DRAWING BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0115
FURNITURE PLAN FOR FURTHER DETAILS

REFER TO DRAWING BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0116
LIGHTING AND CCTV PLAN FOR FURTHER DETAILS.
NOTE: ALL DETAIL DESIGN BY OTHERS

REFER TO DRAWING BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0117
SOFTWORKS PLAN FOR FURTHER DETAILS

L4 FESTOON LIGHTING

F07 BALUSTRADE

P4 GRANITE SETTS (RECLAIMED)

F08 STONE BOLLARDS

D

B

P7 ASPHALT CONCRETE
(VEHICULAR)

Notes
1.0   Do not scale from drawing, use figured dimensions only
1.1   All dimensions to be checked onsite
1.2   This drawing to be read in conjunction with all other
Gillespies drawings and specifications

Client

Vinci Construction

Ordinance Information shown is reproduced from Ordinance Survey material with the permission of Ordinance Survey on behalf of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationary Office @ Crown Copyright.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. License No. 1000 17362

LANDSCAPE GENERAL
ARRANGEMENT PLAN

BURY MARKET AND FLEXI HALL
STAGE 4

Drawing title

Project title

N

ScaleDate

Drawing Status

Drawn Checked

Revision

Drawing number

© copyright GILLESPIES LLP, all rights reserved

AGED1:200 @ A130.01.2023

08STAGE 4

BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0100
rev details by date
00 PRELIMINARY ED 30.01.2023
01 RED LINE BOUNDARY UPDATED ED 31.01.2023
02 DRAFT 3+ ISSUE CB 06.02.2023
03 DESIGN RESOLUTION ED 10.02.2023
04 DESIGN RESOLUTION ED 17.02.2023
05 TRAFFIC ISLAND REMOVAL ED 14.04.2023
06 PLANNING ED 18.04.2023
07 STAGE 4 DRAFT AN 22.06.2023

rev details by date
08 STAGE 4 AN 30.06.2023

R:\P20735-00-001 Bury Market & Flexi Hall Tender\Drawings\01 Design\CAD\100 Series\BURMAR-GLL-V6-00-DR-L-0100 Stage 4 GA.dwg

P: 0113 247 0550  F: 0113 247 0660  E: design.leeds@gillespies.co.uk
5th Floor, Phoenix House, 3 South Parade, Leeds, LS1 5QX

P
age 179

AutoCAD SHX Text_919
SEE JUST-H ARCHITECTS PLANS FOR CANOPY PROPOSAL

AutoCAD SHX Text_920
EXTENT OF CANOPY



Project: Bury Market
Title:      Proposed Site Office &            

Welfare Compound
Date:     March 23

LEGEND:

Market Office
(single stack)

VINCI Office & Welfare
(double stack)

Subcontractor Office/Stores
(double stack)

Storage Containers
(single stack)

Security Point

Pedestrian Route

Vehicle Route

VINCI Compound
Approx 54 x 34m
Loss of 116 spaces
Solid Hoardings with Gates

S

REV C

P
age 180



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��
������������������������

�
�
��	�

�
���
����������� �

�
�������	�

�
�����
��������������

�
�����������	�

�
��
������������������
�
�������

�
����
����������	�

�
�
�����
����

� �

�
����������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
������
���� ��
���	�

!"#$
%&%'(
#$
)#*"#+
*"'
%,-.#/
012&#+




�
����
��	�

�
!"'
('%1(*
.#$*$3

4'/'+*
0'.'5&*'0
%.&++#+5
0'/#$#1+$
$#+/'
*"'
.&$*
677�

�
��������8�
�������������������



!"'
7122#**''
#$
('/122'+0'0
*1
*"'
+1*'
*"'
('%1(*

&+0
&%%'+0#/'$


�
������
�����	�

�

�
�9:;9:<�=�
>?� �9@>AB�
�:<?=C9:D	�



E1
*"'
%(1%1$&.$
&//1(0
)#*"
*"'
61.#/F

G(&2')1(HI

 J'$
 
 


��<�=?=K��LB��M=��NON��PP>A=:	�
�>K<KA><@��?;@>A<�>9K��<KQ��>�D�
�9K�>Q=:<�>9K�	�



RS'/,*#T'
E#('/*1(
1U
4'$1,(/'$
*1
&0T#$'

('5&(0#+5
(#$H
2&+&5'2'+*


�
��<�=?=K��LB��V=A��>W=��>:=A�9:�
9P��=�9�:A=�	�

�
XYZ

�

�
�[�<@>�B �>W=:�>�B�>?;@>A<�>9K�	�



X1
 





�
�9K�>Q=:=Q�LB��9K>�9:>K���PP>A=:	�



\]̂

�
�

�
_<:Q��
PP=A�=Q	�

�
Z..
.#$*'0


�
�A:��>KB��K�=:=��	�
�

�
XYZ


�


�=KQ<�
��=?�

`

������������������
a


Page 181

Agenda Item 5



���������	�
����

 
 ������
��




�����������������
������ ���!��"��#��$�

%��&�

����������
'�&(���������

)��"�'�&(��#� *���+��#�

�
�

� � �

������+,��-&&������ �-&&������ �-�+��.� �



�


 
 



 � � �

�
/01
 2�����
3��

�
%��#��#���&-+��.,���$-����-�����*.�++�+ ��-+��-.��-&&������-������"�.� ���"�$.�++�+ �
"���#�-+#�&�"��(,�����-������#�-�������-�+��.4��
�
501
 �
��63��
�


�
%�����������&�(��+-��"4

�
�

�
6789
:;
2<=>?@:ABC
	<DE@8�F�:BE

�
�:B9<=9
�E9<7G8�F

�
H���"�'��+-I�J��"�-��H���.-$&�+��'�+� �&�+���
*.�++�+ ��������#I�H�$���&�+���-��K�#-����#��+"�K� �.���-+�
L�M+-N#.�,�*.����
O��,�O!P�Q�R�


�EG�
1/S/
5TU
T5V/

�W<7G�
C0W<@B:XYA@Z0?:[0A>




\
]

Page 182



����������������	�
����
���
���������
�
��	
���
�
���

�
	�

��� ���������������� �����������

����� !"#�$%&'(�

)*+,-*.�/01231/2/4�

56*789:;�:+�8<:�-8:6*=�>,9?.9;@�7:AB69-9;@�:+�C�;:D�+?E8-�

F::?+9*?.�G:,-*H�FE-I�JE;*H�K,6=H�KJL�MKN�
OPJ�Q��R�ST�
U�ML4MM�Q������	�
��V
RU�

W
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

JE<+,?�X*Y*?:BA*;8�/Z1231/2/4�

JE<+,?�.*Y*?:BA*;8�7*689+97E8*�+:6�B6:B:-*.�-9;@?*�-8:6*=�+?E8�6::+*.�I:,-*�*[8*;-9:;�E88E7I*.�
8:�6*E6�:+�-*A9\.*8E7I*.�.<*??9;@�

4Z�J*E�]:,;8�X69Y*H�K,6=H�KJL�3))�
JX̂ _�Q��R�ST�
U�ML322�Q������	�
��V
RU�

W
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

_69:6�̀BB6:YE?�)*a,96*.�E;.�b6E;8*.�/31231/2/4�

_69:6�EBB6:YE?�+:6�B6:B:-*.�7IE;@*�:+�,-*�+6:A�7:AA*679E?�ĉ?E--�5d�8:�C�;:D�EBE68A*;8-�
ĉ?E--�̂4d�

3�K6:E.�e86**8H�K,6=H�KJL�2X̀ �
_4N_̀�Q��R�ST�
U�ML30C�Q������	�
��V
RU�

W
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

B̀B6:Y*�<98I�̂:;.989:;-�0212f1/2/4�

e9;@?*�-8:6*=�6*E6�*[8*;-9:;�

C2�G,6-8�e86**8H�K,6=H�KJL�35e�
OPJ�Q��R�ST�
U�ML34f�Q������	�
��V
RU�

W
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

_69:6�̀BB6:YE?�)*a,96*.�E;.�b6E;8*.�2C12f1/2/4�

_69:6�EBB6:YE?�+:6�B6:B:-*.�.*A:?989:;�:+�*[9-89;@�8<:�-8:6*=�6*-9.*;89E?�E77:AA:.E89:;�>?:7g-H�
;:-D�ZCH�ZZH�ZM�E;.�Z3�

OE96+9*?.�b*;*6E?�G:-B98E?H�):7I.E?*�h?.�):E.H�K,6=H�KJL�3iX�
X5]�Q��R�ST�
U�MLff2�Q������	�
��V
RU�

W
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

����� !"#�j�klmn!ol"�$%&'(�

B̀B6:Y*�<98I�̂:;.989:;-�2C12f1/2/4�

i<:�-8:6*=�6*E6�*[8*;-9:;p�O96-8�+?::6�-9.*�*[8*;-9:;p�̂:;Y*6-9:;�:+�*[9-89;@�@E6E@*�8:�?9Y9;@�
E77:AA:.E89:;�

ff�qE??*=�]9??�JE;*H�K,6=H�KJL�LKr�
OPJ�Q��R�ST�
U�ML32f�Q������	�
��V
RU�

W
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

B̀B6:Y*�<98I�̂:;.989:;-�401231/2/4�

i<:�-8:6*=�6*E6�E;.�+96-8�+?::6�-9.*�*[8*;-9:;�

00�_E6gI9??-�̂?:-*H�K,6=H�KJL�LGK�
OPJ�Q��R�ST�
U�ML342�Q������	�
��V
RU�

W
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

B̀B6:Y*�<98I�̂:;.989:;-�/31231/2/4�

e9;@?*�-8:6*=�B987I�6::+�6*E6�*[8*;-9:;�

00�K6:7g?*I,6-8�̀Y*;,*H�K,6=H�KJL�L̀ s�
OPJ�Q��R�ST�
U�ML33L�Q������	�
��V
RU�

W
��	�
�U�

��
�
���U�

tuvwxvtwty�z%{|}u}~�}��

Page 183



����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	������������	�������

������
����������
 �!"�� �!#$�$#%�
&'#�())*+,-)./�0$��1�())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

����������	
����
�	����������������

>���	����������������	
���������	������	������	����

�$�?�@��
��������� �!"�� �!#$�$>A�
&'#�())*+,-)./�0$����())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

BCDEFGHIJFKFLMJNO�PQRST�

����������	
����
�	����������������

U����	�������	��������	���
� ���������	�������	��������	���
���������
���	�
�
����������������

��?��V���
������ �!"�� �!#���W��
&'#�())*+,-)./�0$00��())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

#���"��X������@��	������������

#���"��
������@��	����	�����	�������������
��
��������"������@���"�YV�
���@�
�"���Z������
��[�	������
��	�����
��
���\��
�@������	
�����
��
������	
�"��	��	����	�������]�����������	��
V�����Z��������[�

0��?"��	��	���X���� �!"�� �!#���W?�
#X�̂�())*+,-)./�0$0$0�())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

���"��
��0���������

�̂�	����
�@���	������
��������@��	��������_�
��������

U
��̀�	�
�"�� �a��

�������
 �!"�� �!#���!%�
&'#�())*+,-)./�0$��0�())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

BCDEFGHIJFKFGHIJ�PQRST�

����������	
����
�	����������������

&���	���������	��������	���
��

���̀���������
 �!"�� �!#���̂>�
&'#�())*+,-)./�0$1���())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

���"��
������������

>���	�����������_�
�����������
���@@"��	��������	����������	�����������	
��������	�
����]����
��
����
��������

#��
��	�b����	�������� �!"�� �!#���>c�
&'#�())*+,-)./�0$010�())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

����������	
����
�	����������������

�
��������"���������@����
���������������@@�
�	����Z'���������>[�	������_����	������"
����
V"��
����"������
�������	���
����@�	��������������
�����������_�

�$�!��	������
 �!"�� �!#����!�
&'#�())*+,-)./�0$0���())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

����������	
����
�	������1���������

��������	������������	�������

���
�		�������� �!"�� �!#���'>�
&'#�())*+,-)./�0$��$�())23456378+97*/�

:7456378/�

;<7)7=52/�

dNDJeFfgOND�PQRST�

hijkljhkhm�nQopqhqrsqt�

Page 184



����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	������������	���������	
�������������

���������	���	
�
��	�����������
��� �!�����
��!��
 ����������	 �!���"�		�� �#��� �#$%�
&'(�

()$�*++,-./+01�2%222�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

����������	
����
�	������?��?������

(���	�����
@��������	����	�������	��������	�����@�A���	�A�������	��������	�A���	@���������
���
	��A�
���A@�
��������	��������	�A���	���
�B���C���A	����
���	��A���	���
�������	�������
���	������
��	���	����������
�����
�	�����
���	�����������	�����

&�D����	��������� �E�		���	�� �#��� �#$���FG�
()$�*++,-./+01�2%?2��*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

����������	
����
�	����������������

!��A�A���	�A�������	�������	������	����"��������	��A����	����	�����
�������@���������	�����
��	���������	�A���	���
���
�@�!��
���	����	�����������	����@�(����	�����A����H����������	�A���	�
��
�������
��������������

&�#���
�I���� �E�		���	�� �#��� �#$���JK�
()$�*++,-./+01�2%?2��*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

����������	
����
�	�����B����������

��������	������������	�������

22%�L����������!��
 �#��� �#$%�&MJ�
()$�*++,-./+01�2%?2��*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

����������	
����
�	�����B&���������

F���	�����A�
�	��
�
���	"���
�����	������

����D�����"��!��
 �E�		���	�� �#��� �#$���#J�
()$�*++,-./+01�2%����*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

NOPQRSTUVWXWYZ[\OZZ]�^_̀ab�

!�A���
�B%��?������

��������	�������
����	���������
�A���	�A�����"���������	
�������"����	��
�@�F�	��������A�����	����
��A	��������������	
�
��������	�A���	���
�����@�(���	�����
�

������	��������	 �����	���
 �����
��	�� ���&���J�
()$�*++,-./+01�2%2���*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

���������������!�c����
���
�I���	�
������������

���������������A����������
��
������A������A�A���	�A�����A���������������d������Fe�	��B���C�A��	�
d��������e�

?2�#����f�
�!��
 �L
�	�A���
 �����
��	�� ���&�2E$�
��M���*++,-./+01�2%22��*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

���������������'�	�!�c����
�g�F�	�������B2���������

���������������A����������
���������	������������	�������

2B�����A���
�D����!��
 �����	���
 �����
��	�� ���&��LL�
I�JF�*++,-./+01�2%��%�*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

NOPQRSTUVWXWhP]i[P\�^_̀ab�

����������	
����
�	������&��?������

E����	�������
����	������@���������	������������	������@�(���	�����
@�#������
���	��A���	�
�����	���@��������	�
����A���	���	����������
����
������	��	
���������
�����
����H���������	��
	
��A���	�d�����������	�	����������������	���e�

B�%����H�!��
 �����	���
 �����
��	�� ���&��Jj�
()$�*++,-./+01�2%&���*++34567489-:8,1�

;85674891�

<=8+8>631�

klmnomknkp�q_rstptuvtw�

Page 185



����������	
�	�
�
�

���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������ ���!�

"��������#��������������#����������$���%��#�&�#�������'#�����(��)��(*�+�������
�'#�����(��
)��(������#�������+�����������,��(�-����,�������&�#���*�,�������#*��

.�"�/001234056��7887�/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F�����������G	
G	�
�
�

&���������������������H�������������������������������������������������

����#����������$���%��#�&�#���*�F#������� $����*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8�
,%�
.�"�/001234056��7�8��/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F����������
�	
�	�
�
�

I���������������$���H���������#��*������������������������J����������������������E�����	���������
����#������#���������$������

��K����� $����*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8���L�
.�"�/001234056��7�G8�/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F������������	
G	�
�
�

&�������������������H���������������(�����������������

�7�'#��F�������*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8��."�
.�"�/001234056��7�G7�/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F����������

	
�	�
�
�

������E����$���EE��������������#��E��������������������������������������H�����������������
��������������H�������������#������#�����������������#��������������+���������������������#���
+���������M������+��N�

��
�,��(�����*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8�
K��
.�"�/001234056��7G
��/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F����������

	
�	�
�
�

,����.�����������	���������������������������H����������������������������������H��������

�O���$����F����*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8�
.��
.�"�/001234056��7G
G�/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F������������	
G	�
�
�

.�����E���#����#����EE���������P�,����������	,�������������������	������H�������P�&�������������
������H��������

�G�,��(����*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8�
LQ�
.�"�/001234056��7G���/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F�����������O	
�	�
�
�

'��	���������������H���������������	����P�"�������$����������#�#�E������+���������H������������
�������������������������P�.�����E���#P������������������#������+����������������

G�&#��E�����"���*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8�
Q"�
.�"�/001234056��7G���/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F����������

	
�	�
�
�

&�������������������H�����������������������������������������*��������������+���������R��������
��������

��G�Q����S�������*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8�
�T�
.�"�/001234056��7G�G�/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

 EE��$�����#�F������������	
G	�
�
�

��-������������������������N�
������������EE��$������E��������E������������������SE������#�����
���+���H������������&������'#��������
U

�

U

�����.������&���������
U

�
�U

�� ��
 EE��$��!����&������'#��������
U

�

U

���H������!�����.������&���������
U

�
�U

�#���
�����EE��$��!N�

8
�Q����S�������*�,�������#*�����#�����*���8�
.��
.�"�/001234056��7GO
�/009:;<=:>?2@>16�

A>;<=:>?6�

BC>0>D<96�

VWXYZXVYV[�\]̂_̀àbc̀d�

Page 186



����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	������������	���������	
����	�����������������

��������	�������������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"��#$�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0��/�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=�>���
�?"���������

@����	������������	���������
���>	� ������������	
���������
��
��A����

?"�B��
	
�����C�����������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"��C&�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0����'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

����������	
����
�	�����?"���������

@����	�������
����	������D���������	������������	���������
�>���	���� 
�

��%������������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"��E%�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0��F�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

GHIJKLMNOPQPRKPSTHUVJ�WXYZ[�

����������	
����
�	������?���������

��������	�������
����	�������

?�?��	������=��
������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"�0C\�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0F00�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

����������	
����
�	������/���������

=���� �A��	��>��	����	�������������
����
����� ������	������A�
]�	������
������	����>��A�
>���	��>�������	��	����������
�����
�	
����� 	�����>�������������	��������
����>�� ����

�
���������̂������#��	
���=��
������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"�0_C�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0"/"�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=�>���
��"���������

=��������>����>���
���
���
	���
����������
��A�����	
�̀����	���� ����

?�/�a�		���	����#���������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"�0���
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0"���'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

=�>���
������������

%���	�>�������	��������	���
����
���������	�������	��������	���
������D�%���	���� 
�

�/�̂��
>���
�=��
������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"���_�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0/?0�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

����������	
����
�	������"���������

=���� �A��	��>�����	���� �������	�����	���
����	
���������	�������
����	��������

�F����>	���=��
������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"��̂ =�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0/�?�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

����������	
����
�	�����?"���������

b��	����	�����>��������c����������>��	����>��>�
��������

��̂�A��	���=��
������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"�0CC�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0/�/�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

����������	
����
�	������"���������

��������	�������
���������	���������	
����>����	���D�������	��������������
��	����

/?�����	�� 
�̂����������	�� 
��!�� 
��	����!�"�0�d�
%&#�'(()*+,(-.�/0�"/�'((12345267*86).�

96345267.�

:;6(6<41.�

efghigehej�kXlmnonpqnr�

Page 187



����������	
����
�	����������������

��������	�������	��������	�����	����
����
���������
�������������	����
����������
��������������

 �!�����
���"������#���	���
��$���
��	����$� �%&'�
()*�+,,-./0,12�3%� ��+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

*������"������@��	��A��A������

*������
������@��	����	�����	�������������
�
�@���	�����������	�����	������
�����	��������������
�	�������
����	�������

���B���C����
��#���	���
��$���
��	����$� �DE*�
*"�#�+,,-./0,12�3%�A��+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

����������	
����
�	�����DA��A������

��������	���������	���	��������������������������������	���	�����	��	
������	������
��������������
��
���	��
�
�
�����
�C��F�

�D����
��*�����#���	���
��$���
��	����$� �%&"�
()*�+,,-./0,12�3%�A%�+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

GHIJKLMMNOPOQHRS�TUVWX�

#��������������&�Y����
���
�'���	�
�� ���������

#�������������������������
�	�����@@�����	��������	����	������@�������������� Z�@�!��
�������
��  �*�		����	���������������
�3Z�@��3Z�@�������	��F�����	���	
�����	
�3[�Z���	�������D[�Z�
'#��$�
�����D[�Z����@@�"��
��D[�Z�3��@@�"��
���[�Z���F���	���D[�Z�$�	�����F���	���
�
�������	�
��������������C�Z�

*��
���	
���(���������\������	�������E	����������	
��&�
��������$���
��	����$�3��(&�
]E*�+,,-./0,12�3%��D�+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

Ê����	���Y����
��A���������

Ê������������\������_���
���&�����	����3����	
��]������
�����	���#��������̀E������@��	���
@̂���	�������@��	a�&�����	�������D��̀����@��
�
a������������
������
������
����̀������(Da�
��	
��������	�
�����	��������	��������������������C������
����
��������

�	������
�@����������*�����&�
��������$���
��	����$�3���b�
��&�+,,-./0,12�3%A  �+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

GHIJKLMMNOPOcdeSfOHgIOhLgRideSf�TUVWX�

����������	
����
�	���������A������

E���	��������������@��	�
��������

3���	�������&��
��&�
��������$���
��	����$�3�j*[�
()*�+,,-./0,12�3%3�j�+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

����������	
����
�	������A���������

]����	������������	���������
�����	�����
���	�����������������	
��
�@���	�����������	����������
��	
�	
������	�������������	F���
����

33�]��C��&��
��&�
��������$���
��	����$�3�jkB�
()*�+,,-./0,12�3%3%A�+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

����������	
����
�	���������A������

(���	���������
���������	�������

]
��B����������l��������m�����l��������&��
���������	
���B��	����B*�� #]�
()*�+,,-./0,12�3%�D��+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

*������"������@��	��A���������

*������
������@��	����	�����	�������������
���������	������������	�������	����
�@��	���
��������
��	
������@�		�
�
������@��	����
	��

�j�!��
����������	
�&��
��&�
��������$���
��	����$�3�jn(�
*"�#�+,,-./0,12�3%����+,,4567859:.;9-2�

<967859:2�

=>9,9?742�

opqrsqorot�uUvwxyxz{x|�

Page 188



����������	
����
�	����������������

�����	����������
�	������������������
����������
����������	���������������������������������
���� ��	��!�"#��
��!�	��������
������!�����#
��!�
���������	
�������$��
��!������������
�
��	�������%�����&�
��������
�������	��"��'��!���������#��"���(��

)�	#��*���&�*��
��+�,��
�-��
&�-�
������&�*��	��&�*.��/0-�
,1.�2334567389��:;:��233<=>?@=AB5CA49�

DA>?@=AB9�

EFA3AG?<9�

H��������������I�	�-�J#���
�����;������

�!���#�	#����I�	�����	���������������
��!���#�	#����"#��
��!�

��	
#��.����I#�������&�����	
#��.���&�-�
������&�*��	��&�*.��/HK�
�L�2334567389��:����233<=>?@=AB5CA49�

DA>?@=AB9�

EFA3AG?<9�

MNOPQRSSTUVUWTXY�Z[\]̂�

.���#��_���������	��:��;������

.���#��
���������	����	�����	�������������
����!����	���+������� 	�������

�//�̀	��
�.���&�-�
������&�a���
��	��&�a����b��
._�H�2334567389��:��;�233<=>?@=AB5CA49�

DA>?@=AB9�

EFA3AG?<9�

MNcXdeYYecUfUgeYYRhiYehUVUgeYYRhiYeh�Z[\]̂�

����������	
����
�	����������������

�̀�!����	���+�� 	���������	�����	���
������

)�		��!	���̀	�b�
���̀���	����#"&�*��+������#�&�)�		��!	��&�*#�+&�*.���I,�
,1.�2334567389��:��/�233<=>?@=AB5CA49�

DA>?@=AB9�

EFA3AG?<9�

.���#��_���������	��;��;������

.���#��
���������	����	�����	�������������
�!���!��������������
��
����������#
���������������
��#�!����
�(�	�
���		����
�������	��K���
��
����	��"��#��
���������+�	��	
�������
�#���

.+�	��&�K�	���!�̀	���	&�)�		��!	��&�*#�+&�*.���0K�
._�H�2334567389��:�:��233<=>?@=AB5CA49�

DA>?@=AB9�

EFA3AG?<9�

����������	
����
�	������;��;������

-���������	����� ��	��!����	������
���������	
���	�
�
��������
�� 	����������"�	
���
��������	��
����	���
������#��	��	
����
!�j�̀��!����	���+���
��� 	���������
�����	�����
�

;��I��	���-��
&�)�		��!	��&�*#�+&�*.���_*�
,1.�2334567389��:;���233<=>?@=AB5CA49�

DA>?@=AB9�

EFA3AG?<9�

MNcXdeYYecUNhOUgeYYRhiYehUVUMNcXdeYYec�Z[\]̂�

-��#��
�����;������

k���	�������	����	���+�!���!��!��
����#	"#��
��!�

l�!
�����
�*���&����l��(�
���.���&�)�		��!	��&�*#�+&�*.���._�
,1.�2334567389���;;��233<=>?@=AB5CA49�

DA>?@=AB9�

EFA3AG?<9�

H��������������-�J#���
���
�L���	�
�����;������

H������������������������
��
��!�����#�������!���#�	#����"#��
��!�	��������
������!
�#�����1���
����������

�""�		��l���&�K��

�+�-��
&�-���"�		��&�*#�+&�*.��:-_�
Ha*H��2334567389��:/�:�233<=>?@=AB5CA49�

DA>?@=AB9�

EFA3AG?<9�

mnopqompmr�s[tuvwvxyvz�

Page 189



����������	
�	�
���


�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
��� �������������������������������������������������������������������������

�!���������"�
������#����"�����$�����"�����"��%
�
&&�
�'%�())*+,-)./�0!012�())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

��������
2	
?	�
���

���������������������������$��������������#������#��������������������������������������������

22��������
�����"�����$�����"�����"��%
�!@A�
�'%�())*+,-)./�0!0�?�())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

@����B��#����C����������
�	
?	�
���

�����������������������$��������������������������������������������������$��������

&�������&��������"�D��������"�����$�����"�����"��%?�2EF�
�'%�())*+,-)./�0!020�())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

@����B��#����C������������	
�	�
���

������������������������$���

���#������������B������������������������F#���������������
����������

1�2�G��������������B�"�����$�����"�����"��%
�!EH�
�'%�())*+,-)./�0!0���())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

@����B��#����C����������
�	
?	�
���

I�����������������������J���K�����B��������L������������������������0��11�K���B����������
�����������������������������#������LM�@����������������������������"��������������#����
���N���������$�B�������������B��������������������������������������������


��O����
������#����"�G�����������"�
������#����"�����$�����"�����"��%
�
P��
�'%�())*+,-)./�0!0���())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

@����B��#����C������������	
�	�
���

I������������������������J���K�����B��������L�0?
?2�Q�
����������������������������
C�����������B���������������������#�������N��������������������N��������#����#�����������
����������������������������������������������������������B���#����������

E�����"�D���$����������"�����$�����"�����"��%?�2E
�
�'%�())*+,-)./�0!��0�())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

������E��R$S���������	
�	�
���

@�������1?������������������������������C�������K���M��
��	
2�1LM���B��������������������
������������������������#�������������������������������������������?���J��������������#��������
�������������������#�� �"�������������#�������"�������������������$���������������#������
�������������������&00�������������������������������������J�

%����#�������D�� ���
�����"�P���������
CRE�())*+,-)./�0!�?1�())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

TUVWXYVXZ[\]\̂_̀abcWU\d\eVZfV_gWb_\ehcf�ijklm�

���������?	
�	�
���


�����������#���������������������������	���������������������������������������������$������#J�

20�
���������%���"�G���������"�D���������"�D2���F
�
�'%�())*+,-)./�0!�
��())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

@����B��#����C�����������1	
�	�
���

C�������������#�B������������������

21�����������E�#�����"�G���������"�D���������"�D2���An�
�'%�())*+,-)./�0!�!��())34567489+:8*/�

;8567489/�

<=8)8>63/�

opqrsqorot�ujvwxsxyzx{�

Page 190



�

����������	
����
�	����������������

�����	�������
����	�������

����������������
�	�����
�� !�"
��	���� �#��$��
$%��&''()*+',-�./.�.�&''01234156)75(-�

85234156-�

9:5'5;30-�

����������	
����
�	����������������

<!����
��=
	��������	�>���
!����!�����	
����"��=����
��=�=!	���!�
�����!	�������!

�	���!��
��
�"��!��!""����

..�<!
"������?���<�!
���
�	�����
�� !�"
��	���� �#��@A�
$%��&''()*+',-�./.���&''01234156)75(-�

85234156-�

9:5'5;30-�

����������	
����
�	����������������

B���C�����
������=������
��=!�
��������C�BB#�D!�E��!���

BB#�D!�E��!�����
�	�����
�� !�"
��	���� �#��@��
$%��&''()*+',-�./����&''01234156)75(-�

85234156-�

9:5'5;30-�

<�����
������������

F��"	�����������
�	!"
�
�
�����	��>��!""����
������G�=
����!���

�!�
�!
H!"��	�	�����G�=
����!�����
�	�����
�� !�"
��	���� �#��FI�
$%��&''()*+',-�./��#�&''01234156)75(-�

85234156-�

9:5'5;30-�

����������	
����
�	����������������

D��"
���	�������!	�����	�

##�G!���	�!
�J�������
�	�����
�� !�"
��	���� �#��A��
$%��&''()*+',-�./����&''01234156)75(-�

85234156-�

9:5'5;30-�

KLMNOPMOQRSTSUVWXYZNLS[SUVWXYZNL�\]̂_̀�

����������	
����
�	�����B����������

�����	�������
����	�����������=����	���������	�

����>����J������a�����a�/��J��
$%��&''()*+',-�./����&''01234156)75(-�

85234156-�

9:5'5;30-�

����������	
����
�	�����B����������

B�?�C���	���!�����������!	�
�/����������=��b�	����cd�B�?�C���	���!�����������!	�
�
�����	
���

���"	���!����=��b�	����cd�B�?�C�
��=
	����	��"	����	
���	���!�����������!	�
���		����b�	���#cd�B�
?�C����e�����>�!�
�b�	���.cd�B�?�C���
���"!�������	
���		����b�	����cd�B�?�C�	�����������
>�!�
�b�	����cd�B�?�C���	���!�����������!	�
�	
!�E����������	�����=��b�	���/cd���?�C���	���!����
�������!	�
��
�������	�f���!������!	����gJ������
��g�	��	�b	���B�cd�B�?�C���	���!�����������!	�
�
�
�������	�����!	����gh	!�>�"E�g�	��	�b�	���BBcd���?�C���	���!�����������!	�
���
������!	�����
��������=����=���b�	���B�cdB�?�C���	���!�����������!	�
����	���
������!	����gh	!�>�"E�g�	��	�b�	���
B�cd��B��?�C����
����!�����	!	�����b�	���B�c�

h	!�>�"E��J������
������
!�h	������	
��D!�E�..��a�����a�/��<h�
�Ji�&''()*+',-�./��B�&''01234156)75(-�

85234156-�

9:5'5;30-�

SjkS�lYNmQSnopqOZSYPSrssQMtmNMYVWSuOtMRORv�

wxyz{ywzw|�}]~���������

Page 191



This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��
������������������������

�
�
��	�

�
���
�����������

�
�������	�

�
��
������
���
���

�
�����������	�

�
��
������������������
�
�������

�
����
����������	�

�
�
�����
����

� �

�
����������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
������
���� ��
���	�

!"#$
%&%'(
#$
)#*"#+
*"'
%,-.#/
012&#+




�
����
��	�

�
3.&++#+4
5%%'&.$6























789104'0





















78:'*'(2#+'0




















;+<1(/'2'+*
5%%'&.$

789104'0
























78:'*'(2#+'0



















�
��������=�
�������������������



!"'
>122#**''
#$
('/122'+0'0
*1
*"'
+1*'
*"'
('%1(*

&+0
&%%'+0#/'$


�
������
�����	�

�

�
�?@A?@B�C�
DE� �?FDGH�
�@BECI?@J	�



:1
*"'
%(1%1$&.$
&//1(0
)#*"
*"'
31.#/K

L(&2')1(MN

 O'$
 
 


��B�CECP��QH��RC��STS��UUDGC@	�
�DPBPGDBF��EAFDGB�D?P��BPV��D�J�
�?P�DVC@B�D?P�	�



;W'/,*#X'
:#('/*1(
1<
Y'$1,(/'$
*1
&0X#$'

('4&(0#+4
(#$M
2&+&4'2'+*


�
��B�CECP��QH��ZCG��D[C��D@CG�?@�
?U��C�?�@GC�	�

�
\]5

�

�
�̂ �BFD�H �D[C@�D�H�DEAFDGB�D?P�	�



\1
 





�
�?P�DVC@CV�QH��?PD�?@DP���UUDGC@	�



_̀a

�
�

� �


�CPVB�
��CE�

8

������������������
b


Page 193

Agenda Item 6



����������	
���� �

�
������

�
�	��
������
����
��
�

�
����

�
������ !"#�$�%���� � &��%��$���
�

'(��)�*+�,-��.���
/�01��2�,�3�1��0�(�4�

5�16�

*+�,-��.��
7�68�0�'(1�0�

910��7�68�0�� :10�;�0��

�
�

� � �

/,0-��;<�'=66������ '=66������ '=-;,�
� �

�
�

� � �

� � � �

�
>?@� A���!�$B &�
�
5(������1�6=;�(
<�0�4=0���=��(��'=66������=)��(��:
1;;�;2��44�1
��
=�2���121�;���
��,���=;��=)��(��1-�(=0��<�1;��121�;���*;)=0,�6�;���=��,�����0.���1;���(=����(1��
(1.��8��;��-8��C-�;�
<�����06�;���8<��(��:
1;;�;2�D;�4�,�=01��E��
�
���1,(����=��(��0�4=0��10���(��D;�4�,�=0��F�,���=;��1;��1�.�081
�0�4=0��G�

�8��
40���;�����=��(��'=66������=;��(���64
�,1��=;��=)��(����,���=;��=;��(���44�1
���(1��
G�0��-4(�
�E�
�
H?@� �$ �IB��$ ��
�
5(1���(�����6�8��;=���E�
�

�
I��
�J��A�	KL�J����#�M����N��
�
�J�
�	
�&�
��O��N�
F1.���710;=P�Q�1��=)�F�.�
=46�;��71;12�6�;��
:
1;;�;2�/�0.�,��P�F�410�6�;��)=0�R��=-0,���1;��R�2-
1��=;P�
S�T;=G�
�<�:
1,��PU-0<�����U3V�W*X�
��O��@>Y>�HZ[�ZH\>��
%]��O���?]���Ĵ _���?LJ̀ ?�K�

Page 194



�

����������		
�����
��
���
��
��

����������������������������

��
	
����

�������� !�"�#$��$%�&'�(!'����)�*�+!',�-.��/$��0�&#�12$'�(0�+$.�$���
3���
��

4)5$.#�#$�0�"$�6)'1#$������)7�)�1#$��$%�)7#1�#�8�1��9.):.#6)1�$";�9!#.�#�81��$�"')��)�
<��$=�1#�8.)�1�$'),��2)..#�8�2#�(�)�".$1)��8�'�)������>�';#�8�

�		��3���?�

�		
����
��
�?�@ABCDBECEF��

G'�G�';�H�88)'�

I
3���
���
J
�?�KLM�

N
3
OO
��
��I
3���
�?�PQRSTQ�
�		
���UV	
?��

�		��3���
��W
X?�YZ@[DB\]M�

U
����Ŵ O�
��
_��		
�����
��
�?���

Page 195



�
����������		
�����

��
���

��
��

����������������������������

�������� �

!"#$�%&�'()%�&*�+"$,-.**(�/&&0�+&"$12304�5('�+&"$6�+"$,-.**(�7�8�9:�; �

<="#>(�&*�3)(�&*�%=(�-"#$�*&0�3)(�")�&3%$&&0�)?&0%)�?.%,=()�.#,-3$.#>�(#>.#((0.#>�
&?(0"%.&#)�%&�*&0@�A�?.%,=()6�%=(�,&#)%03,%.&#�&*�"�,-3B=&3)(6�"#,.--"04�)%&0">(�
)%03,%30()6�,0("%.&#�&*�",,())�*0&@�+"$,-.**(�/&&0�+&"$6�?"0C.#>6�-"#$),"?.#>6�
$0".#">(�"#$�"))&,."%($�'&0C)D�

E���:8�;9 �

���
F�GH1IH1JIJK�

L()%,=30,=�M&@()�!.@.%($�N�L40()$"-(�O@"%(30�P&&%B"--�<-3B�

�

���Q���
R
�F�<S/�

T

QUU
��
���

���Q�F�O??0&V(�'.%=�<&#$.%.&#)� �		
����W	
F�L0.%%(#�+(?0()(#%"%.&#)�

�		��
���Q��XQYF�ZHZ[\1P]!� �		
����

���Q�F�O--&'($�

�������� �

Ẑ_�̀"0C�M.--6�2304�S-$�+&"$6�̀0()%'.,=6�/"#,=()%(06�/J[�IPa�7�8�9:�; �

+(%(#%.&#�&*�*.V(�)=.??.#>�,&#%".#(0)�

E���:8�;9 �

���
F�JZ1IH1JIJK�

b̂S3%-(%�

�

���Q���
R
�F�cd!�

T

QUU
��
���

���Q�F�+(*3)(� �		
����W	
F�L0.%%(#�+(?0()(#%"%.&#)�

�		��
���Q��XQYF�Z\\\G1P]!� �		
����

���Q�F�c.)@.))($�

Page 196



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

�

������������� !�
"����������#�$��
��%�&�'�()(%�

*+�,�, +!��-��./ !�0����12�34125�

�!�5!����6 7���� �!6�8�*+�69��:��7�6�7+� ;�:6�6���

������ !�8�6�<�=>69�?@�+�ABAC�

�
�������4�;<��22D1EA=BDFDAADCCBGG>=�
H�!8�6 �69��I��6� ;�4�8���;;��3  7�4 �8��6�69��J@!�6� !�I�69�-@7+�K�I�
4 �8L�

MN O�������������#�$����$��������
��PQ�
R�����O
�����$�S
����'�T������	�U���VWW)�
�	��������R��������
�	�����
�����������������������X�$�����
$�
R���$�����
��
�����
���������
��R
���������	����#����
���

MN O�������������#�$��X'�T����"��������YZ����������[
#���\�$�]�Z'���$����U#������

̂
�X����S��X��	������_��'�&���
�
������_
�
�	��S
�������

MN O������������
��̀�R�aPabQ�̂���c����$���$�Q�d��
X���()(V��
MN O���$����
�#������
�
��$��������	��
R�����
R��������$�R
���������
��$

����
����
�������������$��	���	�������	�
������
����
�R
�#�e��������c������
��������
��
R���
���X�
���c���������'���
��	������������c�������
��
R��������R�
#�̀�$���RR��&

��̀
�$c�
���
��	c����$������	c�$�����	�c���$����
�����$��
�
���

�

������ !�

V�NO����������������
��$���$��������	����#����
�����	�����$�R
������	��
R�����
R�����
���$�R
���������
��$

����
�����������������$��	���	�������	�
������
����
�R
�#�e�
�������c������
��������
��
R������X�
���c���������'���
��	������������c�������
��
R�
�������R�
#�̀�$���RR��&

��̀
�$c����
��	c����$������	c�$�����	�c���$����
�����$�
�
�
�����\��$��
����������
R�̀�$���RR��&

��̀
�$��������f�����
�������_��'�g���

̀�$�������
�$�����������������#��
R��������������
��̀�R�aPabQ�̂���c�$���$�Q�
d��
X���()(Vc���$�������������X#����$��������c���Xf�����
������
�$���
�������
������
�����������$�����$�����

27���h�!�7+�3�66�7�

(�NO����������������������$����
����������������������	��
##�����������
���#��������
�����������
���$��
�$�R���#�
��	�����$�����
��
������
��	������������	����������
��
������������X�R
������#��[
�����c�X���$�
���������$����c�����������
�����
��R
��
#���
�����
������������S
������#�$�������$�����
��
����������������
�$����������
����$�#
���������
��$������O����R
��c�������i��
�������������$�����
�������	������

RR������$�����Y��$���$�����
���#�����
��������������j����������
#�����	����������
klmnopqrstuqvnnpnwtklxxpyyzzt{vstvt|pw{ytylt}l���
��$�$������������RR����������$�����
�
���X��������������$�����
���

3��!�5��@���

%�NO���#����������������

MN ��������������
�
�����
��$�����������������
�������$����
�#�����������~�����
_���������	���	��$��
�����g���
����T������	�T
���'�̂��#��
�
���$���'����������
�����
�#����T�����
����������$�

Page 197



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

"# �$������!
�
	�%�%����
�&�����	������!
�!����'�������!�������!&�()�!��	
��
$�
�����!
�!������		'���%���)�
���!���!&'��	�����!�)�
��������%�()�
���!�
�
�	�%�!���
�	�	
��	��
��&
�����
�������!)�	���������!��&	�����	�����		�!)��
�
*�	��$)������!
�
	����

+,-./0.1

��#�����������	�����	�	������%��������
����$���%	���2���
�3�%���$$��4

!�3
�%���%�5�!)�
6���3
�%��7���	���	
��
����%��%*�������
�8��!&
����9
%��	�$�	��!)���%�	���!���
������������	��������
�����!�$
!&���!��
$���8����
$�8�������5�
�
������7���!�	��:857;��

<=>?=>@ABCDEE@FE@BD?>AG>H>IFEJ>C?A

K�#����LD?BFCDIAMIDCCBCNAMFIBOPAQ@DJ>RF@S�:����T!�&��
!�;������!��!��������	����	�
����������!
�!�����%����
�&�����	'�()�%�$�����
�'���!&$����
�����U!����5������%�
	�
��%��
��(�����!
��%��2����������!)�	���������!��&	�����	���

V�#�����
�	�!����
��
$�����(���%���	��	�!���!%�%��	������!
�!�����%����
�&�����������
U!����5����	����$
!�	���!���	����$��%��2�����
�	���%�!���!��!���	���W�
$�����
T!�&��
!���X���	�����2�����
���	������!
��	�
��
$����!
�!�����$��������	�:���
�
������
������������2�	������	��
$����%�
!����������
$��	�;�$
!�
��%

!�	�
!��
!�

��%

!�!��!����
���	��
����	�����$��������	��!�	�!�������
�����		�
$�����U!����5����
��%�%
��
���
�$����������������!�
	�	�
$������%�������%������������

��#��!��!�����K���;�
$�����T!�&��
!��	����	������&���!����������	���������	��
$����%�
:	�����	�������	�$
!�
��%

!�	�
!��
!�!��!����
�;��!���
�������!
�!�����$
!&	�
$�
%����
�&�����������U!����5�����!
��%�%����)��!�	�!�����	�
�����		���%�%
��
��
�
�$����������������!�
	�	�
$������%�������%������������

��#��!��!�����K��(;�
$�����T!�&��
!��	����	�������������!����
��!���
�	��!����	
��
��
�����!
�!�����%����
�&�����������U!����5�����!
��%�%����)��!�	�!�����	�
�����		�
��%�%
��
���
�$����������������!�
	�	�
$������%�������%������������

W�#�	�	���
����������T!�&��
!�'�����$��%�&��������&�
$�U!����5�����
���)��	��
�
�!�������!(���	�!����()������������%���!&������)�
�����	�	���
��������!��!����
�����

���#�
�����	�X9�
����%�X9�
K�
$������%
���%�5�!)�Y����!)������
�&���������:Y��;�
	���������������
�	�!����
��
$�����(���%���	���%�
���!�%����
�&�����	������!
�!�����
%����
�&�����������U!����5����	����$
!�	���!����2�����
�	������%�����		�������
$��������	�$
!�
��%

!�	�
!����%�
��%

!�!��!����
���Z
�	�[�����)'�7��
�	�%�!��
�����	�
X9�
����%�X9�
K��
�(��(!
�%�)��
�	�	��������������T!�&��
!����%�7��$$
!%����&�
$������������

���#�	�������	������!����
��
$�$
�!�$

�(����������	������!
�
	����
��%���	
��!�����������
��������!�����		'���!���!�'��)����	�
!�'�(���	�
!�'�&�����������(���%������%�
���(�
�	���7���
��%�(���
����%�����������
������!������!���$���%����!�����!���	�
��!!����)��
�%����
�&�����7��	�&����	���������!&	'����	��
��%������������!���%�
%�&
�	�!�(����$$����
������
�����		�
$�����U!����5����()����!
%������%����
�&����
�
����%��������	��!�	����)���!&������)�
������

���#�����
�	�!����
��
$�����������!�����		'���!���!�'��)����	�
!�'�(���	�
!�'�
&�����������(���%������%����(�
�	��
�������������	�����
��%����!�$
!��(!�����(
���
%����
�&�������!�����!���	��!�	����)��
�������
!%����)'����	�����&���	�
$�����
�!
�
	����
��%���	
�!��!�	����������!
���&����
$�%����
�&�������
�����
�
���!)	�%����%��
��%���	
����!�$
!�������������!�	���������%���	�����&�����
������

�����		�
$�����U!����5������

Page 198



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

���"�����	��#$�����������
��!����	�%��
&������������	���$������!
�
	�#����#	�������
	���'����#������
����
�$�	�%�$�	�������#�'�		����
&������!
�
	�#���������!�����		$�
��!���!�$��(����	�
!�$�)���	�
!�$�'�����������)���#������#����)�
�	������
'��!�	
�$�
*��
�	�#�!����������	���������#���	�����'�����
&������!
�
	���
������
�����		�
&�����
+!����,�����
�)��'
#�!�����-�!���!'
!�$�����������!�
��������!��*���	
��
�	�#�!�
����������!
�
	�#�&

�)����������	��
��#��!�	�!�������
�����		�
&�����+!����,����
��#���������(��
��#����!�&
!���
���
�&����������������!�
	�	�
&������#�������#�
������������

���".
����!$�&
!������)
���!��	
�	$�*�&��#������
��!���$������!
�
	����
��#��
��
�!�	�!�������
�����		�
&�����+!����,����
!�	�&����!#������
���!(	�#��&!
'�
���!
���'����������!
�
	�#�#����
�'�����
��#����!�&
!��&����
��	�#������
�/�����
�	�	���
��������!��!���	���0���#��1��
&�����-!�'��
!����#�	�
��#�)��
�
�	�#�!�#������!
�!�����#����
�'�����������+!����,����������!
�
	����
��#�
���!�&
!���
�&�����������
�����	�23�
����#�23�
1�
&�����4�����������'��
��!������
�����!
�!�����#����
�'�����������+!����,�����

56789:;<=>?@89A6?<=>:

�1�"*��	���
!��
&������!
�
	�������������������	�	����#����������
��#�'��������#����&��#�
���#�&
!�(
����	�
!�	�&

�)����������	����,�!(�&
!����������!���	���!!����(���
	�
!����$�	
'�����������������B
��������	��
���
���	��#��*�#��#$��	�����������#�
)(��������(������������#�2��#

!�C�
!�	�C�!����(�D��2CCE$����!���	�������!�(�
�#����&��#����#�&
!�	����&

�)����������	��������,
!
����������	�'
'���������'���
B
�	�F�����($�*��&&
!#����	��
�	�#�!���
��	����&��������������

GHIJKLMNHHJKOL

�P�"*���!�	��#���!���	������!��	�#��
���!�	�!���������
�	���!���'����!	������#�����
������(�	�&��(Q������
��������&
!��
�	����
�������������	���Q��
�	���
�����
�Q����� 
	
�����)�����
�!Q��
�����
�Q��
���'�����
�Q���#����#�	�)	�#������.
����!$�*������
�
�	�)	�����������#�����)�&
!��'���
�	����	������������!
�
	����
��#����	��
���������)�����!'����!�����
���
�������(�	�&��($��
���'�����
�$��
�����
�$��
�	��
�
�����
�$����� 	
�����)�����
�!�
!����#�	�)	�#�������

���"*�#��#$�����!�	���������
�	�����	������#��������B
�������
!��($�����.�����(�
����
!��($��!��	�
!��&
!�+!����!�R�����	��!$�B�#����+�	�S
!�����	�$���#�����
TUVWXYZ[\]̂W_ỲUWabWcdZ]èUcbXcYUW]fggYXb̀������!��	�#��
��
���!�	����!�����
���
�
�����!
�
	���	�)h�����
������'�
	���
��
&�	����)�(��
!#�#��
�#���
�	��*���	
�������
�
	�)	�����������#�����)�&
!��'���
�	����	��������
�	����
!���	
��������)��
��#�)��
)!
�����&
!��!#�
�������������	���$�
!���������� 	
�����)�����
�!��
��#�)����
�
���������		����B
�	�F�����($�*��&&
!#����	��'����!	����������������

���"*��!�����
���
���(��
���������'�����
��)�
#���!	��(�D�����#������
�
�(���#��
		�
&�
���#��&���
!!�#
!	E�*��
�������������������	�����	��#h�������
�,!�#��(�-
�#�+!�#��B�
C,*���#����������3����	��!�����#��&���!�	��D3��E�#�#�!��	��	
'�����������
���!�	�
!���������
��
�����������!��	�#�&�!����	�!�!�� 
&&����
������
#�����)����	��.
����!$�
����3���#�#��
��
)h�����
������!
�
	���)���!��
''��#�#����������)�����
'�����'���������)���!
��#�#���#����������C,*�)���!
�����#�&!
'��
��������
�
�����
����#�&�!����	�!�!�� 
&&��*����	
�	����	��#����������B
�������
�	��������
+!����!�R�����	��!�i�
�
�(�4����D+Ri4E���

�0�"������
�	����#$�����+Ri4�!��	�#��
�
)h����
���
������!
�
	���	�)h�����
�����
�����	�
��
&��
�#���
�	�!���������
���	�����)�!#	$�����	����	�����	$�����	�)'�		�
��
&�
��'���
#�	����'���$�����#�	�
	���
&�	�!&��������!���#����#	�����������!�&
!�$�
)�	�#�
������	�)'����#����#����$������#��������	�)'����#�i�
�
������C�!��(���#�
�		�		'����!��
!�$�*��'�	���	&��#��������(��
���������'�����������	�!���!#��
��#�)��

Page 199



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

�"�#�����$�%�������"����������%�
	���
��
&�	����'�$��
!"�"��
�"���
�	���"��	���
!�	�����&&
!"����	�%����!�����������������

���(�������"�������	
����������	����������
!�������
&&���!�!��
!���
������"���
)*+,--*./012,.31,314*35,+053650..2.730814,)219:;3650..2.73+,--211**31,3<=>>?@ABC
DEFGCH@IJEFE@IK:3L8131401314*3/*+2;2,.3M0;3/*N*))*/3'$������
%%���������"��������
	�'%�		�
��
&��""���
������&
!%���
��!���������
�"!���������"���
�
�$��O4*3P,8.+25:;3
	�'%����"�	����%�����!
��"�	������"����
�����	��%����!	���������&
��
�����&�!���!�
�"�������"��Q�������
��&!
%������!�������R&&���!S������
%%������%�%'�!	��!��
�
��	���	&��"��������$��
���������"��!	���%����	��
��"�'���"�#�����$��
��!
���"�����
�����%�
	���
��
&�	����'�$��
!"�"��
�"���
�	������
&&���!�!��
!����	
����������	������
14*3P,8.+25:;3/)02.07*3;*+12,.340/3.,3,LT*+12,.31,314*36),6,;05U�V��%����!�&
!����	
�
	���	&��"���������	��%����!	�����'���"�#�����$��""!�		�"����������%�
	���
��
&�
	����'�$��
!"�"��
�"���
�	���"��
�	�#�����$��&&
!"����%�����������������

WXYZ[\[XY]̂

���(��	���
&�	����	��"��
�"���
�	���	�	�'%����"�'$�����_
��������������������������
��!��	�����S���"�V�������	�"����	���	�����'�	�	�&
!���
	��V�������%�
	�"�
������
�������	���%���

���(V�������%�
	�"��
�"���
�	��	�	���
�����������������"�	���"�������������
&������	��
&�
����������
�"���
�	�	���
����������̀=FE@I=aCba=IIEIcCb@aEHdCe?=fBD@?g�h����
i!�%��
!�j���"�ba=IIEIcCb?=HFEHBCklEJ=IHB�h����m��"����j��_
�	�#�����$S��������
����!�	�	�
&��!���	�
����"����!��$�V��������"�!������	
%��%��
!��"��������"�
!���
����	���
��
&������
�"���
�	�	����	��"�'$�����_
�������

���(V���""���
���
�����	���"�!"��%���%������
���
�"���
�S�V�������%�
	�"�������		�!$�
�
�"���
���
�"�&������������	����������������	���%��	�
��"����
!"������������!�	��
&�
�!���	�
���V��������	
��%�
	�"�������		�!$��
�"���
��	����&$��������������!
�
	���
'���
�	�!����"�
&�%���!���	�������
!"����������	�%���	�	�'%����"��
���"����!
��"�
'$������
�����������������
!��$������������!�	�	�
&��������!����!���"������!�����
&�
�����!�����

���(V����������!�	��
&�%���%�	����!�	�	�&!
%��
��������$��
���%�����"����"�V��������	
�
�%�
	�"��
�"���
�	�!�#��!��������		�		%����
&�����!�	�	��
	�"�'$���$�
�
���%�����
���
������'����	�'%����"��
���"����!
��"�����!������'$������
����
�������������
!��$�'�&
!�������
%%����%����
&���$��
!�	n���"��&��
���%�����"�
���"��	��"����&��"��	���!��
&�����!�	���		�		%����������
��
!��	�
��"�'�������������
"������"�!�%�"����
��	���%����	�'����	�'%����"��
���"����!
��"�����!������'$�����
�
�����������������
!��$��

�o�(V�������%�
	�"�������		�!$��
�"���
��!�#��!��������	�'%�		�
����"����!
����
&���
%�����%������"�%�����������	���%��&
!��������!
��"�&��������	������������!�	�	�

&���	�!�������$��!��&���&
!���!�
	�S�%���%�	����&�

"�!�	����"��!
������������
����!�������!
�%������

�p�(V����������!�	��
&��!
��������'�!"�	�����	���"�
���!����"��&�S�V�������%�
	�"�
����		�!$��
�"���
�	��!
��'�������
!�	��
��!��	S���"��!
�	S�	�!�'	S���"�
��!���
!�	���������"������"�'�!"���	��	�!��$���"������"	�������	���%�S������"����
�����!
��	�
��
&�'���'!���	
��'�	���"�'��
'�!"�'
Q�	S��!��	�'%����"��
S���"�
���!
��"�'$������
�����������������
!��$���

���(V��������	
��%�
	�"����
�"���
��������!�����	������
%%����%����
&�"����
�%����
��������	���%���
��!�"����������	����������	�����	�	�����	�q�����	��r�
����"���"�
s�%���$���t��	�%���	�'����	�'%����"��
���"����!
��"�'$������
�������������
����
!��$�����	��	������������!�	��
&��!
���������������������	�����	��u�%���!�$S�V������
��	
��%�
	�"����
�"���
��������!�#��!�	�����	�'%�		�
����"����!
����
&���%���
"�

Page 200



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�����������������������������"�

	����#�����
��!
����������
�$	����%!�$��&�'
�$���$�����%����	����%!

��(!
#�
����$������	�������	)�$�	�)���$�$�*!�	)���	
������������!�	��
(���������!���
����!
�#�����

���+,����������!�	��
(�������&�	�(��&)�,�������#�
	�$�����		�!&��
�$���
�	�!�-��!����
�����!
��	�
��
(���!�����(��������	���$���!
�&������!�����	����	)������#���#������
��

(��$�-�����*���	�
!����(��������	�����!�
(������$
���$�������&)�����	�*#�		�
��
(�
$�����	)�	�����	�	��������������&	�	)�
�����
�
�!��������*�	�$�	�!��&�
(�����	����
��$��$.�������$
���$�������&	���$���/
�	�!����
���!�((���0�����#��������)��
�
�����
�����������������
!��&�(
!����!
�����

�1�+,����������!�	��
(�#���#�	����(�

$�!�	�)�,�������#�
	�$�����		�!&��
�$���
�	�
!�-��!��������	�*#�		�
���
���$����!
����*&������
�����������������
!��&�
(���
$������$�$!�������$�	������$���	���#��
(����!�	����	����$!�����������	������
�	���$�
�!���#���!&��������!�����
!�	��
�����	��������!
��$�����!�(�
�	�(��$����2��!#
����
!�	�!�
�!���$�	�!���	���������������&�
(������!
�
	�$�	����)������$����������#����
(�
	�����
!�	��

���+����/
������	����	��$����
�$���
��!�-��!���������!
��	�
��
(�
���$�������$�(�	��
����*����&������!�����������3456����!������
�����7
����!)��	���!��2�
(�����%���$����
8�������
�	��	��
������((�������	��
�$���
���	��
������		�!&���$�,���������!�(
!���
��
�#�
	�$�����

9:;<<=<>?@;:;<AB?;<C?DE<A:FG=E<?

���+����'!�#��
!����$�����	�����������!
�!�����$����
�#�����	)�*&�$�(�����
�)���!#(���
�
�����H!����%������$�	�
��$��
��*�����!
��$��I����������!&�	���������!��#	�����	��
5�!&�	���������!��#	�����	�������
���I�	������		�������!#��
�����H!����%������$���&�

���!���!#��!������!�&�
��������$�*&�
���!��
�	�$�!���
�	��/
�	�-�����&)�
���!�
�
�	�$�!���
�	�������������(��
�!�
(�����$����
�#����#�	������!�&�
����������&�
��!#���

���+,����!#	�
(�������!#)������!
�
	����
��$�!�$��������
�����		�
(�����H!����%���)�
*
���	�������&���$���	����&��
���#
$�!����$��!����,���
��$���	
����!
�������
�����
�
���!&	�$���
���#
$�!����$��!����/
�	�-�����&)�����
��$��
�(���������������$
���$�
$����
�#�����������$�����
�����
���&�������	��!���!$	���

���+,����!#	�
(�����*���(��	)������!
�
	����
��$��!
��$��	�
!�	���$�!��!����
��(��������	�
�
�#����������!�&��$����(��$����$��
�������,���������!�����������������!
�
	���
�
��$���	
��
���
�(��������������(
�!�
���!���!�
	�	�
(������$�������$������������
H!����%������

���+JKLMNOPNLQRSTUVWXNLUQYNUZ[KZKM\R]MU#
$�!������!#��
�����
�����		�
(�����H!����
%������$����!
���#�������
������
���!&	�$�)�,�(��$����������
���!��
�	�$�!���
�	����
���	���	������!�&�
�����������	��$����(��$���!#�����
!$����&)��

��������������	���	�
����
��)�,��
�	�$�!��������!&�	���������!��#	�����	��I�	��������.�	��(&������!
�
	�$�
$����
�#��������!�(
!�)�(
!�����!��	
�	�	���
����*
���,��
����$������������������
	�
��$�*�����
��$��

_̂̀̂abc___

,d2�4/�e8�
f ?

Page 201



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�����������������������������"�

#$%&'()&*+,*-+.'/0/+.1*

�23 ����4����
�5������!�67���!5����4�	�����6������
������!��������7��!	�8!
5�
����4����
8����	�4���	�
���

�23 ����4����
�5������!�67���!5����4�	�����6����!!��4�
���������
!4����������
����8
��
��������!
��4�����	��9����:
����
��������!������;
������ <�� �� 
�� �= � ����>��
�
�!��������9�!��7��!������;
������ <�� �� �� �= � 
�����=����>�9����:�7
���������!������;
������ <�� �� �� �= � �����=���
?>��!
�
	�4�?�!���!��:�7
����!������;
������ <�� �� �� �= � �����=���
?>��!
�
	�4�<��������!������;
������ <�� �� �� �= � �����=���?>�
�!
�
	�4�<�������@���	���2��!������;
������ <�� �� �� �= � ���A�=���
�>��!
�
	�4�9��������		�
��
�=�4���88��B

!�=
�4��!������;
��C��"������D�
���EE��:�������=������>�?!
		 9����
�����F����DG�	�����H��!
�
	�4�?
��
�!�
�!
8��������4�9����56�!�����>�?!
		 9����
���C�F�CC�DG�	�����H��!
�
	�4�
?
��
�!��!
8��������4�9����56�!�����>�?!
		 9����
���?�F�??�DG�	�����H�
�!
�
	�4�?
��
�!��!
8��������4�9����56�!�����>�?!
		 9����
�����F����
DG�	�����H��!
�
	�4�?
��
�!��!
8��������4�9����56�!�����>�?!
		 9����
���D�
F�DD�DG�	�����H��!
�
	�4�?
��
�!��!
8��������4�9����56�!�����>�:��4	�����
�!
�
	����!������;
��""�A����=����>�B�����������C���4����9����8�����
��F�
=�8��BC9 ��>��!���5���!7��!�������9�!����7�=�8��IJ�"���"���CD����=����>�
K88	��	�8!
5�?��L����!���!������;
��?�
����

�23 ;
�4����
�5����	����������������������4�����	�
�	�5���	�
8�����5���!���	��
�6��
�	�4���������
�	�!����
��
8������G��!����	�!8���	�
8��������6�
�	����4�����
�������!7�	�
!����	�!����!�	���!67���!5����4������6����	�65����4��
���4�
���!
��4�67������
�����������������
!��7�����!�����������4����
�5����	�����6��
��!!��4�
���������
!4�����������������!
��4�4�����	�
�	�5���	��

�23 ;
�4����
�5����	������
55���������������		�		5����
8�����!�	�	��
	�4�67�
��7��
���5�����
��	����������6����	�65����4��
���4����!
��4�����!������67�
�����
�����������������
!��7�����	��		�		5����5�	��6����4�!������67���
	����6�7�M����8��4��
���5�����4����4��!������
��!N�������
!4����������C!���	��
9���4�!4�C9�����A��O���	������
��
8��
��������7��
���5�����4�	���	� �?
4��
8�
�!���������4�����D���!
�5�����PQRSTUVWXYZQ[W\]YSQẐ]QVW_Y]ẀaQW
B�����5����
8�:��4�?
���5�����
��@?:=���2�@
!��M���������C!���	��9���4�!4�
��4�B
4����!
��4�!�	��8�!������42N���4�	������		�		���7��
���5�����
��
��
����	���N�������!�
!��
�����
!�������	�
������	�����������		�		5����	�����
�����4���

�23 ��	�!��7�
8������G����N�	�������4�����!��
8��
���5�����
�>�

��23 �����
��������!�	�	��
��
b3 ��5���������>�
b3 �!
��!�7�@�G�	�����
!��!
�
	�42������4����6���4���	N��!
�	N�

����	�
��N����	N��

4���4���4�	�!���������	���4�����	>�
b3 �4c
���������4>�
b3 �!
��4���	>�
b3 ���48������	>�
b3 �!
��4�����!	���4�	�!8��������!	>�
b3 ��
�
������	7	��5	>���4�
b3 �!����
�
������	���	���4���������5
��5���	��

A23 ;
�4����
�5����	�������������������!��@8
��
���������!�	���		�		5���2����4�
�88����4�67��
���5�����
���	�8
��4��������
	�	�!�	�	��4����8��4��	�
���������6����������!�	���		�		5���N���������4������4�!�5�4����
��	���5��
	����������6����	�65����4��
���4����!
��4�����!������67������
�������������
����
!��7������	���5��	����������4��������!��	���
8�!�5�4����
��
���
�	N�
�4����8�����
��
8������!�8�!!�4�
���
�@	2N������!
�
	�4�!�5�4����
��
6c������	�

Page 202



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

��"�!�#�"����
���!���!��$���"���"�	�!����
����"��!
�!�##��
%������
!�	��
�
&����"�!�����������"����������!�%�����
������������!�#�"����
��	���#��	�����
&��	�%%�������'�"������"���"���
!
�����
���	�!���������
���
#�����
������	����
������
��(����%'��	��
���#�����"����"���"�!���!��))��
%�����*���!
�#������
�!
�����
�������++�����!�����
���
���	������"�"��	����������!
��"�!�#�"����
��
	���#��	�����&����!!��"�
�����"���
���
#�����
������!�%�����
��!��
!��&'���
	����&�'�(����%��"��
���#�����"����"��!������
��!�	�����&��	�&#����"��
���"�
���!
��"�����!������&'������
�����������������
!��'�&�%
!������"����
�#�����	�

������"��

,-. /�%
!������"!�������	'	��#��		
�����"�������������&��
�	�$����'����������	�
��"���!���!���	�&!
��������
��	�$���0�����#������"�0�����������1���#��
%
!��������'����������	���"�
���!�%��������	���!�&'����!
��"������"����
#�����#������"�#�����������!�	�
�	�&������	$���#�����������	���"���$���
#
���
!����!���#��2�%��!�%�!	���	��&��	�������&�	������%
!�(������'���"�(�����'-�
�����"��������#
���
!����
%�����!�(������'���"�(������'�"�	���!��"�%!
#�����
�!
�
	�"�!��"�&�"$���"���#������	#�%
!�!�����$�	�����&��	�&#����"��
���"�
���!
��"�����!������&'������
�����������������
!��'���

����	���#��	����������"��"�����	�
%���'�%�!����	�!��
�&���	�"�
������	���$�
�����"������	��'��$����#������
#�
	���
�$�#���
"$���"�"��	��'�
%����������
�$�
�	�������	�������#����
%����������
����

����0�����#������"�0�����������
%�����	���������"�����������'����	�!%���	$�
	�������"�!��"�&�"�	��������!��%��!�&��	�!����'�������
!"��������������
���!
��"�	���#����

3
�%�!����	�!$���	����"�	$��
�"���
����������	$�
!�
���!����#����	�	�����&���	�"�

������	����
���!������������4�!�		�'��"����%��"��������0�������������"�
0�����#����1���#����

1�
��"�����#
���
!������"�#�����������!���#���
��&��%
��
��"�������	��
%�
����%������'�2������	$����&�
�	�$���"���!���!�-�#�	�����	���##�"�����'�������
����&!������	�����	������"���"�!����%��"��

3
�%�!����	�!$���	����"�	$��
�"���
����������	$�
!�
���!����#����	�	�����&��
������"�����������	�������"�!��"�&�"��!���	��&��	��"���"�%�����
������	�
�����"�"��

�-. 3
��
!�	��
��!��	$�	�!�&	�
!���"��!
��
���!�
!���!���
!�	��
##�����
&���������0�!�����"��������	�������'�'��!�����		���"������"�&�!"���	��
	�!��'�&'���	����&�'��4��!�����"���
�
��	����	�&������!!��"�
����##�"�����'�
�!�
!��
�����!�������"��!�������
�%�!#���
���!
��"�"�������
��������&�!"���	�	�
�!���!�	������������	�&������!��"�����!������&'������
�����������������
!��'��

�-. 3
�"����
�#����	������
##�����������%����"�����	�
%���	���#��%
!�����
�!�"�����
����"

!��
��!
��
%�5�����	��6�
����"�27���
�����5��
����$�8
�	��
���!����$��
�'�
��#�9�	��"���#-���"�:�#���'���/��	�#�2)#������	�
;���"���%�!�-��	�	�&#����"��
���"����!
��"�����!������&'������
�������������
����
!��'���������!
��"�#�����#���������	����������"������#���&���%
!�
�#���#������
���1�
��"���"���'�
%�#
!�������
���'��!�
���!�&�����������
"����
%����!
����
%�����#�����#����	���#����"������!�����"����
%�
�#���#������
��
%�����#�����#����	���#��
!�����"����
%�"����
�#����
�
##������$���%�!���!�	����	�!��'�#�	��&����"�!��������"�	�&#����"��
�����
�
�����������������
!��'��

+-. 3
���!���#
�����	����������������
!�#���!����
!�#������!'�&!
�����
��	����
��������#���
"�	����#�����
��!
����������
�"	����/!�"��'�7
�"���"�����
/����	����/!

��%!
#�����"������	�������	$�"�	����"�"�&!�	���	�&����
	������"��
���"���!��"�&'������
�����������������
!��'������#��	�!�	������&��

Page 203



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

�"���"����#���#�"��������#�$
!�����#�!���
��
$������
�	�!����
����!�
#����
���
!#�����������������!
��#�#�����	��

��%&'
�#����
�"����	�����������������������������(��#�"
�	�!���#���������!�������
(���
�����������"����	�
��������
�
�������
��������
$������
�#	����)!�#��*�
+
�#���#�)����	����)!

��!�	�������$!
"�����#�	�
	���
$�	�!$��������!��
	� 
#����
�"����	�("����#��
���#����!
��#�����!������(*������
�������������
����
!��*������#�����	,��	����!
��#,�	�����(���"���"����#����$�������
���
!#��������������"���(�����������	�$�!	��(������!��#�����!������(*�����
�
�����������������
!��*��

��%&�����#	�������	���"��	�����(��	�("����#��
���#����!
��#�����!������(*�����
�
�����������������
!��*��!�
!��
������
""����"����
$�����#����
�"���������
�
�����	�
$��������#	�������	���"��	�
��#������#�����#$�
��!��!�		���#,�
�����
!����#��	,���������!�����#�	�!�(������������#������!
��	�
��
$�(���
(!���	
��(�	����������������#����
�"������#�(�����#�(�!#�(
-�	������
���!
��#�	���"��	��������!��$��!�(���"���"����#��
������!���������"
���	�
$!
"�����#�����������(�
�	���	�$�!	��
������#�
!������������$�!	��������(����!���
���������	��	
�.���#���*��!��	�
!�	�!�(	�!�"
��#,�#*����
!�(��
"����
	���!��*�#�"���#�
!�(��
"����	���!��*�#�	��	�#��������$����*��!	�
$�
���������	�����(��!������#�(*��!��	�
!�	�!�(	�
$���	�"���!�	�/��
!�	�����	��
�
��
	��
!�������*�!�0��!�#��
�(��������#��

��%&'
�����	���#��������#�����	���#�����#����#�$$�!����$
!"	�
�����!
��#������
!�$�!����	�)��1������2����33��4�������5���	�
������6����� 7�� �� �� 
�5 � �����5���	�
��8,��
�#����
�"����	������
""���������		���#�������$����
#�����	�
$�����$
��
����������(����	�("����#�
�����
�
�!��������(�	�#�	�!��*�

$�����	������#��#9�������#
���#�������*	��
������
�����������������
!��*�$
!�
���!
������

�%& �!
��	�
��
$���	��������������*	�	�
$������!
�
	�#�9�����
��
��
�
5�#���$$��:

!�5
�#��
�#���!"�����#�0���������		�!
�#���#�����#���!(�
!�#��.��

��%& �!
��	�
��
$���	��������������*	�	�
$������!
�
	�#�!�$�	���
������
�
	����
	�!��������!!����"���	.��

���%&+
!"���
��
$�����	��������		�
��
�5�#���$$��:

!�5
�#,����
!�
!����������
�!
��	�
��
$��#�0������!!����"���	������������!$��������������#
���#�
������*��
�$
!"���"�-�"�"����������������,����"���#��;"���"�"%�
$

���*	��*�������
��-�	�����$

���*	�����
	���
�	��
�(����!��#,�
�!
��	�
��
$���	�(����*�	���*	��������9�����
��
$�����	��������		������
5�#���$$��:

!�5
�#�$
!�������!
�!�����#�	����	���#�(�	�#�
��	���#�
	�!��*	��
�(����#�!������
���������		�$��#�!
�#,�����!���
�	��
�����
�#9������	����(
��#�!��	����
!#�!��
���	�!����������!�������(���
�

(	�!����
�	������������	���*	��(
������������
$���1",�#�"�!����
��
$�
������"��	�
$������#
���#�������*,�������������#��!
		�����
���	����
�
	���
�	��
�(����!��#������#���,��$�����		�!*,�
$�!���	�#���"��	�
$�
�#
���
��!�0��!�#��
���	�!������������!
		�����
�����	��
����#�
������
�#
���#�������*,����� ��*�"�!����	���#�����!���
�	��
������-�	�����
!
�#�"�!����	�
��5�#���$$��:

!�5
�#��
��!
��#����!�������!���
�����
���
�����#����
�"���,���#������		
�����#�������*���#�������*�#!�������
!�"�#�����
!�	.��

��%&:��	�!�	��
��!����������#�	���!���
$�	�!$��������!�$!
"������!
�
	�#�
��!���!����!#	���#�����!��	���#�	��������		�
��
������#9�������#
���#�
������*.�

Page 204



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�����������������������������"�

�#$ �!
��	�
��
%���	�!��������������		�		&�����
���	�
�����'�	����%�����
���
�
(����!��'�%
!�����)�����
��
%�����	��������		������*�'���%%��+

!�*
�'�
��',����!������		�!-,���	���&��
%��&�!
��&���	.��

��#$�!
�
	��	�%
!��������!
'����
��
%���������!�	�!����
�	��������)�����
��
%�
����	��������		������*�'���%%��+

!�*
�',������'������������		�!-�!
�'�
&�!����	���'�	���������

����'�����	�	�(	�/�����-����!
��'�	�����(���&���&����'��
������!��'�
�!
�!�&&����'��
������!������	���	%����
��
%������
�����������������
!��-��

��#$0
�'����
�&����	������
&&���������		���'���������12
�	�!����
���!�%%���
+�����&��������1�32�+�#,���	�(����	�(&����'��
���'����!
��'�(-������
����
�������������
!��-���'�	������
�%�!&
�!
��'������%
��
������

�#$ ��
�
�!������'�����'���
��	�!��-�
%�����%

���-	���'���!!������-	�
���'�����
���'��(�����������	��������		�������������������	�(	�/�����
!�&�'�����
!�	��!��!�/��!�'�%
��
������
�	�!����
��
%���'�	�����
!-�
��'�!����!	��
������
�	��
�����'����
�&���.�

��#$ ����		�!
����%
!��������	�%!
&�����������-�����
!�.�

���#$����		��
���3	#��
�����	����%
!���������	��
%�����'����
�&���,������'����
��-���&�
!�!-��
!�	���'�&��	�!�	�!�/��!�'��
��!
�����������-��	�!	�
��'�%������������������!�����		.�

��#$4
�!	�
%�
��!���
����'���&(�!�
%���������&
��&���	.�

�#$ �!
�
	�'�	�����
�!'���
������
	���
�	�����!�
%����!
�!�������	�(����-�
	���-	�
��
�*�'���%%��+

!�*
�'.�

��#$��	���&��
%����!
�!�������!����
	���'���&���	���������������������-�
%�
�����
�	�!����
��	��������		3�	#.�

���#$�!!����&���	�%
!�������!�������'�&��
���!����
%��������	������������
��!�������
%�����	���.�

����#$��!�����
��	����
%�
��!�����	1���'��
�	�!����
���������	��
�����!������
	�
!����
��	����
%��
�	�!����
��&���!���	.�

�5#$+��	�!�	��
���	�!�����������&�'���'�
���!��

	��&���!���	��!���
��
	�!��'�
��
������')�������'
���'�������-	��	���!�	����
%�����
�!
��'�
!�	�
��!���
�	�
!���!!��'�
�����������	���'����		�	�
%���-�
�������	�������������	������'�&��	�!�	��
�&���&�	��'�	�����	�����
���	�'�(-�����
��!���
�	��

�������!
��'������	�����(���'��!�'��
���!
���
�������
'�&
����
�
�
�	�!����
����!�
'���'�����&��	�!�	�	�����(��!������'���'�
%��������	��	�'�%
!����������'�'���!�
	��%
!�����'�!���
��
%�����'�&
����
����'�
�
�	�!����
����!�
'	�������!��	��'����%��'�	������
��(���	�'�%
!���-�
���!�
��!�
	�	�
���!������������!����
��!�����
%��������	���'�	�
!����
%�
'�&
����
�
�
�	�!����
��&���!���	��

��#$������!�����%��������	���'�����'�
���������!
��'�����	�3
!��	�!�/��!�'��
�
	���	%-���	���!�����
�'���
�#�	�����(���!
��'�'�(�%
!������'����
�&����
��!�(-����!
��'��	�(!
��������
��	����'������!��	��	�'�%
!�����&��
���!����

%��������	�	�����	�(	�/�����-�(��&��������'�%!���
%�
(	�!����
�����������&�	��

�6#$������!���'��-������!�����	����	���'�����'�
���������!
��'�����	�	�����(��
	�!%���'
�&���&����'���'�&�'��������(���%
!��	���!�
!��
�����'����
�&����
��!�(-����!
��'�(�����(!
��������
��	����'����!��%��!�&��������'��������
��&�	��

�7#$����(���	�
!����%��������	���'�����'�
���������!
��'�����	�	�����(��
�&���&����'��
�����	���	%����
��
%������
�����������������
!��-��!�
!��
�����

Page 205



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
��������
�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!��������������������������������

"����
�#������!�$%����!
��"�$�����$!
��������
��	����"�#��������"�
���!��&��!��

��'(�!�
!��
������
##����#����
&�"����
�#���)���"������"�"!�������"�	���)�
$!
�"�%�������
!"���������������!�������	��	��$��	��"��������*%"!
�
������
�		�		#����+,��%�����'�+!�&��*-�.��'���"��!���#���!%��!�������/�!����%�
+!�&��*-�.���.���01����2�����'�	�����$��	�$#����"��
���"����!
��"����
�!������$%������
�����������������
!��%���

����"������"�	���#��	����������"������"������"�"�	������"��
�	�!����
��
&�����
	�����+�
������"������"������"�"�	����
&�����!��"�$�")�������"�"!%��
!��
�	�
&�
����	����)��	�������	�����&�
���
��!
��#������	#	��
�"�����!�����!�3��!�"�
���������
����"�&�
�	��
���	�!�����������!��%���"�&�����
�����%�
&�����!��"�
$�"��	�������	������!
��	�
��
&�&��������	��
����
������#
���
!����
&&�����!�
3�����%�&!
#�����!��"�$�"'��	�������	�����
���!��!
�
	�"�"!�������&����!�	�
��
����	���������"������"�"�	�������������
�	�	�����$��	�$#����"�&
!��������!
��"�
	���#�)������"�������������
��"�	�����
����
##
"���������������%��!�	�
!#�
�����)����	���#���#�#����
������
&��45�&
!����#�������������

����"!�������	���#��	�����$���#���#����"�	�!����%�������
!"��������������
���!
��"�"�����	������	�����!��%��!�
!��
�����������	���!�$%����!
��"�$�����
$!
��������
��	����"�	��������!��&��!�$��!������"���"�#�����"���"�
#��������"�������
!"��������������6�����#������"�6�����������/���#��
!�3��!�"�$%��
�"���
���
��.��$
����

��'(�!�
!��
������
##����#����
&�"����
�#���)���	���#��
&����!�	����	����
"!�����������	������
�	���"��!���#���!%��������!�����
!�	��
�����	�������
�!
��"�����!�&�
�	�&��"����/��!#
����!�	�!�
�!���"�	�!���	���������������%�
&�
�����!
�
	�"�	����)������"����������#����
&�	�����
!�	)�	�����$��	�$#����"��
�
��"����!
��"�����!������$%������
�����������������
!��%����!��
!��
&�����
&��"���	�
&�	��������	������
�	�	�����$��	�$#����"��
������
�������������
����
!��%���

��%�	����!��
!��	�
��"������"�����!�����!
�!�������%��""���
����"!�������
�
!�	�������!������		�!%��
�	�&����!"�����&�����
�����%�
&�����	�������"�����
����!�3�����%���"��!
��"�����!�&�
�	����
������"7�������8�	���������!$
"��	��
9����"����"������"�"�	���������"�#
�	�!���	�����������!
�
	�"��
!�	������
	�&����!"�����	�!����!��������!��%�
&�/��!#
����!�	�!�
�!���"�����3������%�
��"�3�����%�
&���������!�&��"��������!�	�!�
�!���

��%�	�����""���
�����
!�	�	�����$�����!
��"�����!������$%������
�������������
����
!��%���"�	��������!��&��!�$���#���#����"��!�
!��
������
#�����
��
&�����
"!��������
!�	��
����������%�!������������""���
�����
!�	�	�����$��
�#���#����"����&����������
!"�����������������!
��"�"�����	��!�
!��
�����
������	���!�$%����!
��"�$�����$!
��������
��	����"�	��������!��&��!�$��
!������"���"�#�����"���"�#��������"�������
!"��������������6�����#����
��"�6�����������/���#��!�3��!�"�$%��
�"���
���
��.��$
����

:

;<=:>?:@ABC=DEC:

Page 206



��

�
������������	
���
��������	��������
�����

�
�

������������� !��
"����������#�$��
��%&�'��(�)*)+��
,-���.�//-�0123�45 !�6�07138�

�!�8!����9 /���� �!9�:�,-�9;��<��/�9�/-� =�<9�9���

������ !�:�9�>�?@�AB�-�?C?D��

�
�������7�=>��33E1F?GCEHE?DEDDGIGJJ�
@KJ�3�/L�5���M�.B/-�N�:�7 �:M�0�!�;��9�/�0?O�CPQ��
RS T�������������#�$����$��������
��&U�
V�����T
�����$�W
����(�X������	�Y���%ZZ*�
�	����������V������
�	������������	����#����
���

RS T�������������#�$��[(�\�]�������	����������$�����
��
V�̂��(�_���
�
������̂
�
�	��
W
�������

RS T������������
��̀�V�aUUU%b�$���$�%)�"����#[���)*))b�������V���$�[(��
�����$���$�����
%Z�c���#[���)*))��

RS T���$����
�#������
�
��$���������������
��
V�V�����������	��
����������

������ !�

%�ST�������������$��#����$��

3/ ��:B/���0�99�/��

)�ST����������	��
������������������$(�����$�
���������$��T����V
��b�d��#�
�
���$����	�����������������
���������(���

0��!�8��B���

+�ST���#��������������������VV����
V�������
�
��$�$����
�#����
���

�eS����������������$������������
V���������
��$��	�����f�

[eS���������	��
�$���
���
V�����
���������
V����	�[
����	���
�������b������
�������������V��������
�
���


f���$�

�eS��	���(���V��(��

7��� !��

ghijiklmjniopnqrrmijiokmn

s�St�
����	�
��
�̂��(�]�$�̀
�$�������������$���
����	�����$������������$����������
�������
�����	�
��$�V�

����$�����$�������V������[
����Y��
�$��
����������$�
V�����
����������
��$�����������
���������������b��#
�	���
���������	�b�������$�V
������
���
��	�
V������������$�������������	�
V������������T���������
����������
V�����
��
����	�����$���
�����������#[���
V�[���
�[����b����	�����
��(�
��[���$��	��
��$��������������
���
��������	��
����������
����$��$u�������
�������������
�$��
_��������������$�����[������������$�[�(
�$��������
��	���������	��������

v�St�����������	��
��������������[��������$�������������������������������
������
	�
��$��������
�����
�$�
���
���T��(���������$���������(��
����������
V�����
�������$���
����	�����$�b���������$�V�
#��������
�����$�������������[(�����
��������
�$��W
���w�����(b����(������
�����$��(�����[���V�
#�̂��(�]�$�̀
�$��
T�����������$���	�����
���
	����������������x�����	�
��[���$��	����$�
�����
�������	��
����������
����������
V�������
����	�����$�b���$����������

Page 207



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

�!
"��������������	�#!
"�������	���$���	�
#�����	���������
������!	��!��
���!�#
!����"���%��
������""�%������������&��

'�(�����)��!�
!�
#������
������!	���!&�����
�
�!*������#
!"�!��
�
	��"+��,
��%�
��
����!�	�%�	�����������"��
#�"&�	������	��*������
������!	�	�
��%�	���	�
#�!�	����%�
����������������%��
��!�	��	��!��&���������������!�����
#�������
�
���!�
	���������
������!	��������!�������"��������%�������������)��!�
!������!�����

#�����	���������
������!	�%��!����#!
"��������!����!���%������!�����
#�����
	�!!
��%�����!��*�����������������	�	����	��%���������	��
��%�+��
��!�
"��+&�
���
�%���
��!�-��!���������
������!	��
�+��������%�������
�
�!��
�+����!��%������
����.
��������

��(/�����
���%����������������������)��!�
!�
#������
������!	��
��%������&��"�!
���
����!�
��!���������!�������%�!�%��������!��##����
������0120345���!����!���%�
�����!������6
����!*�����
��!�������������%�+����
#������
������!	�	����#������&�
�)���%������
#�����
���!�
��+���%���	���%��
������!	��
����%���������������%��
�
����!��!�
#�������!!���%�	�
��������!�%�*���%������������
#�����	�����%�
�
������!	��)���%	���������	��������
#������%7������	�
��������!�%����!!�����
���!�#
!�*��������������%�+����
#������
������!	������!	����
��!�
�	���%�
�!
"�����������������	�!!
��%�����!���������

8�(/��!�#�!������
�����#�!	��"�����		��*�����%����
�"����%��!���	�#!
"�����
���!����!���%������!�����
#�����	�!!
��%�����!����/���
��%�+���
��!�!&��
�
�
�����	�9:�
����%�9.�
��
#�����;�!&�<����!&������
�"��������*��%
���%������
=<��>������*��"
��	��
���!������	*�	�����
������#��
�!�+����
�	�%�!���
���
�
�!
�
	��	�������%
��
�������������������+����%��!	���##����
��������!������!�
?@010?A2150BC5ADEB4?0F25DG5A@25HD1DIJ@345ADEB4K5LMNN0J2450BC5DA@215
	�����"���	*���%��
�
��&���������!
�
	��	�#
!�	"����+�	���		�	����������	�����

#�����%����
�"�����	����!
�!������
�����	�!!
��%�����!����������������	�
�
����%���

OPQPRSTUVRWPXPVRYTVZTX[\T]̂ _̂̀ P\aYTVZTb\PS[cV_aPRSTdaV̀\aXP\YT

��(�+
��������
����������	�
!�����!�������!��
�+����
�!�	�%�������#���	�������!��
����		�%������)��!����	���!��	�	��
�����!��!�
#�����+���%�����9����#�����	�	�!��%�
+&���#�!	��#�

!����%
��������	��
	���
��%�����������
��!����!������
��!�

�	�����
	���������
������!	��e!
"�������#
!"���
��+�#
!��"�*����	�����%
�	������!��
�
	�!���!

"	�������
��%�+��#!�-�����&��	�%�+&�
������!	���������%
���������
�
!���!�"
	��#����%�!����&�#���	�����	���������
������!	*��������������%
�����
����	
����!�"
	��#������	����
+��-��������
#����"��

���(����	���������
������!	��������"�)�"�"��������
#�f�8"���%��)���%��+
�������
����	�
#������%7��������
 	�
!�&�	�
��������!�%��+���%�����������#
!"���
��
+�#
!��"��	����	�	����������	���������
������!	�������!��	�����%�
���
���
��
#�
����
���!��!��	���%����!
)�"����&����"��!�	�#!
"��������%
�	�
#������%7������
#���	��.
�	�-�����&*�����
��!�����������
#������
������!	��
�����!����������!�
�!
)�"��&��
����	�����%
�	��
��%�+��
��!+��!������%�!�	���������	�+	���%�!%�

���

���
�����
������!	�
#����	��#���	���

���(/��!�#�!������
�����	��
�%�"�����		��*�����%����
�"�����
��%��%��!	��&��##����
������������
�%���
�	�
#�����
������!	�
#������+
�!�����!
��!���	*��������!������!�
!�#�!������
�
���

���/���
��%�+���
��!�!&��
��
���&�9.�
��
#�����<��������
	���	��
�
��&���������!
�
	��	�#
!�	"����+�	���		�	����������	�����
#�����
%����
�"�����	����!
�!������
*���%������	���	�����!
�"������&��
"����+�������*�
����	�!!
��%�����!����������������	��
����%���

Page 208



�����������	�
�����
�����
�
��
�������

�

�
����	�

�����
����
�������� ��	����
!�������������������������������

"#$%&'()*'+,-()

���./
�!���!�����0�1	������0�����!
��2�2��23�������
������
������!	���2���	����
��	�0�����!����2������	����	����������	����	��!��4
!���	�
5�!	�
4�����
�
����������	�
!���6
����!7��������������8	��������9����5����	����	����	��
	����	��!��4
!�������!�����
4��5��
1��	7��������	�
5�!���!������
����2��
�����
4!
���
4�����	�
!��
��:�!1�;�2�<
�2��

���.=�4
!5���
��!���!2����2�����!��	��	���5���27���������������>?@A8BCDEEF?>C
9����5����
������������������	������	�2�4
!��5��
1�������������!������
��2�
��	
�0���	�2�01���G��
����2�����!1����	��/!
5�������4
!5���
��0�4
!��5�7�=��5�
����!�����������!��������2��
��2�0���	�2�4
!�0
����5��
1�����!�������2�
2�����!��	�����
������	�����
�4�����0�������2�44�!�����	�!	�
4��������2���2�����
����		�!
�2��/�!���!5
!�7��
���4
!5���
����	�0�����!
��2�2�!���!2�����
������
����!���
��
������!	��!������		�2���2����!�4
!��=��5���	�!���
������
�
�2���
���
�2����
4��

2	��
���2�4!
5����	���
������!	��
��2�0����2�!������
����
����5����������
��������!����
	�!��������!��	���

���.����������������	�	����	��2���������
�2���
���
��2�0���5�
	�2��
�	���!��
2�����	�
4����;��!���
����H�����5���������4
!�������!�������2�	�!�������
4�����
�
����������	�
!���6
����!7�=��5�������!�������!������
50���2��	�	��
��2�0��
���
55
2���2�������������!�������
����
�4������
������
���!�
!�
���!��	�!	�
4�
��������		�!
�2���2����!�4
!�7�	�������
�2���
��5�1��
��0��!��	
��0���
!�
��4
!���0���������

�G�.=��!�4�!������
��������!2�5�����		��7���	�44����������2�������	�0�����!
��2�2��
�
2�5
�	�!�������������2����
�5�����
��2��
���2��!	��1��44����������1�	�4��1��
=���
��2��
�4�����������
�����	�IJ�
�7�6��
����2�6�K
��
4�����L��������7�
�5
��	��
���!������	7�	�����
�!�2������2�	�!���
��������!��
�4����7���2��
�
5�����2�M������!
��	�
��4
!���!���!�������2�	�!�������!�M��!�5���	��

NOPQRSTUOOQRVS

�K�.����	���������
������!	��!��	��2��
��!
��2���		�������	�
!����4
!����
55����1�
4
��	�2��
55�!���������������5���	�����2�1 �
 2�1����2	�
4�!�	�2���	����������
�
55�!������
������!�2���6
����!7���5���2���4
!5���
����	�0�����!
��2�2�
WFX?WYZ@XCA[FCB[\E8BCBA\W?XFC!�M��!�5���	7�
!���1�����4����	���������
������!	�
�!���		����������

]̂ _̀ abVĉ_S

���./
!�����!��	
�	��������0
��7��������!���!2��
�����2����
�5����������	���
��
�����2�����
���!�5���!�����
�	�2�!���
�	7�=��
����2������������������	�
��2�
0��2�	5�		�2��

defghhie

=J9�Ij�;<�

Page 209



�

��������	
�����
�
	������������������	�����
�

�
�

�����������������������������������

� �!"#$%&'(�)*(#+(,�-"'./&00(,�1"#.2(%3(4,�156�578�

94(.3&:#�:0�'(.$&#;�

<6=5�=5<5�������	
�������>�

�	����	�>�

?��@�>�

�������AB��>� -9C�

D����E�
>� <<�F�=�5��

55�G:.$(H�1::4�-:"',�!+4H�!IJ�58!�

C/"##&#;�"KK/&."3&:#�6FLJF�4(0+%('�

<6=5J=5<5�������	
�������>�

�	����	�>�

?��@�>�

�������AB��>� -9C�

D����E�
>� << M�=�5��

A	�����@�����	
��������D����>����

NOPQRSRTURS�VOWQRTURXQYTZWR[R\S]̂_]\̂\̀�

Page 210



�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�����������	


�
��
������������������������

�
�
��	�

�
���
����������� �

�
�������	�

�
�������
��������������������
�����������

�
�����������	�

�
��
������������������
�
�������

�
����
����������	�

�
�
�����
����

� �

�
����������������	�

�
���������
�

�����������
������
���� ��
���	�

!"#$
%&%'(
#$
)#*"#+
*"'
%,-.#/
012&#+




�
����
��	�

!"#$
('%1(*
$'*$
1,*
*"'
#$$,'$
('.&*#+3
,%1+
*"'
/,(('+*

*'2%1(&(4
*(''
%('$'(5&*#1+
1(0'(
!(''
6('$'(5&*#1+

7(0'(
891:;<=>
&*
?&+0
&0@&/'+*
*1
AB
C1,+*'$$
?&+'D

E&0/.#FF'D
GH<
;9I


�

�
��������J�
�������������������



!"'
C122#**''
#$
('/122'+0'0
*1
*"'
+1*'
*"'
('%1(*

&+0
&%%'+0#/'$


�
������
�����	�

�

�
�KLMKLN�O�
PQ� �KRPST�
�LNQOUKLV	�



W1
*"'
%(1%1$&.$
&//1(0
)#*"
*"'
61.#/4

X(&2')1(YZ

 ['$
 
 


��N�OQO\��]T��̂O��_̀ _��aaPSOL	�
�P\N\SPNR��QMRPSN�PK\��N\b��P�V�
�K\�PbOLN�PK\�	�



cd'/,*#5'
W#('/*1(
1F
E'$1,(/'$
*1
&05#$'

('3&(0#+3
(#$Y
2&+&3'2'+*


�
��N�OQO\��]T��eOS��PfO��PLOS�KL�
Ka��O�K�LSO�	�

�
9gh

�

�
�i�NRP�T �PfOL�P�T�PQMRPSN�PK\�	�



91
 





�
�K\�PbOLOb�]T��K\P�KLP\���aaPSOL	�



jkl

�
�

�
mNLb��
aaOS�Ob	�

�
h..
.#$*'0


�
�SL��P\T��\�OLO��	�

�
9gh



�O\bN�
��OQ�

n

��������������������
A


Page 211

Agenda Item 7



�
�
��������	
����

�� � ����������
�

�����������������
������ ���!��"��#��$�

%��&�

����������
'�&(���������

)��"�'�&(��#� *���+��#�

�
�

� � �

������+,��-&&������ �-&&������ �-�+��.� �

�
�

� � �

� � � �

�
/01� 2������3���
%��#���$-���#��#�-��������##��#���.���+ ��$-+����������+����&$-���,������$��#������-+�
-�"���%����*��#������-+�4�"���56-7�89:;����!�+"��"<���+���-�=>��-�+��##�!�+�?�
@�"�.����?�'A9�86B�
�
C01� ����D3
�����
%�������������+����&$-���,�$��#������-+�-�"����##��"�-+���������#�E����+����������.� ��
-������#�����#��"�+�����"��+�F$$�+"���:�G�A��#��-+���&�"7�
�
%���"���#�-+��-��-+���&��+�4�"���&�,�(�����..�+ �"��+�����B� ���-����E����+�#���
E��H#7�
�

�
DIJK�LM�2NOPQRLSTU�
NVWRJ�X�
�
F$$�+"���:�Y�%�&$-���,�%����*��#������-+�4�"���89:�"���"�AZ�F$��.�AZA8�
5%���%-E+��+"��-�+��,�*.�++�+ �5%����*��#������-+;�5�+ .�+";�@� �.���-+#�AZ:A;[�
F$$�+"���A�Y�%*4�4��&�$�
�
�LTKNOK��WKNI\J�X�
�
]���"�'��+-?�B��"�-��]���.-$&�+��'�+� �&�+���
*.�++�+ ��������#?�]�$���&�+���-��@�#-����#��+"�@� �.���-+�
8�̂+-E#.�,�*.����
_��,�_!̀�Z�a�
�
�W\��1/b/�Ccd�cCe/�
�fNI\��U0fNRTLghSRi0QLj0SP�
��
k
l

Page 212



������������	

��
��������
��
����������

��
������������������������������������������
���
���������������
�������
��������������� !�"�#$%&����'������(���������)*�
+�����

�'���,�-�����..�,�/0$�#!1�
�
2�3��33���	
���������������������$40%5�6�
�
�7�������.�������������.�%���"��6������"�
��
�
������������6������������8�������������������.�0��"�9
������
�6����������
���,�
����%��"�9
����������������������������������6��:.���������������.������.�����

���"�
�

������������������������6�
���.�
��"�
�
���0;���9�����0;0#�����+�����������
���������������
�������
��������������,�
�����������������������
����8��
�����6����������������������������
�7�������
��������������������������������
���

�6������������
����.��������������������
�������������������������.�������������"�<������������
��������
�=��"�9
������
,�
��������������������������������
�9������>�%�������
�������"��
�

��������������7��
�����.������,��������,��������,�������������������6�
��6��.���
����������.�����
�6����������������

�����.�����+������"�
�

���+���������
�
�>������
����6�����������.�������
������"�<.�����
����
�����
���.������6������
�>������
,�����������6�������
�,����������6��������������7��
��������������������7���������"��<.������������
����.�����,����6������?���..�������
������������7�
�
��������������6����������������7�����������"����
�

���+�����������������.�����������������

���������.��
�����
���������������������
�7(������
���������������
��������
"�
�
�33�@3	
A�7(�������-����������$��.�
���
�6������+���������������� 
�������
��������&�
 B������&�-���������
�0;%0,��7(������
����������
��������
������������������
6���������
��7�������������������
������"�
�
'�����
��.�����.��������6�����

����������������6���������
�����
���,���
�����
���������6�
����������.��������������6����������#;���/���0;0#"��
�
C�DDE�F	�G	�@H�@3@��E����3I		
JK9
�7��������������6���,����
��
���������������������..�����������.������
����������.���������"��

JK
�����������������������
�
���.�=����

,�%�6������
��������7����.�������,�0�
6�����������������6����������7���������.���������������
�������������������
 ������

�����&������������������7��?��.���������"�
�������
�6���������
����������
��������7�����������
�
�����������

�����,�������������������
.�����,���������������
������
�����������0�����
�����6����������.���������
�����������������������.�����������������"�
���0�����
������������������

�������
����������������
�
�6��������.�������
���������6�����������������
�����������������������
�������
��.�������������

JK
��������������7���7���6�����.�����������������������������6��������������
���������"�

Page 213



����������	
��
�

�������	��
�����
������
��
���
����
�
������������
�����

��
�����



�����
����
������
�����
���
�����
���
�������
��
�
�������
�����
���
���������

���
����
��
���
������


���������
��
���
�����
���
���������

���
�����
����
����
��
�����
��
��	����
��
���
������������
������
�
��
������	

��
����
����
���
�����
��������

���
������
���
����
�������
��
���
��������

���
���
����
��
���
����
��
��
���������
����
�
����
���
��������	
�
�����

�������
��
���
��������
����
������
���
�������

��
��
������� 


!
"#$%&'!()!*$+,(#%#-!.#/$#!
���
�������
���
��������
��
���
0��
1���
�2�3
����
���
��
���
�����
�������
�

���

4����
���
����
������ 
��
�������
���
����
���	��
��
	������
��
��������
��
�����

����� 



567!8$9,(:9$

��
��������
��
���
����
���
;�����

<������	
���
��	��������
���
���
������
=><

<�������
?�@�
?�@AB
���
?�@A�
����
��
�������
���
���������
��
������
������

������
���
���	�����
��
�������	�
�������
��	���������
���
���
���

�����������
����
�������	 



C�������	
���
����������
��
�������	
�����������
DE�BF
��
����������
��
���
�����

���
����
���������
�

���
<������	
4������
���
���
;������G�
�����
���

H�������G�
4������
���
������
���
�����
�����

��
�
�<4 
��
����
���
I
�� 
���

�����
����
����
���������
�

�����
��
����
<�����������
4����
�� 3DB 




���
3�� 
���
�����
��
���
�����
��
���
�����
��������	
���
;������
������
�����
���

���
���
����
��
���
����
��
���
����
����
�����
��
����	
���

���������
������
���

������
�����
��
���
����
��
���
��������

�������� 
��
����
���
�����
����
��������

��
���
����
��
���
�������	
�����������
��
����������
��
���
������
������

��
���

���� 
���
�����
���
�������
����
;�������
J����
H����������
������
���

��������
>���� 
K���������
	�������
������
����
4�����
������
��
����
��

�������
��������
�����
��
�����
�������
�����
����
�
��	��������
��	�����
������
��

���
�����
�����������
���
���
��L�
����
�

���
������ 
���
������

��
���
�����

���
�����
������
���
��
���
��������
�����������
���
��
��
����������
�������

��
���
�����
�����
����
�
��	�����
������
��
���
�����
�����������
�

�������
��

�
��	��������
�������
��
����
����������	 
�����
���
�����
�����
������
���
������

����
����
����������
��
����
������

���
��
��
�����
����
�����
�����
�����
������
���

�������

���
���
�<4��
��������
�����
�����
���
���
�����
������ 



��
��������������
���������
���
���������
����
���
�������	
������������
����

�����������
���
�������
��
���
�����
�����
��
���
�����
��
���
����
��
�����
���

���
������������
��
���
��������
�������	
���
������ 
��
������
��
�����
�������

����
���
��������
���
��������
�����
��
���
�<4
����	
������
���
��
����
���

������
���
���
���
���
�������
��
��������	
����
������
�����
���������� 
����

�����

����	������
���
�����
��
��
�������
��
	����
MB
NO�������P
��
;�
NJ��

Q�����
P
���
����������
����
�3
��

����
��	��
��
���
������� 
����
���
���
�����

�

���
�����
���
H��������
4������
���
���������
���
����������
��
������
��

���
;������ 
���

��������
���
�����
��
��
��
�
����������
���������
���
���
����

����
���
�����
������
��
�������
�����������

���
�������
���
��
���
������� 





Page 214



����������	����
����������	��������

������	�
���������	����������	��������	����
�����
��	����������������������������	���
���������	���	�������������������
��
�����
������������������������
����	������������������
�	����������	������������
�����	���
������	
������
	���	������	�����
����������	���������	������������������
�������	��	������
	���������������	���	��������������������	�������	�����������
��������������������	�����	���������	�������
	���������������	������
�

��������	��
����������������	�����������������
����������	�������������
�����

�������
��	�������������������	���������	���������������������	�����

�������	������������
����	���������������
��
�������	����������
�
����������������	������	�� �����
���	
	���������	�������������������	������
����������
��	�� ������������������������
����������
��������	����	������	���������
�������������	����������	���
	��
���������������
��	����������������������������	���
���������
���	��� ���������������������������� �����
�����������
�����
�
���	���������	��	�������������	���	�����������������
�������������	�����������	��
 ������!��������
�������� ���������"�������������	��������������������������
����	��
������������������
�
#$%&''$()*+,&(-
��	����������������
���	����������	�������������������������������	�������������
����������.�/����������
��������	������ ������	��������������	����
	�����
	�����
-
0,1+-&2-3*%456&7()-8*9$61:;--
��
���	��������<������	����� ������	����=>���������=>=�-
���������	���"�������<�	������?�����<������	����@�?A���	��@�B����	������=>/=�
�

C

Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on the 25th July 2023
	Minutes

	4 Planning Applications
	Item 1
	238084fb-63ed-4ab5-8579-9572e6d5ea21.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes


	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes



	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes



	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes


	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes



	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes




	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes


	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes



	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes




	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes


	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes



	233c5740-5cf5-4393-884f-be57bbcf0499.pdf
	987f84e5-3de5-48f4-a7a4-f56e7a5095a9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Location Plan


	65ba8743-7867-4c79-9732-0b2a541cac9a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	754e6e14-a3d0-4080-98be-ad93da04926e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	HT58_Dalton_Semi Standard 2013Q-Planning Layout A2


	a271f1d8-69d1-4684-91b0-b4abdef55ba0.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	4b08f648-1c88-4ded-91a2-4cf905f61819.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	4a89045e-c448-4933-a1ce-23b6f67d3980.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout


	1f6ac09b-dfab-4abc-b05e-2ac625129f3d.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	PORTFOLIO A3


	f318aef4-6235-4662-93fb-7d39f03b704f.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Planning Layout A2


	417a4451-6ce0-42f4-b806-ccb4d6693352.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Street Scenes






	Item 2
	Item 3
	cd959eca-64f3-49f6-b5d2-b6be17cc0f35.pdf
	7666614c-99f9-4c71-b4c9-123a5146e102.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	7031bf8a-d625-470e-a15f-ffe0aab6558e.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Landscaping Plan - Sheet 2


	d9887d1b-b238-458e-8161-58a0a8012de2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Full Indicative Sections




	Item 4
	9f66a303-bf30-4ff8-afd0-f546b21b43f6.pdf
	ed6515c1-41fb-4ecf-b259-0cd4cfa29d65.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ALBERT ROAD - P01 - Rev B


	70d81f75-087e-4ffd-8e77-d520cc384b30.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	ALBERT ROAD - P02




	Item 5
	537c063b-9a3c-4540-a940-af0c10179a3a.pdf
	7be05ead-3831-4b0e-bfad-5cee892f7b72.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1


	4ede8092-99c1-4d64-b787-1fdae97751d2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A3


	94ebcc1d-b992-4b5f-9272-fafeebe143be.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1


	71bd5516-5617-4084-a89d-89a6206e5af9.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1


	51e6d894-5a2e-432f-a5db-9ef1e91d19a6.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A1 - horizontal title
	OLE1






	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Appeals
	7 Confirmation of Tree Preservation Order (361)

